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          1  COMMITTEE ON STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Welcome to the

          3  State and Federal Legislation Committee hearing on

          4  Resolution 1747, which calls on the State, the MTA

          5  and the Mayor to take the necessary steps to

          6  preserve the High Line for public purposes under the

          7  federal Rails to Trails Program.

          8                 For anyone who doesn't know, the High

          9  Line was built in 1934 and is an elevated freight

         10  railway which runs from the Village up to the 30th

         11  Street, just west of Tenth Avenue and then loops

         12  around the railyard to 34th Street.

         13                 I, along with Council Member Quinn,

         14  of the affected area, authored this resolution, and

         15  we would clearly like to see this historic elevated

         16  rail line turned into a promenade where pedestrians

         17  could stroll and get a completely different

         18  perspective on this part of the City.

         19                 Outdoor public spaces are harder and

         20  harder to come by, and it would be a shame to

         21  destroy such a potential site, without even giving

         22  serious consideration to its possibilities.

         23                 In fact, when CSX, the current owner

         24  of the High Line, inherited it from Conrail, it

         25  commissioned a study by the Regional Planning
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          2  Association on possible uses for the High Line.

          3                 The RPA evaluated a number of

          4  proposals and concluded that a green layer of street

          5  in the sky should be given strong consideration

          6  before such a structure is demolished.

          7                 That's pretty much the purpose of

          8  this hearing. Until now, I know that most of the

          9  property owners, including the governmental property

         10  owners, have been in favor of demolishing the High

         11  Line. However, until very recently, the debate has

         12  always been between leaving what is currently an

         13  eyesore in place or taking it down. That's not much

         14  of a debate.

         15                 Now that there are numerous elected

         16  officials, community leaders and public interest

         17  groups supporting an alternative, I wanted today's

         18  hearing to be a forum to discuss all points of view.

         19  That includes the City and the State who are major

         20  owners of property over which the High Line runs,

         21  the private property owners, CSX, which owns the

         22  structure itself. Representatives of the affected

         23  communities, and those interested in urban design

         24  and planning.

         25                 Unfortunately, the State players and
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          2  the City Administration have refused to join us

          3  today. I find it totally undemocratic and offensive

          4  that public authorities in our own executive branch

          5  should refuse to discuss ideas relating to community

          6  development and in planning with the affected

          7  communities, and with this City Council, which by

          8  the way, is going to have to review any of the

          9  potential options, they're all going to have to go

         10  through a public review process sooner or later, and

         11  to my mind, the sooner that we begin that

         12  discussion, the better, because you're not going to

         13  be able to do anything with regard to the structure

         14  without ultimately coming before the City Council,

         15  and before the affected communities and before the

         16  people of the City of New York. And that's

         17  especially true, I think, that the City and State

         18  should be here, when it's obvious from the turnout

         19  today that there are a lot of interested people on

         20  all sides of this issue, and we're going to hear

         21  from people on all sides of this issue.

         22                 Nevertheless, I, and the members of

         23  this Committee, welcome this opportunity for

         24  discussion, are actually willing to listen to the

         25  ideas that might not have originated with us.
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          2                 Before starting with the testimony of

          3  CSX, the railroad company that owns the High Line, I

          4  would like my colleague, Christine Quinn, to make a

          5  brief statement.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

          7                 First, I want to thank Council Member

          8  Miller for taking leadership on this issue. I think

          9  it is particularly significant as Chair of this

         10  Committee that he co-authored this resolution and

         11  moved so quickly to have a hearing scheduled.

         12                 I'm thrilled that we're having this

         13  hearing today so we can further the dialogue, both

         14  in my district, and Citywide, about the future of

         15  the High Line. The district that I represent, part

         16  of it is in Community Board 4, which is Chelsea and

         17  Hell's Kitchen. Community Board 4 has, out of the 59

         18  community boards in this City, is ranked one of the

         19  lowest for park space.

         20                 We presently have, you know, three

         21  parks and 11 pocket parks, which some of those are

         22  smaller pockets than others.

         23                 So, really it ends up being a very

         24  small amount of open space for a community that

         25  houses, you know, thousands and thousands of people,
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          2  and also is a place where many, many more come every

          3  day to work.

          4                 The High Line and the discussion

          5  about its future is a tremendous opportunity for

          6  this neighborhood to expand by potentially as much

          7  as seven acres, the open space that we have in our

          8  neighborhood.

          9                 The timing on this I think is

         10  particularly fortuitous because presently the

         11  leadership of the Community Board and others are

         12  looking at the issue of West Chelsea and its future,

         13  197-A, zoning issues there, so this really all comes

         14  together in a way that would be incredibly

         15  beneficial.

         16                 Also, the far west side where the

         17  High Line is located has, you know, gone through

         18  many changes recently. There is now quite a thriving

         19  arts community there, who are all very supportive of

         20  this idea, and I think could add to make this a

         21  particularly unique and distinct type of open space.

         22                 Just in closing, I'll say that in

         23  addition to this adding open space to the district,

         24  I think it's an important historic preservation

         25  initiative, because it really will preserve part of
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          2  the industrial history of this district in the City.

          3  When one takes a walk on the High Line, when you

          4  stop and look particularly at streets like 14th

          5  Street, and you look out east across the City, you

          6  really get a flavor and a sense, even now with all

          7  the changes, of what it was like when that High Line

          8  was operational and really moving through the

          9  district and when industry was much more flourishing

         10  in the district and the City.

         11                 So, I thank everyone for coming today

         12  and look forward to moving forward on preserving the

         13  High Line.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you,

         16  Council member.

         17                 I want to note that we are joined by

         18  two members of the Committee, Council Members

         19  Malave-Dilan and Council Member Stabile. We also are

         20  expected to be joined by other members of the

         21  Committee and at one point during this hearing we're

         22  going to have to take a brief recess from the

         23  hearing on the resolution and consider a piece of

         24  state legislation, which we will do once we have a

         25  quorum with the members of the Committee.
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          2                 We're going to begin by hearing from

          3  Steven Crosby of CSX. Mr. Crosby.

          4                 MR. CROSBY: Good afternoon. My name

          5  is Steve Crosby. I am President of CSX Real

          6  Property, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of CSX

          7  Corporation. Our sister company, CSX Transportation,

          8  is a freight railroad company, occupying 23,000

          9  miles of freight right of way in the United States.

         10                 I want to thank you for the

         11  opportunity to speak to you today and congratulate

         12  you for convening this group. I think for the first

         13  time there has been a public session on this topic,

         14  and we have been involved for quite a number of

         15  years and welcome the opportunity to express our

         16  position.

         17                 By way of background, and you alluded

         18  to it briefly in your opening remarks, Mr. Chairman.

         19  CSX was allocated the High Line property as part of

         20  its joint acquisition of Conrail, which we did with

         21  Norfolk Southern Railroad, and this was a portion of

         22  the Conrail property that was allocated the CSX.

         23                 This line has not carried any freight

         24  since the late sixties when it was predominantly

         25  used for the delivery of meat and dairy products at
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          2  the end of its time. Prior to that, it had moved

          3  paper and all sorts of other commodities.

          4                 The line, however, legally remains

          5  connected to the nation's railroad system, and that

          6  connection is currently at 37th Street, adjacent to

          7  the Convention Center.

          8                 The High Line was completed in 1934,

          9  as part of really a historic public/private project,

         10  called the West Side Improvement Project. That

         11  effort was funded by the City, the State, as well as

         12  New York Central Lines. New York Central Lines was

         13  the predecessor railroad to our interest. The cost

         14  of that project back in 1934 was $124 million.

         15                 The High Line remains a unique asset,

         16  from our perspective. The presence of the grade

         17  separated right of way and corridor in this densely

         18  populated portion of Manhattan, is a rare and

         19  precious commodity that we estimate would cost over

         20  a billion dollars in today's money, if it was

         21  reconstructed. Therefore, we urge that the final

         22  disposition of this line be carefully considered,

         23  especially given the changes that seem to be

         24  occurring on the west side of Midtown.

         25                 As an interstate railroad carrier,
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          2  CSX is regulated by the Surface Transportation

          3  Board, more commonly referred to as the STB. The STB

          4  is an arm of the US Department of Transportation.

          5  Within the Board's guidelines, CSX has, and

          6  continues to be prepared to work with the community

          7  and its representatives to find a use for the High

          8  Line that will best define the public interest, and

          9  that is consistent with our shareholders' interest.

         10                 More specifically, CSX must comply

         11  with the 1999 ruling of the Board ordering the

         12  railroad to cooperate with those parties who want

         13  the line abandoned and demolished, provided that

         14  those parties meet additional terms placed on the

         15  order by the STB at that time.

         16                 At the same time and in parallel, all

         17  railroads are obligated under the Federal Rails to

         18  Trails legislation to be responsive to any party

         19  filing for a certificate of interim trail use, more

         20  commonly referred to as railbanking. Therefore,

         21  we're in the position where we're currently engaged

         22  in current discussions with multiple parties, many,

         23  I'm sure all represented in the room today. There

         24  are a number of conflicting agendas, as you

         25  recognized earlier in your statement, that regard
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          2  the future of the line.

          3                 It is our belief that the final

          4  determination as to the disposition of the High Line

          5  should emerge from the will of the public, the

          6  community and those who live in its midst.

          7                 In the interim, we do have a

          8  responsibility as owner to continue to perform

          9  regular inspection and maintenance of the line, and

         10  we will continue to endeavor to be a good corporate

         11  citizen.

         12                 We are not taking a position, and we

         13  haven't taken a position, as to whether this line

         14  should be preserved, or whether this line should be

         15  demolished or whether there is some hybrid solution,

         16  as some have talked about, where a portion of the

         17  line would be demolished, and a portion of the line

         18  would be preserved.

         19                 As I said, our position is that this

         20  is an issue that should be determined locally,

         21  should be determined by those most intimately

         22  affected, and to the extent that we can facilitate

         23  that, while at the same time preserving the interest

         24  that we have and representing our shareholders'

         25  interests, we are more than happy to work with any
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          2  and all parties to try to facilitate a satisfactory

          3  resolution of the ultimate disposition of this

          4  asset.

          5                 So, with that, I will open myself up

          6  for any questions, or if you prefer to do that

          7  later, I'm certainly welcome to work with your

          8  schedule.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: I have a

         10  question. I don't know whether the members of the

         11  Committee have a question.

         12                 You know, to begin with, the first

         13  question I would have is, when was the last time

         14  your company evaluated the safety and the structure

         15  of the integrity of the structure of the High Line?

         16                 MR. CROSBY: We check it periodically,

         17  and we have done repair work periodically, I don't

         18  recall the last date specifically. But I know we

         19  have done extensive repair work within the last two

         20  years.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Is it something

         22  that you feel is in danger of falling down in the

         23  near future? Is the integrity of the structure

         24  intact.

         25                 MR. CROSBY: The structural integrity
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          2  is fine. There is spalling concrete and other

          3  superficial issues that need to be addressed from

          4  time to time, and as I said, we spent fairly

          5  extensive sums in the last couple years, keeping

          6  those things at a minimum and correcting any damage

          7  that is identified.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: And it was built

          9  for the purpose of handling several freight trains,

         10  right?

         11                 MR. CROSBY: Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: So, in terms of

         13  the potential, were there to be a rail purpose again

         14  intended, I mean as recently as ten years ago

         15  Conrail at that time was arguing that they wanted to

         16  use it again for rail purposes. The structure could

         17  have handled freight trains again in the future; is

         18  that correct?

         19                 MR. CROSBY: Yes, we have no reason to

         20  believe that that would not be the case.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: So, in other

         22  words, in terms of its ability to continue to remain

         23  there in a safe manner, your company is confident of

         24  its integrity for that purpose?

         25                 MR. CROSBY: At this point I believe
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          2  that's correct.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay.

          4                 Can you talk a little bit about the

          5  RPA study that you commissioned in 1999 to look at

          6  alternative uses, what the purpose was behind that,

          7  what the company found and what the company views of

          8  that stay?

          9                 MR. CROSBY: The study was done for no

         10  other reason than to try to gauge how it might be

         11  used and we sought some outside opinion as to how it

         12  might be used. And it really doesn't go beyond that.

         13  I think the study speaks for itself. We had no

         14  agenda specifically. As I said, our interest is

         15  ultimately in seeing that the disposition of this is

         16  done in a way that's both satisfactory to the

         17  community and to our shareholders.

         18                 But we felt some obligation to

         19  investigate what those alternatives were. Obviously

         20  the option of tearing the line down has been

         21  floating around for quite some time, and it's been

         22  through the courts and it's been involved in a

         23  number of legal proceedings for I guess about ten

         24  years at this point.

         25                 Over that time we've been approached
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          2  by other people who have other interests, preserving

          3  the line and/or using it for other things. So, we

          4  thought it would be appropriate to have someone

          5  other than ourselves and other than those who were

          6  simply rising up for the community, someone who had

          7  some professional credentials to take a look at what

          8  those options might be.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Council Member

         10  Quinn has a question.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Could you tell

         12  us just a little bit about what you estimate the

         13  cost to be if the High Line was to be demolished?

         14                 MR. CROSBY: I've got to be careful

         15  what I say there because there is litigation

         16  revolving around that specific issue, and there are,

         17  the court records would suggest that there are

         18  fairly significantly differing opinions on what

         19  those costs might be.

         20                 I think my lawyers would tell me that

         21  I probably ought not to answer that question

         22  directly. But the court records are available, and

         23  suffice it to say that we're talking about many

         24  millions of dollars, in anybody's estimate, to tear

         25  it down.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Under the

          3  Demolition and Voluntary Abandonment Agreement, CSX

          4  has taken the position that a necessary condition to

          5  that agreement is that you would be indemnified for

          6  any costs over and above $7 million, right?

          7                 MR. CROSBY: That is a result of one

          8  of the conditions placed by the STB on these

          9  proceedings.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Right.

         11                 MR. CROSBY: And, yes, they have made

         12  that stipulation, and we certainly want to make sure

         13  that that stipulation is enforced. We have no

         14  greater exposure than that.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Right.

         16                 Because you would be concerned that

         17  it's possible that the costs could be greater than

         18  $7 million?

         19                 MR. CROSBY: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: I'm sure we can

         21  get testimony from other people on what the cost

         22  estimates are for demolition.

         23                 With regard to the maintenance of the

         24  structure right now, how much does it cost you to

         25  maintain the structure on a yearly basis?
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          2                 MR. CROSBY: We don't have an annual

          3  budget. We inspect it periodically and repair it

          4  periodically as necessary.

          5                 As I said, we have spent considerable

          6  money over the last couple of years. I believe that

          7  number is in excess of a million dollars.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: So, it was your

          9  testimony, therefore, that CSX is currently in

         10  control of the property, and the easement, would

         11  like to remove its control of the property precisely

         12  for that reason, because there is an annual cost and

         13  you're not getting anything back out of it, right?

         14                 MR. CROSBY: We're comfortable with

         15  that outcome. I guess we got to where we are really

         16  as a result of actions that were taken against us.

         17  So, we've been dealing from somewhat more of a

         18  defensive posture.

         19                 I think it's safe to say, since we

         20  have not used, our predecessor railroads have not

         21  used the line to carry freight for quite a few

         22  years, and certainly the prospects of industrial

         23  development occurring in this section of the City

         24  are not particularly good. And, so, other than a new

         25  tunnel building project or something that would
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          2  generate a great deal of construction debris and/or

          3  soil materials or those sorts of things, and the

          4  only other commodity that we take out in bulk is

          5  garbage, and it's not done from this area of town at

          6  this point.

          7                 Our sense is that the time probably

          8  has come for a different use.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: And just in terms

         10  of looking at the two options, demolition would mean

         11  that you would no longer have the property and it

         12  just would be off your books.

         13                 If it were to be rail banked, CSX

         14  could potentially gain some tax advantages to rail

         15  banking, yes? If you were to give the property to a

         16  non-profit group or to the City or the state for the

         17  purpose of public recreational use, you might be

         18  able to receive an economic fiscal incentives for

         19  that; is that correct? Potentially?

         20                 MR. CROSBY: That's true. But I

         21  believe it's probably equally true of the demolition

         22  proposal, that there is still an easement to be

         23  extinguished in either case.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: And you would be

         25  granting it to property owners, or to City and you
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          2  might be able to get some tax advantages from that

          3  as well?

          4                 MR. CROSBY: Yes, I believe that's

          5  correct.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay.

          7                 We have an awful lot of people who

          8  have signed up to testify here.

          9                 So, do any of the members of the

         10  Committee have any other questions?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: I have a

         12  question.

         13                 As far as the alternative use, do you

         14  feel alternative use at this time would be

         15  beneficial to help in improving the area and make it

         16  more usable or more attractable to the people of

         17  this City?

         18                 MR. CROSBY: I'd rather not answer

         19  that because we've chosen as a company not to take a

         20  position on something that we believe is a community

         21  decision.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: What confuses

         23  me a little is the cost factor. If it's costing you

         24  a million dollars a year to --

         25                 MR. CROSBY: That's over really two or
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          2  three years.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Okay, it's

          4  over two or three years, and it's not really giving

          5  any use and there are plans and people interested in

          6  using it for alternative means, wouldn't you applaud

          7  that and want to work with that?

          8                 See, I have the situation in my area

          9  in Ozone Park, where we have an abandoned Long

         10  Island Railroad Line, which hasn't been used since

         11  1953, which is slowly, surely crumbling, and it's

         12  costing Long Island Railroad a fortune where I have

         13  stores that would love to go there, shopping centers

         14  that would love to go in there, leaving the existing

         15  tracks up and repairing it and using it as a drawing

         16  card for small businesses to enhance the area, small

         17  boutiques, small restaurants, small cafes, are

         18  looking to go into that area, and that would be a

         19  plus for the community in general and for the future

         20  generation to use.

         21                 MR. CROSBY: As I said in my remarks,

         22  we are not opposed certainly to those proposals, and

         23  while we're under order to negotiate in good faith

         24  with the parties that would like to see the line

         25  demolished, we are also compelled to speak, and if
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          2  appropriate, negotiate with those who would like to

          3  preserve this through rail banking. So, we really

          4  are in a neutral position.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: And Council

          8  Member, there are people who are going to be

          9  testifying here from Rails to Trails, Rails

         10  Conservancy Program, you might want to -- I'm sure

         11  you can listen to their testimony. It may be

         12  relevant for your particular community, as well.

         13                 Thank you, Mr. Crosby.

         14                 MR. CROSBY: Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: The next panel,

         16  we are going to call a panel from the Friends of the

         17  High Line.

         18                 Robert Hamon, Olivia Douglas, Joshua

         19  David, Richard Emory and Stephen Desimone, so we

         20  will need a couple more chairs there.

         21                 We have been joined by Council Member

         22  Steve DiBrienza.

         23                 Council Member, welcome.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Thank you,

         25  Mr. Chairman. I apologize for interrupting. I'm not
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          2  feeling very well, as you can tell. I usually have a

          3  louder voice without the microphone than I have with

          4  it.

          5                 I would like to, at your earliest

          6  convenience, be recorded in the affirmative on the

          7  SLR that we will vote on, and just mention, although

          8  I will leave a staff person to take all the

          9  material, my interest in this larger issue we're

         10  discussing is the potential to create new and

         11  additional park land in the City.

         12                 I think that that's a very intriguing

         13  potential, and I'm very interested in it, and, so,

         14  I'm looking forward to reviewing everything.

         15  Although I probably won't stay with you here today,

         16  there is no less of an interest on my part, so I

         17  just wanted to let you know that.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you.

         19                 You guys can go forward in whatever

         20  order you would like.

         21                 Before you speak, whoever speaks

         22  needs to identify themselves for the record because

         23  we're being recorded, and, you know, these machines

         24  need to know that sort of thing.

         25                 MR. HAMOND: I will just introduce our
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          2  group and then speak.

          3                 My name is Robert Hamond, and Joshua

          4  David and I are co-founders of Friends of the High

          5  Line.

          6                 We have Olivia Douglas, Steve

          7  Desimone, who is our constructional engineer, and

          8  Richard Emory, our legal counsel.

          9                 I will provide a brief background of

         10  our group, a little history of the High Line, what

         11  our goals are and who we represent.

         12                 Friends of the High Line was

         13  co-founded two years ago by a group of residents who

         14  have always been intrigued by the elevated structure

         15  that ran through our neighborhood. After reading

         16  about the efforts of the City and a group of

         17  underlying property owners to tear it down, we

         18  founded friends of the High Line with the intent to

         19  preserve and create a redeveloped use for the

         20  structure.

         21                 As we discovered the history of the

         22  High Line, we found seeds for its reuse in the past.

         23  As the representative from CSX mentioned, the High

         24  Line was built in the thirties as a partnership

         25  between New York Central Railroad, the State and the
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          2  City with a combination of public and private funds.

          3                 The rail line used to actually run

          4  down Tenth Avenue and was known as "Death Avenue"

          5  because it was so dangerous, so many people were

          6  killed as it running at grade, so as part of a

          7  larger project known as the West Side Improvement

          8  Project, it was lifted up off the street.

          9                 As CSX said, it cost over $100

         10  million in 1930 dollars, which would today be equal

         11  to the cost of the Big Dig in Boston.

         12                 The final freight train carried three

         13  cart loads of frozen turkeys down in 1980, so it's

         14  only been inactive for about two decades.

         15                 A conditional abandonment order was

         16  issued by the surface transportation board in 1992,

         17  but those conditions have still not yet been met.

         18                 The proponents of demolition call

         19  themselves the Chelsea Property Owners, they own

         20  real estate beneath the structure and expect to see

         21  the value of their holdings rise if the High Line is

         22  demolished.

         23                 But if the High Line is demolished

         24  when the railroad right of way, which was created

         25  partly with City and State funds, will be
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          2  demolished, any public benefits made feasible by

          3  that right of way will vanish forever.

          4                 Although the High Line is unique, we

          5  found examples of abandoned elevated rail lines

          6  successfully being converted into public promenades.

          7                 The City of Paris converted a similar

          8  elevated rail viaduct near the Bastille Opera House

          9  and to pedestrian walkway called the Promenade

         10  Plantee, which opened in segments in 1988. Its three

         11  linear miles of pedestrian park has become one of

         12  the most popular parks in Paris year-round.

         13                 We recognize that there are many

         14  differences between the Promenade Plantee and the

         15  High Line, but we see it as an important example of

         16  the City using industrial infrastructure to create a

         17  public amenity that preserves the character of the

         18  neighborhood, while at the same time encouraging

         19  appropriate development.

         20                 There are also examples here in the

         21  US and a mechanism of the federal government to turn

         22  rail tracks into trails.

         23                 Over 10,000 miles have successfully

         24  been converted into the Rails to Trails Program, and

         25  federal transportation dollars are even set aside
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          2  for funding these projects.

          3                 Although these funds will not cover

          4  the entire cost of our project, it can contribute a

          5  significant amount.

          6                 I want to make the point that these

          7  funds are not available for regular park projects,

          8  like the Hudson River Park, so the High Line would

          9  not be competing for these monies.

         10                 Rails to Trails Conservancy will

         11  speak more about this process.

         12                 Our goal is for New York not to miss

         13  this opportunity. We're not for just the

         14  preservation of the structure, and we agree with the

         15  demolition group that it should not continue to sit

         16  abandoned.

         17                 We want to create a new use for it

         18  and give the public access to this great urban

         19  corridor.

         20                 We believe the High Line could

         21  successfully be converted into a public promenade

         22  and we believe the City and the local communities

         23  should decide its ultimate use.

         24                 There are a variety of different

         25  options, a walkway, gardens, outdoor sculpture

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            30

          1  COMMITTEE ON STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2  areas, lightrail connecting the new Penn Station and

          3  the Javits Center.

          4                 The Design Trust for Public Space is

          5  in the process of conducting a training study to

          6  investigate possible uses of the High Line.

          7                 They will talk more about that

          8  planning study to be completed in September.

          9                 We ask the City and State not to rush

         10  towards demolition until this opportunity is fully

         11  explored.

         12                 Components of the High Line have

         13  called our plans unrealistic and its a good idea but

         14  it will never happen in this City.

         15                 What makes our plan realistic and

         16  doable is the broad base of support we have received

         17  from the community, civic groups, City planners, and

         18  elected officials. We are not just a group of

         19  isolated community activists. We have a broad

         20  constituency of people who want to see this for New

         21  York and can help make it happen.

         22                 I just want to briefly mention, we've

         23  had over 75 organizations, civic groups and elected

         24  officials endorse our plan, I just want to mention

         25  the ones that have provided testimony that will be
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          2  submitted to the Council.

          3                 Among the local supporters, School

          4  Board District 2, Save Gansevoort Market, Hell's

          5  Kitchen Neighborhood Association, Chelsea Owners and

          6  Tenants Neighborhood for Preservation, 15th Street

          7  Block Association, Far West Chelsea Neighborhood

          8  Association, Chelsea Village Partnership, and

          9  hundreds of residents of Community Board 2 and 4 who

         10  volunteer their time and money to build this

         11  organization.

         12                 Later you will also hear from

         13  Community Board members who have concerns about this

         14  project, and we want to work with them to address

         15  their concerns. Civic groups and City Planners that

         16  have endorsed the project, including Municipal Arts

         17  Society, Design Trust, the Parks Council,

         18  Transportation Alternatives and Neighborhood for

         19  Open Space.

         20                 Leaders in thoughtful City Planning

         21  include Rory Price, founder of Battery Park

         22  Conservancy; Elizabeth Rogers, founder of the

         23  Central Park Conservancy; Mandy Burden, City

         24  Planning Commissioner; and Linden Miller, Public

         25  Garden Designer. National groups include Trusts for
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          2  Public Land; Rails to Trails Conservancy.

          3                 We've seen a strong base of support

          4  from local businesses and property owners, including

          5  Martha Stewart, Flora Hunt, Double Click, Botino,

          6  Red Cat, La Luncheonette, Lot 61, among others.

          7                 The art community is another

          8  important factor in the renaissance of this area and

          9  one of our biggest support bases. I am not going to

         10  go into all their supporters but they include

         11  Creative Time, Alliance for the Arts, Paula Cooper,

         12  Matthew Marks, The Kitchen, Deborah Bell, Barbara

         13  Moore. The architect community, institutional

         14  support from the AIA and the Architectural Lead,

         15  including some of the City's leading architects,

         16  Robert Stern, Richard Meier, Hugh Hardy, Gary

         17  Hendell, Peter Willright and Richard Pluntz.

         18                 I also want to finally acknowledge

         19  the leadership of elected officials in the City who

         20  have all provided testimony for this hearing. US

         21  Senator Hillary Clinton, representative Jerry

         22  Nadler. A special thanks to City Councilperson

         23  Christine Quinn. Manhattan Borough President

         24  Virginia Fields, Public Advocate Mark Green, State

         25  Senator Tom Duane, State Senator Eric Schneiderman,
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          2  State Assemblymember Deborah Glick.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: We will hear the

          5  whole testimony. There is just another Committee

          6  hearing next door, so I'm going to have to go and

          7  vote on that Committee, as well. But just go ahead

          8  and give your whole testimony and then we will

          9  reserve questions for the panel at the end of the

         10  testimony, okay?

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 MS. DOUGLAS: Good afternoon. My name

         13  is Olivia Douglas, and I am a member of Friends of

         14  the High Line.

         15                 I am employed by a major New York

         16  State development firm, with extensive experience

         17  designing, costing and constructing buildings in New

         18  York and other American cities. I have been with the

         19  firm for close to seven years.

         20                 While I bring my professional

         21  experience to Friends of the High Line's efforts, I

         22  am here in a personal capacity only. My employer

         23  owns no property and has no development plans for

         24  the area near the High Line.

         25                 While my firm has never redeveloped
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          2  abandoned railways, our work does allow us to

          3  identify and evaluate important development issues

          4  related to reusing the High Line.

          5                 I will tackle three of these today:

          6  Structural integrity; access; and projected costs.

          7                 Regarding the structural integrity of

          8  the High Line, we recognize this is a fundamental

          9  issue, and understand that any interested party

         10  would insist on being satisfied that the High Line

         11  is structurally sound.

         12                 As you will hear from our structural

         13  consultant, Stephen Desimone of Desimone Consulting

         14  Engineers in a couple minutes, the High Line was

         15  constructed to carry four fully-loaded freight

         16  trains simultaneously and was envisioned to last for

         17  hundreds of years.

         18                 This does not mean there have been no

         19  nuisance issues with the High Line. Drainage

         20  problems and weather-related concrete issues need to

         21  continue to be addressed, but pose no danger to the

         22  community, as long as they are attended to.

         23                 In fact, it's the pigeon droppings

         24  that community members complain about the most, and

         25  this, too, can be addressed simply with netting.
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          2                 As an owner of the High Line since

          3  1999, CSX has spent a million dollars correcting

          4  lapsed maintenance issues, and as a result there are

          5  currently no violations and no litigation

          6  outstanding on the High Line.

          7                 Attesting to the High Line structural

          8  soundness is the fact that the Chelsea Car Wash at

          9  14th Street and Tenth Avenue constructed a new

         10  facility directly below the High Line structure, and

         11  used the High Line as its roof and support.

         12                 I will submit these boards that show

         13  the Chelsea Car Wash and how it incorporates the

         14  High Line into its structure.

         15                 A full structural survey of the High

         16  Line would cost about $200,000, and would be a

         17  prerequisite for any reuse plan for the High Line.

         18                 Friends of the High Line is also

         19  aware that access is a critical component of our

         20  plans for reuse of the High Line as a public space.

         21                 We are aware of the challenges posed

         22  by handicapped accessibility and egress laws in our

         23  overall planning. We have identified potential

         24  access points on the City, State and private land.

         25  Our discussions with several private land owners
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          2  have been encouraging. They recognize that providing

          3  public access to a redeveloped High Line will

          4  greatly increase the value of their real estate.

          5                 Much more discussion is necessary and

          6  we're aware that coming up with a feasible plan will

          7  require us to deal with many logistical issues,

          8  especially security and safety, but we want to

          9  acknowledge the critical nature of the Access Plan

         10  and the fact that it's likely to be one of the more

         11  costly items in our plan.

         12                 Many contractors have declared that

         13  the cost of Friends of the High Line's general plan

         14  to preserve and reuse the High Line is prohibitive

         15  or that we have no handle on potential costs.

         16                 We are here today to convince you

         17  otherwise. An exact specific cost cannot be

         18  presented at this time because there is not a

         19  specific detailed plan that can be priced. Coming up

         20  with that specific plan is an upcoming step in our

         21  planning process, one that will involve the

         22  community and encourage designers and architects to

         23  respond creatively to this unique structure.

         24                 However, we can project that a

         25  general reuse plan will involve three major cost
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          2  categories: A full structural restoration, the

          3  construction of access points, and programming, for

          4  example, landscape and paving.

          5                 A conservative estimate for a full

          6  structural restoration, as projected by Stephen

          7  Desimone, would cost approximately $40 per square

          8  foot.

          9                 The surface area of the High Line is

         10  approximately 300,000 square feet, therefore, the

         11  structural restoration would be $12 million, about

         12  the same amount that is being quoted for the

         13  demolition cost.

         14                 It certainly makes you ask why we

         15  would rush to demolition when for the same cost the

         16  High Line could be fully restored.

         17                 As to access points, we estimate that

         18  they would cost an average of $2 million. At five

         19  access points, one every four blocks, that would be

         20  $10 million.

         21                 And, finally, the programming.

         22  Depending on how intensive it is, would be around

         23  $60 per square foot, or approximately $18 million.

         24  With miscellaneous costs, and contingency, that's

         25  still under $50 million. If light rail or more

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            38

          1  COMMITTEE ON STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2  actual development on the High Line were to be

          3  selected as a desirable use, the cost would, of

          4  course, be higher.

          5                 As a comparable, it's useful to look

          6  at the Promenade Plantee. The Promenade Plantee

          7  total development cost was over 100 million;

          8  however, much of this cost was allocated to the

          9  construction of adjacent housing. Forty million in

         10  1990 dollars was actually spent on the rail line

         11  itself, which had a very intensive landscaping

         12  program.

         13                 The Promenade Plantee is also an

         14  instructive example from a planning perspective. The

         15  project was completed in phases over five years,

         16  which made funding less of a burden on an annual

         17  basis.

         18                 Sourcing funds will no doubt be one

         19  of the major challenges to the High Line's

         20  redevelopment. Potential sources include a

         21  combination of public funds, City, state and

         22  federal, and private sources.

         23                 As Robbie mentioned, unlike other

         24  park-type projects, like the Hudson River Park, the

         25  High Line is eligible for transportation-related
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          2  funding, T 21 funds and State conversion

          3  allocations.

          4                 This will mean for at least part of

          5  the budget the High Line would not be competitive

          6  with other important New York Open Space projects.

          7                 Federal transportation programs have

          8  allocated over $4 billion to bike and trailway

          9  projects throughout the United States since 1990.

         10                 In addition, as Chelsea increasingly

         11  becomes the headquarters of large firms, many of

         12  which support the High Line, it is also possible

         13  that corporate contributions could be a significant

         14  source of funding.

         15                 Thank you very much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay, before you

         17  go on actually, we're just going to do a little bit

         18  of Committee business here.

         19                 The Committee is today considering

         20  State legislation Resolution 47, which is an act to

         21  amend the Administrative Code of the City of New

         22  York in relation to the continuance of retirement

         23  allowance upon election to public office.

         24                 This is an SLR which the Committee

         25  passed last year, but unfortunately the State didn't
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          2  act finally upon, and since no one has signed up to

          3  testify on this particular matter, I'm just going to

          4  ask, is the Clerk here? No. I'm going to ask the

          5  counsel to call the roll.

          6                 Oh, the clerk is here. The clerk

          7  arrives. We should let the clerk call the roll. The

          8  clerk does it so well.

          9                 And I want to note in addition that

         10  we've been joined by other members of the Committee.

         11  We've been joined by Council Member Pinkett, Council

         12  Member Ken Fisher, Council Member Mary Pinkett,

         13  Council Member John Sabini, Council Member James

         14  Oddo, and I think that's everybody.

         15                 So, on SLR 47, the Chair is urging a

         16  yes vote.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Miller.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Aye.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Pinkett.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: DiBrienza.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: I vote aye.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Sabini.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Mr. Chairman,

         25  I just would like to be excused to explain my vote.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Of course.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: I just want to

          4  apologize for not being here for the beginning of

          5  the meeting and for Mr. Crosby's testimony, since

          6  CSX has not been the best of landlords in my

          7  district. But I was needed for a quorum next door to

          8  vote on Land Use matters, and in about 30 minutes I

          9  have to leave for a meeting with Commissioner Stern,

         10  it's one of those days. But I vote aye on this

         11  matter, and I beg your indulgence for my not full

         12  attendance today.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Fisher.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FISHER: Aye.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Dilan.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MALAVE-DILAN: Aye.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Stabile.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: I have to

         21  recuse myself, excuse myself from this vote.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Oddo.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Yes.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Pinkett.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Thank you. I
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          2  vote aye.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay, we can keep

          4  the vote open in case any other members arrive, but

          5  call the results as of now.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: The vote now

          7  stands at seven in the affirmative, none in the

          8  negative, no abstentions and one recuse. The vote is

          9  still open.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay, thank you.

         11                 Thank you, all. And please, go ahead.

         12                 MS. DOUGLAS: I just now would like to

         13  introduce Stephen Desimone, our structural engineer.

         14                 MR. DESIMONE: Council members, my

         15  name is Steve Desimone, I am a principal with a

         16  structural engineering firm, Desimone Consulting

         17  Engineers, located here in New York.

         18                 In the past we've been involved in

         19  several restoration projects, most notably the

         20  restoration of the New Amsterdam Theater at Times

         21  Square.

         22                 I am not a friend of the High Line.

         23  That's not derogatory. My whole purpose, I was

         24  engaged by the Friends to perform an evaluation of

         25  the existing structure with regard to the
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          2  feasibility of said structure being reused for the

          3  concepts that Friends of High Line has put forth.

          4                 The condition that anybody who has

          5  walked past or underneath the High Line structure

          6  exhibits conditions of spalled concrete,

          7  deteriorated drain pipes, most of the major

          8  structural emblems of the High Line are in actually

          9  fairly decent shape. The gentleman from CSX

         10  testified that some $1 million had previously been

         11  spent to do repairs of those conditions to prevent

         12  concrete from falling to the street, those repairs

         13  are intact. They do need to continue to monitor the

         14  conditions and effect repairs as necessary.

         15                 The conditions as described, and as

         16  evident, are very similar to the conditions present

         17  at the FDR, the West Side Highway. It is really an

         18  ongoing maintenance issue, as opposed to an issue

         19  that affects the overall structural integrity of the

         20  High Line structure.

         21                 It should also be noted that the

         22  structure itself had been designed to support the

         23  weight of several heavily loaded freight and rail

         24  cars. Currently the building, or the structure

         25  itself, is really unloaded, and the loads that would
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          2  be imparted on the structure itself would be a mere

          3  fraction of what the total design load of that High

          4  Line rail system.

          5                 Just briefly, in conclusion, because

          6  really what I'm saying is not all that different

          7  from what the gentleman from CSX has said, the

          8  decision to save the High Line really should not be

          9  a structural one. I think that while there are

         10  conditions that at first blush look somewhat

         11  distracting and disturbing, they are being taken

         12  care of as part of CSX' ongoing maintenance, and the

         13  decision really is one that needs to be made clearly

         14  by the Council and the City of New York as to what

         15  is good for the constituency and the people that

         16  live in the neighborhood.

         17                 But I don't believe at this point

         18  it's a structure in danger of collapse or one that

         19  really needs to be taken down at this point.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Mr. David.

         21                 MR. DAVID: My name is Joshua David.

         22  I'm one of the founding members of Friends of the

         23  High Line. I live one block from the High Line on

         24  West 21st Street at Ninth Avenue. I've lived there

         25  for 15 years.
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          2                 I have come here today because I want

          3  to help your committee, the City and the State

          4  better understand the tremendous opportunity offered

          5  by the High Line, and the great loss we will suffer

          6  if the structure is torn down.

          7                 Elevated above the bustle of traffic,

          8  some seven acres of open space sit atop the High

          9  Line's rail deck. That's quite a bit more than the

         10  acreage of Bryant Park. Seven acres of open space

         11  near the very center of Manhattan, a way to travel

         12  26 blocks without once worrying about the dangers of

         13  crossing an intersection at street level. It could

         14  be the dictionary definition of the word

         15  opportunity.

         16                 We don't even have to build it. It's

         17  there, waiting for us to take advantage of it.

         18                 To walk atop the High Line is

         19  breathtaking. Much of the rail deck is about 30 feet

         20  wide, but in places it opens up to double that

         21  width. Where it runs close to the Hudson you can see

         22  the River and hear the gulls. Where it runs through

         23  the center of City blocks, you are soothed by the

         24  rustle of grasses and bird song. There is a sense of

         25  refuge and quiet up there, unlike any other City.
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          2                 The skyscrapers rise up at a regal

          3  distance in Midtown. Between buildings it feels like

          4  a protected secret garden.

          5                 At street crossings you are given an

          6  expensive elevated perspective on the cuts that lead

          7  from river to river.

          8                 There is no other vantage point in

          9  Manhattan where you can see the City this way.

         10                 But this vast, tranquil unused space

         11  is currently unaccessible to neighborhoods through

         12  which it passes, and this in a community board that

         13  ranks third from the bottom in New York City for

         14  open space.

         15                 Through a rail trail conversion, the

         16  City and State of New York can open this unique

         17  urban space to everyone. At the same time, we would

         18  be creating a one of a kind cultural, historical and

         19  architectural corridor with great potential as a

         20  tool for economic development.

         21                 If you look at the High Line's path

         22  on the map, the opportunity is clear. From

         23  Gansevoort Street, where exciting new businesses

         24  have set up in the venerable meat packing district,

         25  up through West Chelsea where art dealers have
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          2  created spectacular exhibition spaces in warehouse

          3  buildings alongside auto mechanics, metal workers

          4  and stone cutters, leading to the Jacob Javits

          5  Convention Center and the much discussed

          6  redevelopment site at the Third Street yards.

          7                 Friends of the High Line does not

          8  pretend to know what redevelopment would be best for

          9  the rail yard site, but we do know that whatever is

         10  built there, the High Line, preserved and reused as

         11  an elevated promenade, would make the redevelopment

         12  much more intriguing and successful.

         13                 Picture it. At 30th Street the High

         14  Line almost touches the new Hudson River Park. It

         15  does the same at 14th Street, offering potential

         16  loop itineraries that would compliment the river

         17  park with cultural and art uses.

         18                 Another great link comes from a spur

         19  to the east which ends just a block away from the

         20  future Penn Station. From there the High Line runs

         21  down through the thriving blocks of Chelsea to the

         22  meat packing district. How can we fail to take

         23  advantage of this?

         24                 The opportunity might not have been

         25  obvious ten years ago when a conditional abandonment
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          2  order was negotiated, but in the decade that is

          3  passed, the area has grown in ways that make the

          4  potential of the High Line impossible to ignore.

          5                 Handsome industrial buildings

          6  alongside the High Line are filled on weekends and

          7  weekdays with New Yorkers and tourists who come from

          8  all over the world to see splendid cultural display,

          9  the creativity, is what it is famous four. The High

         10  Line is part of everything here. It is part of the

         11  West Side's history of industry, transportation and

         12  hard creative work. It's part of the West Side's

         13  current eminence as a hub of style, art, fashion and

         14  information exchange.

         15                 There are people who want the High

         16  Line to come down who claim the structure is a

         17  blight on the neighborhood, but if it's a blight,

         18  why do beautiful restaurants, shops and galleries

         19  open up one after the next yards from the structure?

         20                 Such a concentration of upscales

         21  establishments have opened around the High Line in

         22  the last few years that a few residents are even

         23  concerned that the area is becoming too affluent. If

         24  this is blight, it is the kind of blight that other

         25  cities pay to create.
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          2                 What small blight that does exist

          3  around the High Line is caused by speculation. Some

          4  lots sit empty as owners await zoning changes and

          5  redevelopment plans that will allow lucrative new

          6  uses.

          7                 Almost every single block through

          8  which the High Line passes is now being considered

          9  for either a preservation or a rezoning plan, or a

         10  large scale redevelopment.

         11                 These blocks are connected

         12  architecturally, historically and physically by the

         13  structure of the High Line. The High Line should be

         14  part of all plans for these blocks. It is the spine

         15  of this part of town.

         16                 A few people claim that the High Line

         17  itself stands in the way of growth, but the High

         18  Line's unique role in the growth of this area has

         19  been since the 1930s that buildings could be and

         20  should be built around it, to include a

         21  transportation corridor running directly into the

         22  building.

         23                 This was originally seen as a great

         24  opportunity to load and unload freight without

         25  causing a bit of traffic or danger in the street.
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          2  The grandest buildings west of Tenth Avenue were

          3  built to take advantage of this opportunity, and

          4  it's still an opportunity today.

          5                 Buildings can and should be built to

          6  incorporate the High Line. Imagine apartment

          7  buildings, office buildings, design studios, even

          8  convention centers, all of these could benefit from

          9  a pedestrian promenade incorporated into their

         10  structure.

         11                 Many of our nation's finest

         12  architects have recognized the visionary design

         13  opportunity created by the High Line. It's why

         14  Robert Stern, Richard Meier, Hugh Hardy, Steven

         15  Hall, Gary Handell, and many other architects are

         16  Friends of the High Line.

         17                 We must also remember who intelligent

         18  preservation efforts have helped New York City

         19  prosper. Look at the excitement and tourism dollars

         20  brought to New York City by the renovated Grand

         21  Central Station and by the restoration of Broadway

         22  theaters in Times Square. Consider the excitement

         23  surrounding the move of Penn Station into the Post

         24  Office building, restoring a sense of the glory that

         25  was lost when the original Penn Station was
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          2  demolished.

          3                 The High Line may not be made of

          4  stone, it might not have been designed by McKin,

          5  Meade and White (phonetic), but like the old Penn

          6  Station, it is an emblem of New York might as a

          7  transportation hub and a working city.

          8                 With the rail banking program our

          9  government has given us an amazing opportunity. The

         10  power to transform rail easements, easements that

         11  could never be produced in today's market, into

         12  public spaces that benefit society as a whole. To

         13  turn our back on this opportunity for public good

         14  will only reward a few property owners, most of whom

         15  bought their land at prices that reflected the High

         16  Line's easement.

         17                 If the High Line is rail banked, we

         18  can add seven acres of open space to a park starved

         19  neighborhood and create a cultural corridor the

         20  world would envy.

         21                 We need to stop the rush towards

         22  demolition of a historic structure that offers New

         23  York City so many exciting possibilities.

         24                 Let's make our future plans for the

         25  West Side of Manhattan benefit the many, not the
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          2  few.

          3                 Thank you very much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you for

          5  your testimony.

          6                 We have an awful lot of people signed

          7  up to testify, so we're going to try to keep our

          8  questions to a minimum. I just want to say, to bring

          9  to the attention of those in the audience and the

         10  members of the Committee, that you brought a number

         11  of pictures and displays and I would encourage

         12  people, if they get up and have a look at them in

         13  their time, because it is difficult, having had the

         14  opportunity to go up on the High Line myself,

         15  difficult in a setting like this to convey the

         16  possibilities that this space contains, and I think

         17  the pictures do -- you guys have done your best, but

         18  also the pictures are an important part of that.

         19                 The only question I had in terms of

         20  this, I know there is concern about the Hudson River

         21  Park and its construction nearby, could you kind of

         22  just address that a little bit, and also just

         23  comment a little bit as some of you are residents,

         24  do you feel that this is an area that suffers from

         25  too much open space or not?

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            53

          1  COMMITTEE ON STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2                 MR. HAMOND: We were joking this

          3  morning about coming up with the top ten reasons to

          4  tear down the High Line, you know, we don't want

          5  more open space, we don't want the Hudson River Park

          6  connected to the community. But I think, you know,

          7  we see the High Line as a compliment to the Hudson

          8  River Park. We think it could really tie it into the

          9  community as it ties into the waterfront. We think

         10  it's not competitive in terms of a lot of the funds,

         11  that the High Line would be available for, as I

         12  mentioned, it would not be available to the park

         13  because it is not part of a transportation

         14  infrastructure in a Rails to Trails Program. And,

         15  you know, I think it's a matter of you can have

         16  both, it's not a matter of you have to pick one.

         17  Again, it's a community that traditionally was

         18  industrial and did not need a lot of park space. So,

         19  that nature is changing and even with the Hudson

         20  River Park it will be underserved by open space.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Two other,

         22  hopefully, quick questions.

         23                 One is, with regard to the Rails to

         24  Trials Program, the Interim Trail use, where are

         25  you? Have you undertaken any efforts with regard to
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          2  that program? Where are you with regard to that

          3  program at this point?

          4                 MR. HAMOND: In addition to Richard

          5  Emory, we've also retained the counsel of Covington

          6  Burling to help us navigate through that process.

          7                 We do need the support of the City

          8  and the State, we think, to make that process work.

          9  And, you know, that's why we see this hearing as a

         10  first step in obtaining that support.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: And, finally, if

         12  the demolition order were to be resolved in terms of

         13  the federal role in that, are there local

         14  environmental and land use review processes in your

         15  estimation that would have to be satisfied as well

         16  before that could go forth? Maybe you want to have

         17  your counsel answer that.

         18                 MR. EMORY: It's very clear that a

         19  number of steps would have to be taken at a local

         20  level, and that the steps, a couple of steps that

         21  have already been taken by the City are quite

         22  controversial and probably subject to challenge.

         23                 We think that obviously a great deal

         24  more is needed than the action of the STD, because

         25  this Council and potentially other bodies have
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          2  necessary approval process to go through.

          3                 We think that the City is a long way

          4  from demolishing this and we going to see to it that

          5  every i is dotted and t is crossed before anything

          6  like this can even begin to proceed.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: I would just note

          8  that the fact that the City refused to come, or the

          9  State refused to come to me indicates a lack of

         10  seriousness on their part in terms of receiving

         11  those types of approval.

         12                 Do any of the members of the

         13  Committee, Council members, do you have any

         14  questions for the panel, before we go on to the next

         15  panel?

         16                 Yes, Council Member Quinn.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

         18                 I think it was, Joshua, when you were

         19  testifying, you mentioned how buildings could be

         20  built to incorporate the High Line and I just want

         21  to mention that I was recently getting a briefing

         22  from the New York Jets Corporation about a small

         23  building they would like to build on the West Side

         24  of Manhattan, and much to my surprise, they had

         25  incorporated an entrance to the High Line.
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          2                 That I think is less, some people say

          3  the High Line becoming a park is not likely to

          4  happen and I think it's far more likely than that

          5  stadium, but I was just surprised that it had gotten

          6  to that level that they had even incorporated.

          7                 But that aside, you know, we talked a

          8  lot about the acreage and how much that would add to

          9  the acreage in the area. Can one of you all talk

         10  about how wide it is? Because I know one of the

         11  things when I talk to people about the High Line,

         12  they kind of vision, think about the subway tracks,

         13  do you know what I mean? Because that's the type of

         14  railroad tracks people are most frequently in

         15  contact with, and they think like, what are we going

         16  to do, or walk single file, you know, back and

         17  forth. So, if you could expand on the width.

         18                 MR. HAMOND: The width, it varies

         19  because there are different spurs, but it all points

         20  there is two tracks. There is between, I think the

         21  average width is 45 but at some places it's 50 and

         22  60 feet wide. I mean some of these pictures give you

         23  an idea of how wide and the different kinds of uses.

         24  What's exciting is there could be multiple uses on

         25  the High Line. I mean, you could have a walkway and
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          2  a sculpture garden. You could conceivably have a

          3  light rail and a walkway. It's wide enough for

          4  multiple uses.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay, thank you

          6  all very much for your testimony. We have been

          7  joined by the President of the Borough of Manhattan,

          8  which we're pleased by. Virginia Fields, if you

          9  would like to come forward and testify, we'd be very

         10  grateful.

         11                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT FIELDS: Thank you.

         12  Thank you, Mr. Chairman, members of the Committee on

         13  Federal and State Legislation. I am very pleased

         14  that you are having this hearing today, and,

         15  clearly, it's very timely, in terms of what I know

         16  you've heard and what you will continue to hear. I

         17  have been joined by Bob Kulikoski, who is here in

         18  two capacities, actually he's my director of budget

         19  in the Manhattan Borough President's Office, but

         20  today he is here as one of the leading friends and

         21  supporters of the High Line.

         22                 A crumbling steel dinosaur? No. The

         23  High Line is a unique piece of New York City and its

         24  history, and that is why I am here today to voice

         25  support for Resolution 1747, which calls on the
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          2  Governor, the Mayor and the Metropolitan

          3  Transportation Authority, to take all necessary

          4  steps to rail bank the High Line, under the Federal

          5  Rails to Trails Program.

          6                 This rail banking action is

          7  important, because as you have heard, and I know

          8  will continue to hear throughout the afternoon, it

          9  will preserve both the structure and the railroad

         10  easement that comes with it and allow interim use as

         11  public open space, a commodity clearly that is

         12  sorely needed in the Borough of Manhattan.

         13                 Also, preservation of the High Line

         14  is the very least on an interim basis will allow a

         15  logical planning sequence to ensure. If the railroad

         16  is demolished, it will never be rebuilt.  And along

         17  with this easement that would permit possible future

         18  reuse as a transportation facility will also be lost

         19  forever.

         20                 This may compromise future transit

         21  options on the far west side, which will be

         22  important as the area develops further.

         23                 Clearly, we don't want to repeat the

         24  story of the East Side's loss of the elevated trains

         25  and the long battle to build a Second Avenue subway,
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          2  which fortunately, we are seeing some movement on,

          3  but we don't have to go that route.

          4                 As many of you know, certainly the

          5  Council Members in Manhattan, I have commissioned a

          6  study to look at potential uses for the area of the

          7  West Side Rail Yard. That should be completed within

          8  the next several months.

          9                 I am truly concerned and interested

         10  in ensuring that this final frontier in the middle

         11  of Manhattan benefits from adequate planning,

         12  including all necessary community involvement. And

         13  part of this planning should include the future of

         14  the High Line, and I have asked my consultant team

         15  to meet with the Friends of the High Line to ensure

         16  as much input as possible.

         17                 So, the purpose of this planning is

         18  to lay out future uses and to ensure that they are

         19  consistent with the overall plan for the area.

         20                 We may look to such cities as

         21  Pittsburgh, home of the only urban rail trail in

         22  this country, and one which is purely recreational.

         23  Or we may look to a similar project, which I think

         24  was mentioned previously, in Paris, that is not only

         25  recreational but has spurred economic development as
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          2  well.

          3                 In Paris it is the Promenade Plantee,

          4  perhaps we can take a field trip there to check it

          5  out.

          6                 This was an abandoned elevated

          7  railroad that is now a three mile long public park

          8  and walkway, and beneath the viaduct house in the

          9  arches are series of commercial spaces that are

         10  devoted to arts, crafts and similar industries.

         11                 Picture in your mind's eye the retail

         12  and restaurant space under the 59th Street Bridge

         13  here in Manhattan. The Paris project also brought

         14  with it the development of much needed office and

         15  commercial space. Over 1,000 new housing units in

         16  economic revitalization to the area.

         17                 I believe these two projects are just

         18  two interesting examples of what can be done, again,

         19  depending on community needs, interests, and

         20  certainly one that will ensure that the broadest set

         21  of options is considered.

         22                 While it's probably still too early

         23  to lay out specific uses for the High Line, I remain

         24  dedicated to the creation of open space, park land

         25  and the preservation of the Borough's unique
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          2  architectural artifacts and history.

          3                 The bottom line is that this first

          4  step of interim rail trail designation is essential

          5  for the process to proceed. And once the threat of

          6  demolition has been removed, I believe that we can

          7  all work together to ensure that a plan acceptable

          8  to all is achieved.

          9                 And, therefore, I reiterate my

         10  support for this resolution, and I urge the

         11  Committee to take favorable action on it and let's

         12  begin to do the necessary work to make this a

         13  reality.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you, Madam

         15  Borough President.

         16                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT FIELDS: Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: We appreciate

         18  both your sentiment and your testimony and I know

         19  you share with me the commitment, and this City and

         20  this Council, the commitment to taking a close look,

         21  and I think the important point that you make is

         22  this should be a planning process which should be

         23  involved, the community, the city, the state, at all

         24  levels. And I know you share my disappointment, but

         25  the City and the State chose not to come to this
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          2  hearing and express any opinions on it, but we are

          3  resolved as you are to make sure that this does

          4  undergo a full public review and that the proper

          5  thing that is done is in the best interest in the

          6  entire City and the Borough of Manhattan.

          7                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT FIELDS: Thank you,

          8  Mr. Chairman.

          9                 Thank you, members of the Committee.

         10  Thank you, Chris.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you.

         12                 The next thing we're going to have is

         13  a panel, the Honorable Manfred Ohrenstein, Michael

         14  Lefkowitz, and Doug Sarini, of Edison Properties.

         15                 Gentlemen, please identify yourselves

         16  for the record and give us your best shot.

         17                 MR. OHRENSTEIN: Manfred Ohrenstein, I

         18  represent Edison Properties.

         19                 MR. SARINI: Douglas Sarini, with

         20  Edison Properties, and also president of Chelsea

         21  Property Owners.

         22                 MR. LEFKOWITZ: Michael Lefkowitz of

         23  Edison Properties.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay, you can do

         25  it in whatever order you would like.
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          2                 MR. SARINI: Good afternoon. As I

          3  indicated, my name is Douglas Sarini, Vice President

          4  of Edison Properties, and President of Chelsea

          5  Property Owners, Inc.

          6                 Chelsea Property Owners was

          7  incorporated over 16 years ago when at the time

          8  Conrail owned the elevated High Line and was trying

          9  to rid itself of the liability of maintaining it.

         10                 Conrail at the time filed its own

         11  abandonment application and in an attempt to sell

         12  the High Line to an individual for $10.

         13                 Chelsea Property Owners opposed this

         14  abandonment application, and the ICC determined the

         15  purchaser was not bonafide and financially

         16  responsible.

         17                 Conrail then attempted to find other

         18  purchasers for the High Line. At the same time,

         19  Chelsea Property Owners filed its own Third Party

         20  Abandonment Application at the ICC.

         21                 During this period of litigation, the

         22  High Line was studied extensively for all potential

         23  uses.

         24                 The Mayor's Office on Rail Freight

         25  studied the possibility of using the High Line to
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          2  remove freight from Manhattan. This was determined

          3  not to be feasible.

          4                 The Department of City Planning

          5  studied the possibility of using a High Line as a

          6  transportation resource for the west side of

          7  Manhattan.

          8                 To their conclusion, published in the

          9  West Side Transit Way Planning and Feasibility

         10  Study, which I have a copy of here, determined there

         11  was no potential use for the High Line.

         12                 The Department of Transportation, the

         13  MTA, and the Transit Authority studied the High Line

         14  for potential mass transit use and determined the

         15  High Line was not feasible as a transportation

         16  resource.

         17                 The New York State Department of

         18  Transportation studied the High Line and came to the

         19  same conclusion.

         20                 All of these City and State Agencies,

         21  whose expertise is in transportation, are not wrong

         22  when they conclude the High Line is not a

         23  transportation resource for the City of New York.

         24                 These experts are not wrong when they

         25  conclude demolition of the High Line would be in the
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          2  best interest of the City of New York.

          3                 The MTA, the Convention Center, the

          4  New York State Department of Transportation, along

          5  with Chelsea Property Owners are all litigants

          6  seeking abandonment certificate from the Surface

          7  Transportation Board.

          8                 In other testimony you will hear

          9  about all the legal proceedings related to the High

         10  Line.

         11                 The following issues must be

         12  understood by this Committee.

         13                 The High Line structure is a

         14  significant liability. The current efforts of CSX

         15  are designed to remove themselves of this liability.

         16                 The City of New York will not put

         17  themselves in a position of assuming liability for

         18  the High Line.

         19                 The Friends of the High Line will

         20  never be determined to be bonafide or financially

         21  responsible under the criteria of the Surface

         22  Transportation Board.

         23                 The railroad company owns no land as

         24  part of this structure. Any access to this structure

         25  would have to be purchased from private property
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          2  owners. No private property owner would be

          3  interested in providing access.

          4                 The cost of rehabilitating this

          5  structure for any purpose will be in the hundreds of

          6  millions of dollars.

          7                 The existing High Line is an unsafe

          8  structure, with the potential of causing serious

          9  harm to property owners, employees and pedestrians.

         10                 A court-ordered inspection,

         11  engineering inspection, done by the company Hardesty

         12  and Hanover, which I also have a copy of, indicates

         13  that case.

         14                 The High Line is an eyesore, blocking

         15  views to the waterfront.

         16                 In conclusion, if this Committee

         17  supports the rail banking of the High Line, it will

         18  recommending the City of New York assume a liability

         19  in hundreds of millions of dollars.

         20                 It will be recommending the City of

         21  New York take away public space funding from other

         22  parts of the City and invest them on the west side

         23  of Manhattan, one block away from what all of us

         24  hope will be a world class waterfront park.

         25                 It will be recommending a position
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          2  contrary to every other City and State agency that

          3  has the expertise and has studied this issue.

          4                 I believe it would be irresponsible

          5  for this Committee to support the rail banking of

          6  the High Line, unless it totally understood the

          7  legal and liability issues related to this

          8  structure.

          9                 Once that was done, I believe this

         10  Committee would come to the same conclusion as

         11  former Mayor Dinkins, Mayor Giuliani, and all the

         12  City and State agencies of record in recommending

         13  the demolition of the High Line.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you.

         16                 We will just complete the panel, and

         17  then if we have questions, we will ask them after

         18  the presentations.

         19                 MR. LEFKOWITZ: Good afternoon. My

         20  name is Michael Lefkowitz, and I am General Counsel

         21  of Edison Properties.

         22                 To begin with, I'd like to applaud

         23  this Committee for actually undertaking a study of

         24  the High Line, and I urge you to do a complete study

         25  of the High Line. Unfortunately, we're not in a
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          2  position to be able to be poetic about the potential

          3  future of the High Line and what can be built there,

          4  we're actually here to discuss the nuts and bolts of

          5  what has gone on and what will go on with the High

          6  Line.

          7                 Mr. Sarini has told you, and the

          8  exhibits we are distributing to you will show you

          9  that the plan for rehabilitating this line has been

         10  examined by very knowledgeable people in several

         11  City and State Administrations and rejected by all

         12  of those Administrations.

         13                 The book of photographs that I

         14  distributed to you today shows the High Line for

         15  what it is, a dangerous and dilapidated structure,

         16  not really amenable to rehabilitation.

         17                 The photographs of the Promenade

         18  Plantee, which I've also included in my package in

         19  Paris show on the futility of trying to replicate

         20  that under the High Line.

         21                 The High Line, unlike the Promenade

         22  Plantee, does not run on a main street, which is in

         23  the middle of a densely populated urban area. It

         24  runs through the center of block fronts.

         25                 There is no store block front where
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          2  you can create that row of stores that the Promenade

          3  Plantee had created.

          4                 In addition, the Promenade Plantee,

          5  underneath it there were all those beautiful vaulted

          6  archways, sort of like what they had at the 59th

          7  Street Bridge where they've created the beautiful

          8  restaurant there. Here you just have steel decking

          9  that runs all the way up to 15, 20 feet in the air.

         10                 Finally, the Promenade Plantee

         11  terminates into a park. Here it terminates into the

         12  parking lot of the Javits Center. So, there really

         13  is no destination that this walkway can lead to

         14  currently.

         15                 Finally, the last group of

         16  photographs that's in that package show you the

         17  result of its demolition just south of the area

         18  where it still remained, and shows an attractive

         19  residential neighborhood with a block front park.

         20                 If the High Line is completely

         21  demolished over a time and with appropriate zoning,

         22  this area can be developed responsibly to better

         23  benefit both the City and the community.

         24                 I'd like to give you a little bit of

         25  the background. Edison has been involved in
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          2  negotiations with CSX and are very close to

          3  finalizing a deal which will allow the conveyance of

          4  the High Line to the property owners and the

          5  eventual demolition of the High Line.

          6                 As a result of those negotiations,

          7  there is one thing I can assure you of, is that CSX

          8  will not permit any conveyance of the High Line to

          9  anyone, unless it is absolutely protected from any

         10  possible liability from any past or future claims.

         11                 Under the deal with the property

         12  owners, CSX was getting released from all past

         13  claims from the property owner and indemnified and

         14  insured for all future claims until demolition.

         15                 Obviously, once demolition is

         16  completed there can be no future claims because

         17  nothing can fall.

         18                 The figures that are used for

         19  rehabilitation today are based on, in my opinion,

         20  incomplete information.

         21                 The $1 million that's been bandied

         22  around that CSX has spent was merely to remove

         23  concrete and steel plates that were ready to fall in

         24  response to 63 hazardous violations that were issued

         25  by the City.
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          2                 Before that, before those violations

          3  were issued by the City, CSX has spent nothing on

          4  maintenance of the structure, and has since spent

          5  nothing on maintenance of the structure.

          6                 All that happened for that million

          7  dollars as that big pieces of concrete and big

          8  pieces of steel that were ready to fall down and

          9  endanger life were removed. Nothing was done to

         10  rehabilitate the structure, nothing was done to stop

         11  the spalling of the concrete and nothing has been

         12  done that will prevent that condition from

         13  replicating itself every year.

         14                 To get back to the level of

         15  protection that the railroads would expect to

         16  require from any potential applicant under the rail

         17  banking statutes, I would like to point out that

         18  under the circumstance of rail banking, the property

         19  owners would not release any of the prior claims,

         20  nor will they release the environmental claims,

         21  which may arise when testing of those properties

         22  ensue.

         23                 Moreover, the structure will not be

         24  demolished so future plans will inevitably result.

         25  The railroads will insist on being indemnity -- will
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          2  insist on being indemnified. The indemnity will have

          3  to be backed up with appropriate insurance coverage.

          4                 It is my belief, based on discussions

          5  with Counsel for the railroad, that that indemnity

          6  would likely be in the $100 million range, and that

          7  insurance would have to be provided. That sort of

          8  insurance going on forever is likely to cost several

          9  million dollars a year. Add to that the cost of

         10  maintenance of the structure, the cost of security,

         11  the cost of landscaping, the cost of policing the

         12  area, and I think you will find that just the annual

         13  maintenance cost of this kind of promenade would be

         14  prohibited for a city.

         15                 When you add to that the cost of

         16  rehabilitation of the structure and constructing,

         17  what the Friends of the High Line are proposing, I

         18  mean the areas that they identified are absolutely

         19  the right areas to look at, there is the structural

         20  maintenance, the access points, and then there is

         21  the ongoing maintenance problem.

         22                 The structural, I think $50 million

         23  is a very, very ambitious figure. I mean, even

         24  assuming they could raise that, I think that doesn't

         25  even begin to deal with some of the issues they are
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          2  relating for the High Land.

          3                 Remember, the drainage system of this

          4  High Line has been completely deteriorated. So, over

          5  the last 20 years, millions of gallons of water have

          6  seeped into this concrete and into the steel. I

          7  think the level of damage that has been sustained by

          8  this structure will be evidenced by some of the

          9  testimony of the property owners who have had pieces

         10  of this High Line fall into their property. It is

         11  not a simple $50 million fix.

         12                 In addition, I would like to see the

         13  figures that show that $10 million of funds would

         14  create access to every five blocks.

         15                 In order to comply with the ADA,

         16  you're going to need not only stairways, you're

         17  going to need escalators and elevators going up to

         18  the structure, I can't believe that $10 million is

         19  going to pay for that, and as Mr. Sarini had said,

         20  we have spoken to most of the property owners under

         21  this High Line, we don't see anybody who is willing

         22  to grant that access from their property onto the

         23  High Line.

         24                 So, in conclusion, I would like to

         25  urge this Council Committee, that in considering
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          2  this question you consider it carefully and not just

          3  a romantic notion of it would be nice to have seven

          4  acres of open space above this, but the practicality

          5  of whether or not this makes any sense, and what

          6  constituency its meant to serve. When the Hudson

          7  River Park, which is going to serve the entire

          8  community and the entire City is one block away, I

          9  think it's foolhardy to think that some of those

         10  funds are going to be spent here, because the

         11  transportation-related funds can only produce a

         12  piddling amount compared to what's needed here.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Do you have

         14  testimony?

         15                 MR. OHRENSTEIN: I'm Manfred

         16  Ohrenstein, and as I said before, I represent Edison

         17  Properties. I'm also, as some of you know, very

         18  intimately familiar with the neighborhood, since I

         19  represented it for some 35 years in the legislature.

         20  And while, of course, I'm here as a spokesman for a

         21  business client, I want to emphasize that in this

         22  instance, I'm also holding myself out as somewhat of

         23  an expert on this community, the particular

         24  structure that is at issue and the long-range plant

         25  for this neighborhood and for the City.
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          2                 What I would like to say to begin

          3  with is that in my personal opinion, this resolution

          4  is at best premature, and at worst, ill-conceived,

          5  and I'm going to address both those issues.

          6                 It's premature because in its own

          7  operative way, and I'm going to be a little egoistic

          8  here, you are asking the highest public officials of

          9  this state to take an affirmative step into rail

         10  banking. So, it isn't a benign resolution, which

         11  simply opposes demolition. It is also a resolution

         12  which asks public officials to take affirmative

         13  steps. And in this regard I believe it is premature,

         14  and I would ask you to at the very least lay it

         15  aside until the very profound questions that are

         16  going to be put before you can be answered to see

         17  whether you really see this as a feasible proposal

         18  and as a feasible project, and not to act

         19  precipitously simply because of the romantic notions

         20  that are being presented here.

         21                 With regard to the premature part, I

         22  think there are three problems. One is, I don't

         23  think that the choice of allocation of public

         24  resources, with regard to park land and open space,

         25  has really been considered here, and I think you are
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          2  beginning to hear some of that testimony and you

          3  ought to hear more of it, and I will elaborate on

          4  that in just one moment.

          5                 Secondly, I do not believe that the

          6  profound proposal you are making here by the

          7  operative nature of this resolution, has been

          8  considered formerly by the community. There is a

          9  community board, there are many other community

         10  spokespeople and so on and so forth, who have a

         11  profound interest in not only the question of

         12  whether the High Line should be preserved or not,

         13  but in the corollary issues of the open space

         14  planning and the community.

         15                 So, I don't think that community has

         16  been heard from, and they should be heard from

         17  before you go forward.

         18                 Thirdly, listening to the analysis we

         19  listened to before of the proponents of Friends of

         20  the High Line, all of which, all of whom I respect

         21  very, very much, and whose motivations are very

         22  noble. But insofar as, addressing the serious

         23  economic costs and consequences to this community, I

         24  would respectfully say the numbers, the figures that

         25  have been used are very sketchy, are only
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          2  preliminary and certainly no responsible government

          3  body should be acting upon those figures until

          4  they're further refined.

          5                 I would like to address on the

          6  question of prematurity the context in terms of

          7  allocation of resources. The Chelsea, the Clinton,

          8  Chelsea and Village community are about to become

          9  the beneficiaries of one of the most major public

         10  open space projects that this City has seen in many,

         11  many decades. And I'm talking about the creation of

         12  the Hudson River Park.

         13                 Unfortunately, as most of you know,

         14  it took 20 to 25 years of controversy to defeat

         15  first Westway, which would have obliterated any

         16  chance to plan this area in conjunction with the

         17  community, and then spend probably another decade

         18  and a half in order to create the Hudson River Park

         19  Project.

         20                 The interesting thing about the

         21  Hudson River Park Project, is as controversial as it

         22  was at its beginning, and as difficult as it was to

         23  get legislation through the legislature to create

         24  that park, it is now being supported on a bipartisan

         25  basis by both leading democratic public officials,
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          2  starting with Governor Carey and Governor Cuomo and

          3  Mayor Dinkins and Mayor Koch, and now being actively

          4  supported by way of completion by two Republican

          5  public officials, the Mayor of the City of New York,

          6  and the Governor of the State of New York, and by

          7  that I mean very active participation.

          8                 Anyone who takes the trouble to drive

          9  down or walk down or bike down West Street, which is

         10  now in the process of reconstruction, has to be

         11  heartened by the fact that despite all of the

         12  problems in this City, this magnificent project is

         13  on its way and its on its way to completion.

         14                 It will consist of a six-lane road,

         15  which works. It will consist of a bikeway, which

         16  probably will be five or six miles long, and

         17  extending first to 42nd Street and later to

         18  Riverside Drive. It will consist of an esplanade,

         19  which will be a romantic walkway along the river,

         20  and, of course, it will also consist of the

         21  construct of the Hudson River Park.

         22                 In all of this optimism and euphoria

         23  about this magnificent project, there is only one

         24  problem, and that is that the park at this point is

         25  missing between 300 to 400 million dollars of
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          2  financing.

          3                 And it is until that financing is

          4  secured, and it is the initial plans that are

          5  presently in existence, are that that $300 to $400

          6  million be supplied by private industry in some form

          7  in terms of the development on the river.

          8                 Most of the people who are here in

          9  this room, including myself, are opposed to

         10  development on the river, other than water-related

         11  facilities. So that the ability by those

         12  developments to raise the funds to complete the

         13  Hudson River Park are very much in danger. And the

         14  only real alternative for the completion of the

         15  park, is the raising of public funds, state, city

         16  and hopefully some federal, in order to complete the

         17  park.

         18                 It is not feasible, in my humble

         19  opinion, that at the same time that we are still

         20  fighting for completion of this magnificent open air

         21  parks facility that within one block of it, two

         22  blocks at most, there will be another parkland

         23  facility of the type that is being advocated here by

         24  the well meaning Friends of the High Line, which

         25  will certainly call for several hundreds of millions
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          2  of dollars of initial capital funds and probably

          3  somewhere in the neighborhood of $10 million a year

          4  in terms of maintenance.

          5                 It is just not possible politically,

          6  functionally, that the kind of money we're talking

          7  about is going to be invested in these three

          8  neighborhoods that we're talking about.

          9                 You may not be happy to hear that.

         10  But those are the facts of life, and all of the

         11  optimism and the romanticism in the world are not

         12  going to change that.

         13                 I can only point to a tragedy which

         14  occurred at the end of this particular project, and

         15  that is the creation of the project of Riverside

         16  South.

         17                 At Riverside South, the City,

         18  together with many of the people who are in this

         19  room today, and many of the noble civic

         20  organizations have been active in this community,

         21  struck a deal with the developer, whose name is

         22  legion, Mr. Trump, that in return for allowing him

         23  to build about eight or ten high-rise buildings

         24  along the river, which three or four of which have

         25  already been completed, there would be a several
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          2  hundred acre addition to Riverside Park.

          3                 Well, some of us who advocated this

          4  compromise from the beginning, walked away from it

          5  because after a year or two we began to see that the

          6  dream of extending the Riverside Park would be

          7  extinguished by the practical nature of what was

          8  going on there. And that's exactly what has

          9  happened. Mr. Trump is building his buildings and

         10  not one ounce of turf has been turned in order to

         11  create Riverside Park.

         12                 That is the choice that is before

         13  these three communities. It is whether you are for

         14  or against some creation of new public parks, it is

         15  a question of whether the financing and the will and

         16  the ability and the politics will allow this to

         17  happen.

         18                 Now, I want to just add one more

         19  thing.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay.

         21                 MR. OHRENSTEIN: Just to be credible

         22  here.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Sure.

         24                 MR. OHRENSTEIN: I want to say that as

         25  someone who is totally familiar with this area, and
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          2  my opinion is only one, and I respect other people's

          3  opinions equally, I certainly respect the advocates

          4  of this resolution, I believe this High Line should

          5  be torn down. It is a wreck. It is an eyesore. It is

          6  an impediment to rational, moderate, measured

          7  development of Chelsea and the Village. And I

          8  believe that with all of the good intentions that

          9  this project is being advanced, it will only succeed

         10  in postponing the demolition, the eventual

         11  demolition of the High Line, and with that postpone

         12  the rational modest and moderate development of

         13  Chelsea and Village neighborhoods.

         14                 Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: I just have a

         16  couple of questions, and I know Council Member Quinn

         17  has a couple of questions, but we need to keep

         18  moving so let me just ask a couple of questions.

         19                 I thought you made a very good point

         20  about community involvement. I completely agree with

         21  that. That's actually why we called this hearing,

         22  and I think it's why CSX noted in the beginning this

         23  is the first, as far as we're aware, public forum.

         24                 Let me just ask, with regard to

         25  community involvement, and your particular plans for
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          2  demolition, have you taken any efforts to involve

          3  the community? Have you done any informational

          4  meetings for the community board on demolition?

          5                 Have you had any community forums?

          6  Because I think you and I had spoken previously,

          7  Senator, about this issue, and you made the argument

          8  that this resolution would constitute a major

          9  redevelopment proposal essentially for the area, and

         10  I think the point that I would make is that, I think

         11  demolition constitutes a major redevelopment

         12  proposal for the area as well, and let me just ask

         13  you about that.

         14                 MR. SARINI: Mr. Chairman, this issue

         15  has gone on, give or take, 16 years. So,

         16  historically there have been lots of community

         17  meetings with regard to this issue.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Right.

         19                 MR. SARINI: The last one I believe

         20  was a few months ago. Community Board 4 held a

         21  discussion with regard to the future of the High

         22  Line.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Right. Which I

         24  think was as a result of the efforts of the Friends

         25  of the High Line to create public discussion, at
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          2  least that was my understanding. Prior to that, have

          3  there been any -- I mean, have you undertaken any

          4  efforts to inform the community about your

          5  demolition plans, about what it will involve, et

          6  cetera?

          7                 MR. SARINI: The position that I would

          8  take with regard to that is at this point in time

          9  it's premature, since we don't have an agreement to

         10  demolish the High Line, and also from our standpoint

         11  the only result would be the demolition of the

         12  structure, and there would be no other result. And

         13  since there has been a 16-year issue that still is

         14  in litigation, and I may add that some of the issues

         15  that were brought up today are only the result of

         16  the fact that the property owners and the interested

         17  parties have agreed to stay additional litigation,

         18  which will continue in the future, if, in fact,

         19  there is not a disposition on this issue. I think at

         20  that time would be the appropriate time to discuss

         21  what demolition would entail. I think now, since

         22  there is no plans for demolition, it would be

         23  somewhat premature.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: All right. I'll

         25  take that as a no.
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          2                 Council Member Quinn.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Yes, Doug had

          4  said something just now, something to the effect of

          5  that there wouldn't be an enormous impact of

          6  demolition, that demolition would just be

          7  demolition. Obviously, if the High Line comes down,

          8  the property, some of which is owned by Edison

          9  Property and the other members of the Chelsea

         10  Property Owners Association will be more valuable

         11  and will be able to be developed on. Some of it --

         12  much of it is not able to be developed upon now

         13  because of the High Line. Therefore, in my opinion,

         14  there is a tremendous potential for change and

         15  development impacts now that there would be all of

         16  these locks, which would be, you know, ripe for

         17  development.

         18                 So, since you, as Edison Properties,

         19  assert that there won't be a significant change if

         20  there is demolition, can I assume then that that's

         21  because you're willing to agree to, you know, build

         22  buildings of limited height there, to only sell

         23  property to someone who is going to build a building

         24  which is within, you know, a typical Chelsea height

         25  or something of that nature? Because presently, if
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          2  it came down tomorrow you would have great latitude

          3  to build a large significant building there, no?

          4                 MR. SARINI: No, we would not be able

          5  to build a large significant building.

          6                 As most people understand,

          7  development is dictated by zoning --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Yes.

          9                 MR. SARINI:-- And not just structure.

         10  So even know the structure came down, the ability to

         11  build in this area would be dictated by the existing

         12  zoning.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Right.

         14                 MR. SARINI: The existing zoning,

         15  along the majority of this High Line, I believe

         16  along all of the existing High Line is M15. So, that

         17  would basically dictate the limited amount of

         18  development that could take place.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So, Doug, are

         20  you committing then that your, if the High Line

         21  comes down, Edison Properties will seek no zoning

         22  change and will sell the property only to people who

         23  would seek no zoning change?

         24                 MR. SARINI: No, not at all,

         25  Councilwoman.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So, then that's

          3  not --

          4                 MR. SARINI: What I'm basically saying

          5  is that as an owner of a property, as any owner of a

          6  property, who would like to maximize the value of

          7  their property, over the course of the last 16

          8  years, it would have been to my own personal

          9  interest, better suited that this line could have

         10  been used for something. Because as a mass

         11  transportation line, I'd much rather own property

         12  next to a viable mass transportation line, I'd much

         13  rather own property next to a viable, beautiful

         14  park, it would make my property much, much more

         15  valuable.

         16                 However, over the course of the last

         17  16 years I've become a realist, and the only people

         18  who are spending money here, the only cost, and this

         19  is a very important point, the only cost that is

         20  being assumed by anyone here is the cost being

         21  assumed by property owners who have to spend money

         22  every day protecting their property against the

         23  structure.

         24                 Any time there is any rain, any

         25  precipitation whatsoever, water pours onto the
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          2  property. There is always structural deterioration,

          3  spalling of the concrete, delamination of the steel.

          4  I have 80 pound, 120 plates that have fallen from

          5  this structure recently.

          6                 The only reason CSX did any repairs

          7  over the course of the last year, was because the

          8  Court ordered them to do that, because of the work

          9  that we've done.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: We concur.

         11                 MR. SARINI: It's unfair --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Let me just ask

         13  just a follow-up question.

         14                 You would say then that, let's just

         15  imagine, setting aside, let's imagine a best case

         16  scenario, and we fastforward five years and somehow

         17  the resources and time and energy has been found,

         18  and I'm not saying -- I'm just asking you to accept,

         19  I'm not saying I'm dismissing your concerns that

         20  they won't be found, but assume that something along

         21  the lines of what the Friends of the High Land

         22  envisioned, are you saying then that you would see

         23  that as being a benefit to your property, were there

         24  to be a public promenade with access and full

         25  funding having been given to stabilize, and
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          2  programmatic funding, to turn the Friends of the

          3  High Line into something --

          4                 MR. SARINI: I think, Mr. Chairman,

          5  I'm going to let Mr. Lefkowitz respond to this as

          6  well, but I think in reality that if the High Line

          7  was demolished, nothing would change in the area,

          8  because the next issue would be a zoning issue,

          9  which is a community-based initiative.

         10                 However, I think everyone here should

         11  understand and be honest. If the Promenade Plantee

         12  was developed on the High Line, there would be huge

         13  pressure, huge pressure to rezone this area to high

         14  density commercial and residential. And I don't know

         15  whether or not the people in this room would support

         16  that. But you're not going to have a beautiful

         17  promenade, such as you see here in the pictures,

         18  without having real density around it.

         19                 So, would I be in support if you

         20  guaranteed me that $400 million or so was going to

         21  be spent on this structure and the area was going to

         22  be rezoned? Would I be in support of that and would

         23  I wait five years for that? Yes, I absolutely would.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay.

         25                 MR. SARINI: Just before we conclude,
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          2  Mr. Chairman?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Yes.

          4                 MR. LEFKOWITZ: I'd just like to ask

          5  that the record of these hearings be left open for

          6  additional submissions, particularly with regard to

          7  the cost estimates which is so disparate in this

          8  area?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Absolutely. As I

         10  said, we appreciate the information that you

         11  submitted to us, and we're very interested in

         12  receiving any testimony that you have with regard to

         13  cost estimates, et cetera, because that's the

         14  purpose of having the hearing. So, we're happy to

         15  have you forward additional information for

         16  inclusion as part of the record.

         17                 I know Council Member Quinn has

         18  another question.

         19                 MR. LEFKOWITZ: Let me just respond --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Well, let me just

         21  --

         22                 MR. LEFKOWITZ: I thought your

         23  question was an excellent question that you just

         24  asked Mr. Sarini.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Yes.
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          2                 MR. LEFKOWITZ: And I think the best

          3  way for me to respond to that is I would like to see

          4  some showing of the feasibility of this project. I

          5  would like to see the sort of submission that will

          6  go before the STB that would show the financial

          7  feasibility of this project, and show that there

          8  would be adequate protection of both the public

          9  interest and the railway in conveying this property

         10  over to a development group.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay.

         12                 Council Member.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: When various of

         14  the three of you testified you mentioned opposition

         15  for keeping it up from Mayor Koch and Mayor Dinkins.

         16  I assume, though, that that opposition was taken by

         17  the former Mayors, when the only option was for it

         18  to stay up, you know, unused and that, you know,

         19  rotting situation, or to come down --

         20                 MR. SARINI: No, Councilwoman.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Can I ask a

         22  question?

         23                 MR. SARINI: I'm sorry.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So, Mayor

         25  Dinkins and Mayor Koch have been presented with the
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          2  friends of the High Line proposal and have opposed

          3  it and chose demolition instead?

          4                 MR. SARINI: No, they have not. What

          5  --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Or if I could

          7  just add to that, who are the similar groups that

          8  were stepping forward with proposals to preserve and

          9  reuse the High Line at that time?

         10                 MR. SARINI: The first group was a

         11  group called the West Side Rail Line Foundation.

         12  They were looking to find alternative uses for the

         13  High Line, any alternative use for the High Line.

         14                 If you go back and look at New York

         15  Times articles going back to the mid-eighties,

         16  you'll see articles about the potential for using it

         17  to build housing on top of the High Line, to create

         18  a public park on top of the High Line. This is not a

         19  unique proposal. This proposal is interesting from

         20  the standpoint that it's current, but it's not

         21  unique. It's not the first time this proposal was

         22  developed or created as a potential reuse of the

         23  High Line.

         24                 And some of the things that frustrate

         25  us as property owners a little bit is the fact that
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          2  this keeps on going on and on and on.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay.

          4                 Let me just ask one other quick

          5  question, we do have a lot more testimony to do.

          6                 New York Times has reported that you

          7  have a contract for demolition; is that the case?

          8                 MR. SARINI: Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Can you tell us

         10  how much you estimate --

         11                 MR. SARINI: That is the case.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: And how much is

         13  the contract for?

         14                 MR. SARINI: The cost of demolition if

         15  the entire line is demolished is approximately $6.7

         16  million.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: And are there

         18  provisions -- that's for the whole demolition,

         19  there's no possibility of cost overrun? They're

         20  going to be responsible for demolition, or what's --

         21                 MR. SARINI: There is no possibility

         22  of cost overrun.

         23                 As part of our discussions with CSA,

         24  they have required that we get a fixed cost

         25  contract, so that the contractor is responsible for
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          2  all cost overruns.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: And whose the

          4  contractor?

          5                 MR. SARINI: Seasons Demolition.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Can I just ask,

          7  just quickly --

          8                 MR. SARINI: If I may finish to answer

          9  your question?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Yes.

         11                 MR. SARINI: On top of that, of both

         12  having a fixed cost contract and having a surety

         13  bond for performance and payment bonding company,

         14  there is also a cost cap policy in the amount of $15

         15  million that was purchased from the Environmental

         16  Insurance, which would respond to any cost overruns

         17  over and above the bonding amount.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay. Let me just

         19  make two very quick comments, and we thank you for

         20  your testimony: One would be, I don't know how you

         21  could think that a hearing like this, or a

         22  resolution like this, could be premature with regard

         23  to this particular issue, if you already have a

         24  contract for demolition of the -- I mean, if we

         25  should wait until after the wrecking balls have
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          2  destroyed half of it, it would seem to me to be

          3  pointless and futile. It seems to me that if I had

          4  any concerns about the maturity of this hearing,

          5  they were just delayed.

          6                 And let me just make one point on the

          7  issue of the difficulty of what's in front of us.

          8                 I was surprised to hear your

          9  testimony on that subject, but let me say not

         10  chagrinned at this point, just on the grounds of the

         11  difficulty. And I say that because I have the

         12  confidence that if other public officials in my

         13  position and other people's position had listened to

         14  those in the past who had told them about the

         15  difficulty of pursuing the vision of the Hudson

         16  River Park, of that it would never happen or that

         17  these things cannot be done in our time, that none

         18  of it would have gone forward, and I thank God, and

         19  I thank you, Senator, for your leadership on that

         20  subject, and many other elected officials, in making

         21  sure that vision has indeed become a reality.

         22                 I'm not saying, let me be clear, I'm

         23  not saying that that means I don't want to look at

         24  the facts and I'm trying to put a rosy tint on it,

         25  I'm just simply saying that many people before, have
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          2  said before with regard to worthy projects, that

          3  we'll never find the money and we'll never find the

          4  will, and that the answer there is that there is

          5  money. The question is the will, so we have to look

          6  at the issues --

          7                 MR. SARINI: Excuse me, Mr. Chairman.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Yes.

          9                 MR. SARINI: If I could just respond

         10  to your amazement.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Yes.

         12                 MR. SARINI: A little context here

         13  might be very beneficial for you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Sure.

         15                 MR. SARINI: The contract that we

         16  have, which is obviously not ready to swing the

         17  wrecking ball yet --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Right.

         19                 MR. SARINI: A contract that CSX has

         20  asked us to obtain prior to entering into an

         21  agreement with them, for them to convey the High

         22  Line to us.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: I understand.

         24                 MR. SARINI: Because they needed

         25  certainty that it could be demolished for a fixed
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          2  cost.

          3                 Just so you know, in terms of the

          4  prematurity and timeliness here, what's going to

          5  happen is, in the event that we're able to reach an

          6  agreement with CSX when that gets signed. There is a

          7  90-day period before the STB, in which the STB

          8  considers abandonment. Subsequent to that period

          9  there is then a 30-day period that the State

         10  Department of Transportation has to issue certain

         11  waivers regarding their rights with respect to this

         12  railroad, so the wrecking ball is not quite as

         13  poised as you would like for us to believe.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: No. Well, believe

         15  me, I don't want to -- I don't want anyone here to

         16  believe that the wrecking ball is poised, and I

         17  completely concur with your analysis and also feel

         18  that there is probably some additional levels of

         19  review that will have to be satisfied.

         20                 Council Member Quinn, do you want to

         21  make a final comment, and then we're going to move

         22  on?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I do.

         24                 I just want to, you know, for the

         25  record say that I think the issue of the pending
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          2  completion and complete opening of the Hudson River

          3  Park, and that that is finally occurring, after the

          4  hard work of people like Senator Ohrenstein and my

          5  predecessor Senator Duane, that the issue that that

          6  is finally opening means we don't need the High Line

          7  I think is just absurd.

          8                 You know, in my office we had to help

          9  many members of the community recently form

         10  associations around their various hobbies and

         11  interests, because they feel that the plans for the

         12  Hudson River Park do not give them the space and

         13  opportunity they need to walk their dogs, play the

         14  sports they like, et cetera, you can well imagine.

         15                 So, although the Hudson River Park is

         16  an unbelievable benefit and a fabulous thing we're

         17  getting in the community, we should not be lulled

         18  into thinking it somehow meets all of the open space

         19  needs of our neighborhood.

         20                 I mean, presently the high schools

         21  and some of the junior highs in my district have to

         22  go to other boroughs to play sports and have to

         23  limit their game schedule because they do not have

         24  fields in which they can play their junior varsity

         25  and varsity games.
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          2                 I'm not proposing that we turn the

          3  High Line into a soccer field, it would probably not

          4  be wide enough, but we should not be lulled into

          5  thinking we have met all of our requirements.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay. Thank you

          7  all for your testimony.

          8                 Next we're going to have Hugh Morris

          9  and Jeff Charbody, I hope that's right, from the

         10  Rails to Trails Conservancy.

         11                 I want to note for the record that we

         12  have had a number of submissions of statements of

         13  support, that will become part of the record. One

         14  from Senator Clinton, one from Public Advocate Mark

         15  Green, one from the American Institute of

         16  Architects, and one from State Senator Eric

         17  Schneiderman.

         18                 Yes, please, identify yourself for

         19  the record, and give us your best shot.

         20                 MR. MORRIS: Sure. My name is Hugh

         21  Morris. I am with the Rails-to-Trails Conservancy.

         22                 We are based in Washington, D.C.

         23                 Good afternoon. Thank you for having

         24  us here. My colleague Jeff Ciabotti and I are

         25  pleased to be here today to support the High Line
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          2  Project, and the Resolution 1747.

          3                 We would like to actually just

          4  present you with a brief overview of some of the

          5  issues that typically surround these type of

          6  projects and give you sort of a flavor of the scope

          7  of this movement on a national basis.

          8                 The Rails-to-Trails Conservancy is a

          9  national non-profit organization that works to

         10  facilitate the conversion of abandoned rail

         11  corridors into multi-use trails and greenways all

         12  around the country.

         13                 We have been doing this for about 15

         14  years. We have 100,000 members. We work at the

         15  national level to keep funding these sorts of

         16  projects moving through the pipeline, and we work at

         17  the local level trying to give groups such as

         18  friends of the High Line and yourselves some

         19  knowledge of what it takes to implement these sorts

         20  of projects.

         21                 Turning an abandoned rail corridor

         22  into a trail, such a facility is not unique anymore.

         23  There are certainly elements of this project that

         24  are.

         25                 The scale of the Rails-to-Trails
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          2  movement nationally is quite substantial at this

          3  point. There are over 1,000 rail trails around the

          4  country, totalling over 12,000 miles. There is at

          5  least one in every state and I believe Pennsylvania

          6  has 100 of them. Over the last decade the federal

          7  government has made over $4 billion available for

          8  these sorts of projects through the Transportation

          9  Enhancement Program, for which we believe this

         10  project would qualify. And New York State itself now

         11  gets about 20 to $25 million a year through this

         12  program.

         13                 The controversy surrounding this

         14  project really doesn't surprise us. We have yet to

         15  work on a Rails-to-Trails project anywhere that does

         16  not have some level of controversy associated with

         17  it. Whether it's cost issues that we've heard about

         18  today, adjacent land owners who are concerned,

         19  safety issues, crime issues, they always pop up. And

         20  it is usually the vision and energy of certain

         21  individuals that carry these projects forward and

         22  then once they're built, the issues that came up

         23  during the process, they tend to sort of fall by the

         24  wayside, they become moot.

         25                 And what's the real virtue that we
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          2  see in projects like this, the appeal or the power

          3  of them for communities, is that they have something

          4  for everyone. People go there to exercise, they go

          5  there to commute to work, and what's nice is that

          6  these are really safe places, they are out of the

          7  traffic stream, they're quiet, as we heard, and I

          8  believe in New York City, between the years of 1994

          9  and '97, there were over 1,000 pedestrian and

         10  bicycle deaths from automobiles. And, so, even if a

         11  few of those can be mitigated through the

         12  development of this project, that safety issue I

         13  think carries some real weight.

         14                 Adjacent residential land owners tend

         15  to see their property value increase somewhat, and

         16  in fact, residential property become easier to sell,

         17  adjacent businesses, and to find that their sales

         18  will increase.

         19                 So, I just want to say in short that

         20  what we see in projects like this all around the

         21  country is that while for sure they don't change the

         22  world, but they really do change the neighborhood

         23  that they pass through.

         24                 And with that, I'd like to turn it

         25  over to Jeff Ciabotti.
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          2                 MR. CIABOTTI: Thank you.

          3                 My name is Jeff Ciabotti, from the

          4  Rails-to-Trails Conservancy.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Like everything

          6  in City Hall, it's a little confusing, if the light

          7  is on, it's off; and if the light is off, it's on.

          8  How about that?

          9                 MR. CIABOTTI: My name is Jeff

         10  Ciabotti, with the Rails-to-Trails Conservancy, and

         11  thank you for the time to speak before you today.

         12                 My work typically around the country

         13  is working with local communities, just like the

         14  Friends group here, and helping them in any way we

         15  can to make a project successful.

         16                 Through my experience, I have found

         17  that working with state agencies, local public

         18  agencies, locally state and federally, and working

         19  with citizens groups, I found that it ends up being

         20  the citizens are the experts for these types of

         21  cases, and they are the best determiners on what is

         22  advantageous to be occurring in their communities.

         23  And I would just like to commend the hard work and

         24  time and energy that has been put into this project

         25  up to this point.
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          2                 I think you have a very sophisticated

          3  Friends group, that is a major element in making

          4  these types of projects successful. It takes a

          5  strong, citizen group that is willing to put,

          6  organize themselves and put time and energy. It

          7  takes committed and championed elected officials in

          8  order to push the project through the public

          9  process, and then it takes the garnering of public

         10  support that can sort of, once the trail gets on the

         11  ground, they produce the necessary encouragement for

         12  the project to go from phase to phase to phase.

         13                 I think it's a great parallel, the

         14  Hudson River Project is a great parallel for this

         15  project, in that there was controversy initially,

         16  and that through all that, through all the numbers

         17  that I'm sure were thrown at the community at that

         18  time, and I think we heard a lot of numbers today,

         19  and I think you're right, we do need to do a lot

         20  more sort of investigation on exactly what the cost

         21  is. You cannot tell what the cost is until you look

         22  at the property, you determine what the use is, and

         23  then you start affixing figures to that. So, I think

         24  that's going to be an important part of the planning

         25  process, and I would encourage what you've started
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          2  today to continue, as far as including citizen

          3  involvement into how this project eventually serves

          4  the community.

          5                 I want to run through real quickly,

          6  very briefly, we've heard a lot today, so I'm going

          7  to be incredibly brief, just how these projects come

          8  about. They start of sort of conducting an initial

          9  assessment of the corridor, engaging public interest

         10  and connectivity to community resources. It's

         11  important to develop a broad-based constituency,

         12  organized citizen support you've already seen

         13  occurring here.

         14                 You want to be able to have a plan,

         15  something that graphically represents the project

         16  itself. You want to be able to develop partnerships

         17  with all interested and effected parties, you want

         18  to get publicity out for these kind of projects. You

         19  want to be able to have knowledgeable folks

         20  negotiating with the railroad, helping to secure

         21  funds through acquisition and development, often

         22  transportation enhancement funds are available for

         23  that. You want to be able to tap into your state and

         24  local conservation and open space programs, and

         25  essentially you want to be able to develop a long
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          2  range planning mechanism that helps monitor and

          3  manage the trail over time.

          4                 The way that is best achieved, and

          5  the partnerships that are best drawn for successful

          6  projects are to bring in a public agency that

          7  manages the project. That's why I, too, was a little

          8  disappointed not to see them represented today. You

          9  are going to have to garner the support of your

         10  local City or State in order to handle long term

         11  projects like this. So, I'm very interested to see

         12  them and what their concerns are, New York State and

         13  communities around New York, manage and maintain

         14  projects like this around the State. There is almost

         15  12,000 miles of these types of projects around the

         16  country.

         17                 When a community wants to find a way

         18  to make these projects happen, regardless of the

         19  numbers of the millions and billions of dollars that

         20  are often thrown out at public meetings, they find a

         21  way, and I have no doubt that the community of New

         22  York, if it makes its decision do this project, can

         23  find a way to make it happen. You've got a great

         24  start, you've got a committed local organization

         25  that's paving the way, and I think -- I was going to
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          2  talk about rail banking, I think all you need to

          3  know about rail banking at this point is that it's a

          4  wonderful tool for communities to be able to work

          5  with railroads to preserve railroad right of way for

          6  the potential of future transportation use, and in

          7  the interim you can use that corridor as a public

          8  trail. That's where it becomes valuable.

          9                 I think it's a valuable tool in this

         10  case because it brings CSX to the table. Once you

         11  enter what is called the public use agreement

         12  through the STB, that does not nail you down as a

         13  community to take the project. What it does is it

         14  gives you a time period in which you negotiate with

         15  the railroad what the terms of the agreement are

         16  going to be, and in that time period you determine

         17  who is going to be the eventual manager and

         18  maintainer of the trail.

         19                 So, I wouldn't be afraid of pursuing

         20  the rail banking at this point.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Based upon your

         22  experience, how far would you say the Friends of the

         23  High Line are from being able to submit an

         24  application to the STB for that kind of rail

         25  banking?
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          2                 MR. CIABOTTI: I think to answer that

          3  responsibly to you, is that you need to garner the

          4  support of a local public agency that will in some

          5  respects commit to long-term management and

          6  maintenance to this trail, whether it's local,

          7  county or state.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay.

          9                 Thank you both very much for your

         10  testimony. We really appreciate your taking the time

         11  to come up and testify.

         12                 MR. CIABOTTI: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Next we're going

         14  to have two representatives of elected officials.

         15                 Brad Usher and Gary Parker. Brad,

         16  from State Senator Tom Duane's Office, and Gary

         17  Parker from Assemblymember Deborah Glick's Office.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Please, go ahead.

         19                 MR. USHER: Good afternoon.

         20                 State Senator Duane is in Albany

         21  today, so I will be delivering testimony on his

         22  behalf, my name is Brad Usher.

         23                 I'm here representing State Senator

         24  Tom Duane, representing the 27th Senatorial District

         25  in Manhattan. I am here to testify in support of
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          2  Resolution of 1747, calling upon Governor Pataki,

          3  Mayor Giuliani and the Metropolitan Transportation

          4  Authority to take the necessary steps to obtain a

          5  certificate of interim trail use from the United

          6  States Surface Transportation Board in connection

          7  with rail banking the High Line.

          8                 Interim trail use of the High Line

          9  offers a great opportunity for the creation of a

         10  truly unique urban public space. While many detailed

         11  proposals for the High Line must still be worked

         12  out, including the financing of any proposed park

         13  use, if it is to be allowed to be demolished, the

         14  potential for developing 1.45 miles of elevated open

         15  space, connecting three vibrant and growing

         16  neighborhoods, will be lost forever.

         17                 Proposals for preserving and reusing

         18  the High Line create the opportunity for the

         19  development of an urban amenity that would serve the

         20  community and attract visitors, and could provide

         21  recreation and transportation uses that would

         22  compliment the Hudson River Park and the growing

         23  artistic community that has developed in the

         24  vicinity of the High Line.

         25                 The High Line offers a unique link
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          2  between the manufacturing history of Manhattan's

          3  west side, and its present and future as a mixed use

          4  neighborhood, that combines residential, commercial

          5  and manufacturing uses with parks and cultural

          6  institutions.

          7                 The current construction of Hudson

          8  River Park offers one example of the conversion of

          9  abandoned industrial facilities to productive use,

         10  and the High Line could be similarly reclaimed and

         11  become an asset to the City and State of New York.

         12                 I consider the preservation of the

         13  best of the west side's industrial character to be

         14  extremely important for efforts to ensure that

         15  Chelsea, the Far West Village, the Gansevoort Meat

         16  Market and South Hell's Kitchen remain vibrant and

         17  unique places to live and work and do not become

         18  cookie-cutter neighborhoods which lose their

         19  character and history.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you.

         22                 MR. PARKER: My name is Gary Parker. I

         23  am here as a liaison for Assemblymember Deborah

         24  Glick, who is also in Albany with Senator Duane,

         25  it's a session day, but asked to be represented
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          2  here, and wanted to let you know that this is a very

          3  important issue to her, and she not only have

          4  testimony here today, but also has written a letter

          5  to the Governor, the Mayor, and the Speaker of the

          6  City Council.

          7                 I am here to express my strong

          8  support for the High Line and the resolution of

          9  Council Members Miller and Quinn.

         10                 The resolution urges the City to take

         11  all necessary steps to obtain a certificate of

         12  interim trail use from the United States Surface

         13  Transportation Board in connection with rail

         14  banking, the elevated railroad viaduct running from

         15  the 75-95 Gansevoort Street through West 34th

         16  Street, commonly referred to as the High Line.

         17                 As the Assemblymember representing

         18  the West Village and parts of Chelsea, the area in

         19  which a large portion of the High Line is located, I

         20  am exciting by the possibilities of a plan that

         21  reuses a historic structure.

         22                 The benefits include the preservation

         23  of open space, maintaining the panoramic views of

         24  the West Side Waterfront and creating a model urban

         25  promenade that will promote access and recreation.
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          2                 Interim trail use of the High Line

          3  offers a unique opportunity to connect neighborhoods

          4  on the 1.5 miles of elevated rail bank track, as

          5  well as guaranteeing that a monument to New York

          6  City's great past and history is remembered.

          7                 In addition, it is the policy of the

          8  United States government to "preserve established

          9  railroad rights of way for future reactivation of

         10  rail service, to protect rail transportation

         11  corridors and to encourage energy efficient

         12  transporation use..." With that in mind, maintenance

         13  of the High Line also allows for the possibility of

         14  reactivation for future transportation needs, as

         15  open space has enjoyed in the interim.

         16                 I appreciate your consideration.

         17  Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you both.

         19                 We are going to try to call people in

         20  pairs, at least, in order to keep the things moving

         21  quickly.

         22                 So, the next witnesses will be Amanda

         23  Burden and Lynden B. Miller. Two of my favorite

         24  people around.

         25                 MS. MILLER: Good afternoon. My name
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          2  is Lynden Miller, I am a public garden designer here

          3  in New York City. I have spent more than the last 18

          4  years preserving, restoring and creating public

          5  parks and gardens for my fellow New Yorkers.

          6                 I have worked from the Bronx to the

          7  Battery, and I know a great opportunity to provide

          8  New York City with exciting public space when I see

          9  one.

         10                 I want to support resolution 1747,

         11  calling upon the Mayor and the Governor and

         12  Metropolitan Authority to take all necessary steps

         13  to save the former elevated railroad line known as

         14  the High Line.

         15                 A few years ago, in connection with

         16  my work here in the City, I visited the Promenade

         17  Plantee in Paris, which has been mentioned by many

         18  people. It is a fabulous new public landscape in

         19  Paris built on top of an abandoned railroad viaduct

         20  in the 12th Arandessmo (phonetic). Being Paris,

         21  which supports its parks and gardens lavishly,

         22  unlike our City, plenty of public money has been

         23  spent to create a long richly planted walkway, which

         24  is must visited by Parisians and tourists alike.

         25                 The outdated railroad that is part of
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          2  a part of Paris that was economically in decline,

          3  not only is the Promenade Plantee beautiful today,

          4  but it has brought new life to the area it passes

          5  over with many visitors, shops and galleries

          6  underneath.

          7                 When I first saw it I thought

          8  wouldn't it be wonderful if only we could have

          9  something like this in New York. I didn't know about

         10  the High Line then, but I do now. Like many of my

         11  fellow New Yorkers, I'm competitive for my City,

         12  let's have something as good, if not better, for

         13  Paris. There are wonderful views of New York from

         14  the High Line, as people have mentioned, like

         15  experiencing the City sideways. You can walk along

         16  looking at the Hudson River, with its piers and

         17  boats, look down 14th Street all the way to the East

         18  River, down on smaller buildings and see the people

         19  going by. It is a unique way to enjoy our City.

         20                 Some day the high line could have

         21  gardens, art events, music, dance performances, all

         22  kinds of things people could enjoy, and all this in

         23  a neighborhood that has the least amount of open

         24  space per capita in the City.

         25                 I am proud to be a "romantic," as we
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          2  have been accused of being, and so is Frederick

          3  Omsted, and William Cullen Bryant.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: I'm pleased

          5  you're a romantic as well.

          6                 MS. MILLER: Excuse me?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: I said I'm

          8  pleased you're a romantic, as well.

          9                 MS. MILLER: That's nice, dear.

         10                 And so is Frederick Omsted and

         11  William Cullen Bryant, without whose vision we would

         12  not have Central Park.

         13                 More recently, if we had not been

         14  romantics, the conservatory garden would still be

         15  full of bottles and graffiti, and Bryant Park would

         16  still be full of drug dealers and this City would be

         17  a loser. Not to save the High Line would be a

         18  terrible lost opportunity for this great City.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you.

         20                 MS. BURDEN: Chairperson Miller,

         21  Council Member Quinn and any other Council members

         22  that are here, I'm honored to follow Lynden Miller.

         23  If anybody knows how to make a great public space,

         24  it's Lynden Miller, and I've learned a great deal

         25  from her. This is what I would be saying if there
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          2  were many Council members here, but I will continue.

          3                 I am a member of the City Planning

          4  Commission, as you may know, but I am coming here

          5  before you today to urge you to take any and all

          6  steps to ensure preservation of the High Line and to

          7  prevent its demolition.

          8                 I am testifying not in my official

          9  capacity as a Commissioner, but as a planner, an

         10  urban designer and a public space advocate.

         11                 Having been responsible for the

         12  design and construction of most of the park streets

         13  and art work at Battery Park City, I think my

         14  judgment is pretty reliable about what makes a

         15  successful public space, how to create a sense of

         16  place and that creating and preserving a sense of

         17  place can translate into lasting value for the

         18  public, for the land owners and for the City of New

         19  York.

         20                 If you look at the High Line in a

         21  photograph you can have little appreciation of its

         22  potential. But once you are on it, you are truly

         23  transported.

         24                 I understand that the High Line

         25  sponsors will be arranging for Council members who
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          2  walk the High Line some time this spring. And I

          3  strongly urge you, Council Members, and anyone in

          4  this room, to suspend any doubt about the intrinsic

          5  quality and value of this structure, until you have

          6  had the opportunity to walk the length of this

          7  elevated meadow, as it weaves through the industrial

          8  blocks of the west side. You will see that the High

          9  Line is visually and physically arresting from this

         10  unusual vantage point. And you will also see, as you

         11  meander along its serpentine length, how it can

         12  connect three growing neighborhoods.

         13                 You will see how this continuous

         14  ribbon of park lifted above street traffic could

         15  knit together a large portion of Manhattan's west

         16  side. And now you will be able to imagine if you

         17  walk back down to street level, how the streams of

         18  pedestrians moving above you, along the length of

         19  the High Line park, could bring life to now what is

         20  quite a bleak Tenth Avenue, and how activating that

         21  long-abandoned structure could become an urban

         22  amenity which could rejuvenate and revitalize an old

         23  industrial neighborhood.

         24                 And it is also my belief, and I am

         25  happy to see it's the belief of Edison Property
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          2  Owners, as well, that retaining the High Line will

          3  enhance real estate values.

          4                 Real estate values are always

          5  enhanced by well-designed parks and open space. And

          6  they also will improve the attraction and

          7  markability of adjacent properties.

          8                 The intrinsic real estate value of

          9  this area, I believe, is very much related to the

         10  unique character given to it by the presence of the

         11  High Line. The creation of a park on the High Line

         12  will ensure long-term desirability, and

         13  profitability of the properties located along its

         14  perimeter.

         15                 Clearly, the preservation and the

         16  reuse of the High Line is a rare chance to create a

         17  visionary public open space.

         18                 Please do not lose this opportunity,

         19  I strongly urge you to take all the appropriate

         20  measures to obtain a certificate of interim trail

         21  use in order to rail bank the High Line.

         22                 Thank you for your time, and for

         23  giving me the opportunity to testify.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you, both.

         25  No cross examination.
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          2                 The next witnesses are Joanne Morse

          3  of the Trust for Public Land, and Frank Sanchis of

          4  the Municipal Art Society.

          5                 Just identify yourself for the record

          6  and have at it.

          7                 MS. MORSE: I'm Joanne Morse. I'm from

          8  The Trust for Public Land, which is a national

          9  conservation organization with a particular

         10  commitment to providing opportunities for people to

         11  have access to open space.

         12                 We enthusiastically support

         13  resolution 1747, urging that all steps be taken to

         14  obtain a certificate of interim trail use, to

         15  provide the opportunity to make a plan for using the

         16  High Line for outdoor recreation.

         17                 The preserved High Line transforms a

         18  problematic location into a remarkable urban feature

         19  that will serve New Yorkers and attract visitors. It

         20  can provide a really interesting vibrant connection

         21  between those three newly revitalized neighborhoods,

         22  and opportunities for us, we have heard today, that

         23  contribute to the areas identity as an art hub and

         24  exciting neighborhoods.

         25                 I urge you not to lose this unique
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          2  opportunity. Found space is not found often, and

          3  create a spectacular public space for New Yorkers

          4  and visitors to enjoy.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you.

          6                 MR. SANCHIS: Good afternoon. My name

          7  is Frank Sanchis, and I am the Director of the

          8  Municipal Arts Society of New York. And I'm here

          9  today to speak in support of your resolution as an

         10  extremely important step toward the appropriate

         11  consideration of this extremely important resource

         12  here in New York City.

         13                 The Municipal Arts Society, as you

         14  probably know, advocates for excellence in the build

         15  environment, in urban design, architecture, historic

         16  preservation and public art, and the High Line

         17  embodies every single one of these disciplines. It's

         18  preservation and adaptive reuse is all about

         19  excellence and it's all about opportunity, and

         20  opportunity to preserve a significant piece of

         21  history, and an opportunity to use that piece of

         22  history to shape a new neighborhood for the 21st

         23  Century.

         24                 Other cities you have heard, like

         25  Paris, have successfully integrated historic
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          2  amenities just like this one into their future, and

          3  so can New York City.

          4                 The High Line, weaving its way as it

          5  does through mid blocks and even through buildings,

          6  has the potential to create an elevated pedestrian

          7  experience in access, unlike anything else in the

          8  City.

          9                 What is crucial now is to look past

         10  its cosmetically dilapidated structure and dank

         11  undercrofts with an eye  toward its promise of an

         12  elegant and useful public amenity, and to envision

         13  that promise to first consider the outcomes of the

         14  currently ongoing study by the design trust for

         15  public space schedules for completion this fall,

         16  which the society looks forward to showcasing in its

         17  galleries at the Urban Center.

         18                 We don't, of course, know now what

         19  the outcomes of that study will be, whether it makes

         20  sense to use the High Line as the pedestrian

         21  walkway, a location for light rail transportation or

         22  both, as a part in its current configuration or in

         23  some expanded form; how best to provide access to it

         24  from street level and from the upper stories of the

         25  buildings, embracing it and adjacent to it; how to
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          2  relate it to open spaces, both existing and future.

          3  All of this remains to be seen.

          4                 But we cannot imagine, having seen

          5  the potential of the High Line certain to emerge

          6  from this study, that the reason for its salvation,

          7  difficult for some to see at this time, will not be

          8  absolutely clear. The Society could not more

          9  strongly support the preservation of the High Line,

         10  certainly and at very least, until it's been

         11  thoroughly studied and assessed.

         12                 Thank you very much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you, both.

         14                 I understand there is a

         15  representative of Congressman Jerry Nadler here, and

         16  I wanted to call them to come on forward, if you

         17  would like to give your testimony.

         18                 MR. COCHRANE: Good afternoon. My name

         19  is Daryl Cochrane. I am a community representative

         20  for U.S. Congressman Jerrold Nadler, who represents

         21  the 8th Congressional District here in New York.

         22                 I testify today in support of the

         23  resolution to save the High Line. The resolution

         24  before you is an important step in helping to

         25  preserve an integral piece of our City's

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            123

          1  COMMITTEE ON STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2  infrastructure that could not be replicated.

          3                 More than 70 years ago, the High Line

          4  began to serve western Manhattan as the unique mode

          5  of rail freight transportation, bringing food and

          6  merchandise into the area.

          7                 In recent years it has sat dormant

          8  but has never lost its appeal for transit and

          9  recreation. By utilizing the federal Rails-to-Trails

         10  Program and creating an interim trail use, the High

         11  Line can once again serve as a prominent piece of

         12  our City's transportation infrastructure and gain a

         13  new recreational use.

         14                 Passing this resolution will not only

         15  precipitate saving a large swathe of open space for

         16  the recreation of thousands, but a mode of

         17  transportation could also be preserved for the

         18  fast-growing population of Manhattan's far west

         19  side.

         20                 Currently, the far west side is

         21  booming and beginning to place a burden on the

         22  existing transportation infrastructure of that area.

         23  By preserving the High Line, it would be possible to

         24  move residents north and south along the significant

         25  stretch through Manhattan and alleviate some of the
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          2  anticipated congestion. This resolution could go a

          3  long way in making that happen.

          4                 Also, by preserving the High Line,

          5  the City and State of New York, will be able to

          6  create a world renown urban amenity that will serve

          7  its community and attract a wide variety of

          8  visitors.

          9                 It's transportation and recreational

         10  use will artfully complement the Hudson River Park

         11  and act as a boon to Greenwich Village, the meat

         12  packing district, Chelsea and Lower Clinton.

         13                 The High Line will also serve to

         14  reinforce New York's international reputation as a

         15  hub for the art world.

         16                 Many people talk about the costs to

         17  be incurred to restore the High Line to prominence;

         18  however, that cost is dwarfed by any plan that would

         19  propose to build a new piece of transportation

         20  infrastructure from scratch.

         21                 It makes no sense to tear down a

         22  piece of perfectly good transportation

         23  infrastructure that would not only move people but

         24  do so in a manner unique to the entire world. That

         25  is the essence of New York City.
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          2                 I would lastly like to commend

          3  Friends of the High Line for the tremendous effort

          4  they have put into bringing this issue to the

          5  forefront.

          6                 The High Line is a monument to New

          7  York's great past, as a transportation and

          8  manufacturing hub.

          9                 Let's not lose the unique opportunity

         10  it presents us now to create a spectacular public

         11  space for future generations to enjoy and admire.

         12                 Many of you have heard the

         13  Congressman say before, "by preserving this

         14  one-of-a-kind monument to New York's railroad

         15  heritage, the City can keep its transportation

         16  options open in a rapidly changing neighborhood."

         17                 I urge you to pass this resolution

         18  and save the High Line.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you, and

         21  thank Congressman Nadler.

         22                 Next we're going to have -- we are

         23  going to call Benny Sirano. Is Mr. Sirano here?

         24  Okay. Ross Graham? She left. Michael Romanoff? Mr.

         25  Romanoff. And Gerald Hirsh? Mr. Hirsh? Great. The
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          2  two of you together would be great.

          3                 Let me just note that for those

          4  people who left, it will be noted that they came,

          5  they signed a card and they were in favor of or in

          6  opposition. When people have left, I understand that

          7  the hearing goes on, but it will be noted that they

          8  were here and what their view was.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 Please identify yourselves for the

         11  record, and as I say, have at it.

         12                 MR. ROMANOFF: My name is Michael

         13  Romanoff. I own the building located at 447-449 West

         14  13th Street, located on the northwest corner of 13th

         15  and Washington Street. The High Line and railroad

         16  bed runs over my property approximately 100 feet,

         17  and as a result of the problem of Conrail not

         18  maintaining the viaduct or the roadbed for the past

         19  20, 30 years, my property has been inundated with

         20  leaks and with water, to the point where the ceiling

         21  has collapsed in several of the rooms, we were

         22  unable to use those rooms, we're unable to rent

         23  those rooms, and as a result of that we entered into

         24  an agreement with Conrail. With their consent we

         25  built a spurious roof over the railroad bed,
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          2  corrugated steel, to prevent the leaks from coming

          3  into the building. It stopped some of the leaks, but

          4  the troughs and the side of the railroad still

          5  leaks, every day we get water, we get smelly water

          6  coming from the viaduct, it comes right down onto

          7  the street and at times it leaks into the building.

          8                 The viaduct has not been maintained

          9  and we have nothing but problems.

         10                 In addition, it is dangerous and

         11  hazardous because the concrete is still falling,

         12  there's bits of steel that fall off, it's a hazard

         13  for anyone to walk anywhere near that particular

         14  area.

         15                 I think in order to make this High

         16  Line safe, it really has to be rebuilt. You talk

         17  about using it for a park area, or whatever other

         18  purpose, that would be fine. But in order to really

         19  protect the property and protect the public, I think

         20  the superstructure would have to be rebuilt.

         21                 I think the columns run through my

         22  building and they are rusty, they are corroded, and

         23  it would not really support a permanent structure

         24  that's contemplated here. And I think that in order

         25  to really analyze this, your Committee should look
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          2  at the cost of not just fixing the drains and fixing

          3  the outside and making a park, but you have to go to

          4  the super structure, because that is what's really

          5  deteriorated, because it's been rusty for the last

          6  30 years, water is dripping on it and the bits of

          7  steel and concrete just keep coming, coming every

          8  single day. And we have nothing but problems.

          9                 So, I think that if anything should

         10  be done, it should be demolished or it should be

         11  completely rebuilt in its entirety.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you.

         13                 If the light is off, it's on.

         14                 MR. HIRSH: It's a red light.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Now it's on.

         16                 MR. HIRSH: Now it's on?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Now it's on.

         18                 MR. HIRSH: Now it's on. My name is

         19  Gerry Hirsh, and I own a piece of property at 450

         20  West 14th Street, and I think perhaps it is one of

         21  the more visible pieces of property along the High

         22  Line. It's that building on 14th Street where the

         23  train goes, or the viaduct goes through the

         24  building. I think anybody who has been in the area

         25  is quite familiar with it.
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          2                 I have been listening to the

          3  testimony of everybody before me for this project,

          4  and as beautiful as it sounds, I'm amazed. I've been

          5  there since 1950. My father was there since 1936. We

          6  saw it when it was at its height, and it was

          7  spectacular.

          8                 The building that I occupy right now

          9  serve the purpose of unloading carcass beef,

         10  bringing it into the building, down elevators,

         11  cutting it up and shipping it out.

         12                 Across the viaduct on the other side

         13  of the building, it was shared by another company,

         14  and further down the line, a variety of other

         15  companies for beef, lamb, veal, pork and a variety

         16  of other products that were brought into this City.

         17                 Things have changed. And though

         18  eloquently described for the potential of being a

         19  park, possibly could happen, there's no question

         20  about it, but the reality of it all is that it was

         21  never meant to be a park. To save it for a park the

         22  way it's constructed creates a lot of problems,

         23  practical problems.

         24                 Sure, with enough money you can do

         25  anything. With enough flowers and enough trees and
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          2  enough bushes, you can camouflage everything. But

          3  the reality of it all is that this viaduct that

          4  we're all talking about is specifically in the area

          5  from the Gansevoort Market up to 34th Street, is an

          6  area between two main streets, between 10th Avenue

          7  and 11th Avenue.

          8                 It's not facing on 10th, it's not

          9  facing on 11th, and basically the only property that

         10  sees the water is my building, because it's as high

         11  as it is, and a piece of the track that runs across

         12  14th Street, and maybe up to 15th Street. But we're

         13  talking about 250 yards of seeing the water.

         14                 If you go into my building, you don't

         15  see the water and you walk into a cavern of pipes

         16  and rails and just something that used to be and

         17  isn't any more. You can't plant trees there, there

         18  is no sun, and what I have experienced in the last

         19  several years are derelicts, destructive fires,

         20  specifically a four alarm fire that was just three

         21  weeks ago by those same derelicts who seek shelter

         22  along this high line.

         23                 Where do they come from? They can't

         24  come through my building. There are public accesses

         25  that are closed off. Those are fire violations. For
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          2  years I couldn't protect my own building because I

          3  was told you can't lock your door, it's a fire

          4  hazard, and they have to have access to get down and

          5  up, et cetera. So, my building was vandalized,

          6  burglarized, it is now in a variety of colors which

          7  I never imagined, the graffiti that's there, but

          8  bushes and trees and flowers will cover the graffiti

          9  at some point in time.

         10                 It's a dream, and I'm a dreamer like

         11  a lot of other people, so a lot of other people, but

         12  the practicality of this thing is really not there.

         13  It's not safe.

         14                 If you want to talk about rusting and

         15  concrete falling, there are other parts of the City,

         16  you can see it just as easily as you can see it on

         17  the West Side.

         18                 Within my building, where you can't

         19  see it because it doesn't fall on the sidewalk, I

         20  had a beam crash down into the cooler over a

         21  weekend. If it ever happened during a normal course

         22  of business, people would have been killed, without

         23  a doubt.

         24                 The destruction that takes place on a

         25  daily basis is something that CSX never addressed.
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          2  It wasn't their problem when they bought the

          3  property, and they haven't considered their problem

          4  since they have the property.

          5                 The water problem that exists over

          6  his roof exists in my building, and, though, we try

          7  to prevent it, it's not coming from up here, it

          8  could be coming from a mile up the road and just

          9  gravitating down as water will. Incredibly

         10  destructive. Because it seeps in between the

         11  concrete and the steel, in the winter it freezes,

         12  expands, in the summer it contracts, and pieces just

         13  fall down. They never have enough people around to

         14  protect the public for when these pieces fall down.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay.

         16                 MR. HIRSCH: In addition, it is a

         17  health problem, okay? Something else that was never

         18  raised. There are derelicts who feed up there, there

         19  are rats. There are other vermin that run back and

         20  forth. There is no control, there is no maintenance.

         21  This thing is deteriorating and self-destructing,

         22  and it's time for it to be removed and let progress

         23  proceed.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay, thank you

         25  both for your testimony.
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          2                 We're going to call another panel.

          3                 Maria Garcia Starky.

          4                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: She's coming.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: She's coming?

          6                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Cristabell Gof.

          8  Florent Morellet and Joe Hamilton.

          9                 We're going to ask, I know -- we're

         10  just going to ask everybody's sort of indulgence to

         11  be as brief as is possible, in order to try to get

         12  as many people to be able to testify as possible.

         13                 Anyone who wants to leave written

         14  testimony who has to leave is welcome to do so.

         15  There is a Sergeant-At-Arms right over here who can

         16  accept that. We do appreciate your testimony,

         17  whether written or oral.

         18                 Please, go ahead.

         19                 MS. GARCIA-STARKEY: My name is Maria

         20  Garcia-Starkey. I am representing Chelsea Owners and

         21  Tenants for Neighborhood Preservation. I'm an

         22  officer of Community Board 4, but I am not speaking

         23  in an official capacity.

         24                 I am also a resident of West Chelsea.

         25  I live at 24th Street and 10th Avenue.
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          2                 I can see the High Line from the roof

          3  of my building. The High Line is a place that

          4  matters to people. It has been the border of the far

          5  west side for as long as most of us can remember. We

          6  have reveled in its precariousness, and in the wild

          7  reeds and the young trees that smother its railroad

          8  tracks.

          9                 We like to gaze down from the roof of

         10  our building, from the windows of our apartments and

         11  see the change of seasons in its grasses. We like to

         12  see its petina against the setting sun. We like to

         13  imagine its former commerce.

         14                 There are so few places left in New

         15  York where we can imagine anything. The glass and

         16  brick towers that threaten the far west side will

         17  not be a place for pondering the past, or anything

         18  beyond the egos of developers who see it as the new

         19  western frontier. Let the developers be challenged.

         20  Perhaps their architects will be inspired by

         21  including our High Line in their design.

         22                 A few years ago I was in Big Ben

         23  National Park in Texas, the least visited national

         24  park in the United States.

         25                 My husband and I saw an area filled
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          2  with plants which seemed to be burned down near the

          3  roots, but which were still growing.

          4                 We asked a ranger about them and he

          5  said he had been at the park for four years and he

          6  didn't know of any controlled burn that would cause

          7  the plants to look that way. But just as we were

          8  about to leave, one of the rangers said there had

          9  been a control burn there eight years ago.

         10                 As a native New Yorker, the idea that

         11  some part of the earth could remain unchanged for so

         12  many years was quite a surprise. So few things in

         13  our City are like those plants, still growing, yet

         14  showing evidence of our past.

         15                 The High Line provides us with an

         16  opportunity to create continuity in a city where we

         17  continually struggle with the dilemma of preserving

         18  the past or planning for the future. Do we save a

         19  community garden or build affordable housing? Should

         20  we sacrifice open space along an historic waterfront

         21  in order to garner tax revenues from new businesses

         22  that want to locate there?

         23                 I have had the privilege of walking

         24  nearly the entire length of the High Line. Part of

         25  me wants to keep the wreathes and the young trees
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          2  that are like a forest undergrowth in the midst of a

          3  big city, but even if those grasses are replaced by

          4  manicured gardens, the High Line will be special.

          5                 Up there the din of the City

          6  subsides, the breeze from the river is stronger,

          7  suddenly your perspective is completely altered, not

          8  just because you're above it all, a position New

          9  Yorkers always enjoy, but because you're linked to

         10  the past.

         11                 If you have a very good imagination

         12  you can hear a train whistle, smell those wonderful

         13  bakery scents that must have once wasted across the

         14  tracks from the Nabisco building. You can look at

         15  the river and picture the bustling piers and men

         16  unloading ships' cargo and passengers alighting from

         17  great ocean-liners.

         18                 On behalf of my neighbors, I ask the

         19  City Council to please preserve the High Line so

         20  that we can have a place to imagine our past.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you.

         23                 MS. GOUGH: I'm Christabel Gough, and

         24  I'm representing the Society for the Architecture of

         25  the City, which is an all volunteer historic
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          2  preservation advocacy group based in Greenwich

          3  Village.

          4                 As you know, the High Line used to

          5  extend further into Greenwich Village, and we regret

          6  its loss. Don't let this happen in Chelsea.

          7                 New buildings on our waterfront are

          8  turning what was once a unique historic neighborhood

          9  into any place USA and this any place consists

         10  mainly of new housing, not the housing the City

         11  needs, but luxury housing. We strongly support your

         12  initiative to preserve what is left of the High Line

         13  viaduct. The demolition of this viaduct would

         14  significantly change the land use pattern of far

         15  west Chelsea in a way that could only damage a

         16  neighborhood that is now a new New York star, and

         17  unofficial, unplanned unique center for experiment

         18  in the arts.

         19                 Industrial buildings surrounding the

         20  viaducts are now home to cutting edge art galleries

         21  and off Off Broadway Theaters, as well as related

         22  shops and restaurants.

         23                 These adventurous new uses depend not

         24  only on reasonable rents or building values, but on

         25  the appeal of the off-beat landscape of the old
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          2  industrial waterfront.

          3                 The viaduct is picturesque and the

          4  industrial buildings that grew up around it have

          5  found viable new uses. There is no need to formulate

          6  new development here. Many have abandoned SoHo or

          7  Greenwich Village just because of the onslaught of

          8  gentile new luxury housing and national brand-driven

          9  retail conformity that dilute the former character

         10  of those places.

         11                 New York needs a few havens of

         12  non-conformity. What urban rebels are sarcastically

         13  calling franchise-free zones, both locals and

         14  tourists have a need for a place that is different.

         15  There are many legitimate forms of economic

         16  development, and a High Line urban trail through a

         17  fascinating old neighborhood could be an absolute

         18  winner for the City of New York.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you.

         20                 MR. MORELLET: Hi. My name is Florent

         21  Morellet, and I'm a romantic.

         22                 When I moved 16 years ago to the meat

         23  market, everybody told me I was crazy, and people

         24  ask me what do I think of the meat market now, and I

         25  like the meat market now but I liked it very much
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          2  the way it was then.

          3                 I think -- besides being a business

          4  owner, I'm the Co-Chair of the Save Gansevoort

          5  Market, which we created a year ago, and we are in

          6  full support of the High Line. I'm also representing

          7  two other business people; Martha Stewart, which

          8  cannot be here, and Sarah Fitzmaurice with Fitz and

          9  Company. And I'm going to read the statement of the

         10  task force.

         11                 Our task force is comprised of

         12  concerned citizens who are committed to protect the

         13  architectural and cultural history of the Gansevoort

         14  Market. We urge you to support the resolution of

         15  Council Member Miller and Quinn to obtain the

         16  certificate of interim trail use from the United

         17  States Surface Transportation Board in connection

         18  with rail banking the High Line.

         19                 And the High Line presents a unique

         20  opportunity -- I'm not going to read the whole

         21  thing, because it is actually exactly what everybody

         22  has been saying, but I think it's very important for

         23  us in the meat market, as far as preservation is in

         24  the market, that the High Line be kept all the way

         25  down, and thank you very much.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you.

          3                 MS. HAMILTON: My name is Jo Hamilton,

          4  and I'm Co-Chair with Florent at the Save Gansvoort

          5  Market Task Force.

          6                 The only thing I do want to add to

          7  what Florent said, which is, one of the things that

          8  we're very much interested in is trying to preserve

          9  the industrial history of New York. There is very

         10  little of that remaining as we replace it again and

         11  again with High Lines -- I mean, with residential

         12  and modern buildings.

         13                 I just wanted to address very

         14  briefly, kind of go off the point here a little bit.

         15  Council Member Quinn asked a very insightful

         16  question to Senator Ohrenstein and to leaders of the

         17  Chelsea Property Owners. She asked, well, what

         18  happens if the High Line disappears? What happens to

         19  that property? What happens to those neighborhoods?

         20  And, of course, they claimed nothing happens because

         21  we all know that building is controlled by zoning

         22  and zoning doesn't change if the High Line is

         23  removed.

         24                 Well, a few years ago I used to live

         25  west of the High Line, and if you remember back
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          2  then, this is the late eighties, middle-late

          3  eighties, early nineties, the high-line existed

          4  further south than Gansevoort Street. You actually

          5  went down at that time into the Thume Street

          6  (phonetic) and into the West Beth (phonetic), what

          7  was the old Bell Labs and the West Beth artist

          8  building. Well, I used to live west, and I can

          9  attest, I think somebody from the High Line said

         10  earlier that netting does work to help the pigeon

         11  problem, because I used to have to go under and back

         12  and forth, underneath that thing all the time, so

         13  netting is okay.

         14                 In the late eighties, early nineties,

         15  that three block section of the High Line was

         16  removed by the Rockrose Development Corporation

         17  (phonetic). By removing that section of the High

         18  Line, they freed up two development sites, and

         19  promptly put on those development sites high-rise

         20  residential.

         21                 But they did not put as-of-right

         22  development. They went to the BSA and asked for

         23  variances, one, to change the use from commercial to

         24  resident; and, two, to build beyond the envelope

         25  that the existing zoning allowed.
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          2                 I think that Council Member Quinn

          3  asked the right question, that we not only look at

          4  the possibilities of what the High Line can give by

          5  maintaining it, but what happens if the High Line

          6  goes away.

          7                 Thanks.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you.

          9                 Our next panel, Brian Elner. Is he

         10  still here, Brian? Community District School 2?

         11  Peter Mullen. Frank Lupo, of the Architectural

         12  League of New York, and Joel Sternfell. Is Mr.

         13  Sternfell still here? Oh, great.

         14                 MR. ELLNER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman,

         15  and remaining Council Members and Committee members.

         16                 My name is Brian Ellner, I'd like to

         17  testify briefly before you from three different

         18  perspectives: First, as a native New Yorker, I grew

         19  up due east of the High Line in Stuyvesant Town;

         20  currently as a member of Far West Chelsea, I live

         21  one block from the High Line; and as a member of

         22  Community School Board District 2. Now, as a native

         23  New Yorker, I'm all too familiar with our City's

         24  long history of demolishing some of our most

         25  treasured structures; the original Penn Station in
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          2  1963; the Singer Building; New York University's

          3  demolition of countless properties in the Village,

          4  including the Palladium, and a 19th century home of

          5  Egar Allen Poe. It was only the intervention of

          6  Jacqueline Onasis that prevented us from committing

          7  a similar grievous mistake with Grand Central

          8  Station, which is now a treasure of the City. In

          9  fact, it's one of the great urban structures of

         10  America. It's hard to imagine New York City without

         11  Grand Central.

         12                 Radio City was similarly saved from

         13  the wrecking ball in 1971 when at the last moment it

         14  was declared a landmark. It's hard to imagine New

         15  York City without Radio City Music Hall.

         16                 Similarly, I would argue that for

         17  residents of Far West Chelsea, it's hard to imagine

         18  our neighborhood without the High Line.

         19                 Property owners testified earlier,

         20  people who own property below the High Line,

         21  testified that the High Line was an eyesore, it was

         22  grotesque, it's crumbling, however, I believe it is

         23  the High Line's distinctive quality that breeds

         24  creativity in our neighborhood, that has transformed

         25  our neighborhood into an art center of the City. The
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          2  High Line inspires. Frankly, the High Line has

          3  created a neighborhood feel for us, is a far cry

          4  from the pristine Starbuck filled streets that now

          5  confront most New Yorkers. It makes our neighborhood

          6  distinctive.

          7                 Now, the High Line stands entirely

          8  within the boundaries of Community School District

          9  2. At our last public board meeting, our board

         10  unanimously passed a resolution to support the

         11  preservation of the High Line and its transformation

         12  into an open public space. There are six District 2

         13  schools that are located in close proximity to the

         14  High Line, there are also three non-district 2

         15  public schools located near the High Line, including

         16  Baerd Rustin High School (phonetic), which educates

         17  almost 2,000 students.

         18                 Now, these District 2 and

         19  non-District 2 public schools are located in

         20  Community Board 4, which encompasses Chelsea and

         21  Clinton.

         22                 According to 1999 statistics, only

         23  two percent, two percent of the land in District 4

         24  is devoted to open space or outdoor recreation.

         25                 As Council Member Quinn noted, there
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          2  are only three parks in Chelsea for our children.

          3  This, there is simply an appalling lack of open

          4  public space for our children who already attending

          5  overcrowded schools, where gymnasiums often double,

          6  as cafeterias and auditoriums, the creation of a 1.5

          7  mile long park or esplanade running through the

          8  western edge of our district, would do a great deal

          9  to alleviate the problems created by a dramatic lack

         10  of outdoor recreational space for our City's

         11  children.

         12                 Finally, the preservation and

         13  transformation of the High Line into an open public

         14  space will play other educational roles. For one

         15  thing, it teaches our children about our City's

         16  past. It's a wonderful piece of living history.

         17                 Finally, it's my hope that the

         18  children within our City schools, particularly those

         19  who attend schools in and around the High Line will

         20  play a role in its transformation, and once it is

         21  transformed into an open public space will

         22  participate in a whole range of activities on the

         23  High Line, including environmental studies, art

         24  exhibitions, walking educational tours and the like.

         25                 Again, I thank the Committee for
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          2  considering this important piece of legislation.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you.

          4                 MR. MULLEN: Can you hear me?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Yes.

          6                 MR. MULLEN: Good afternoon. My name

          7  is Peter Mullen, I am a Friend of the High Line, and

          8  I am also an architect here in New York.

          9                 I am here as a representative of the

         10  architectural community, which has come out in

         11  overwhelming support and actually uncommon

         12  enthusiasm for the rail banking of the High Line.

         13                 Just to list some of the

         14  organizations, architectural organizations, that

         15  have lent their support for the New York

         16  Architectural League, the New York Chapter of the

         17  AIA, the Municipal Arts Society, we heard from the

         18  director earlier. Prominent architects who have lent

         19  their support: Robert Stern, who is currently Dean

         20  of the Yale School of Architecture, Richard Meier,

         21  Gary Handel, James Polshek, who was the former Dean

         22  of the Columbia School of Architecture, Hugh Hardy,

         23  Bernard Shumy, who is the current Dean of Columbia

         24  School of Architecture, Steven Hall, Richard Pluntz,

         25  who is the Director of Urban Design up at Columbia.
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          2                 I just want to read a letter written

          3  by Jim Polshek, just to give you a sense of why I

          4  think the architectural community has been so active

          5  in coming out in support of this resolution.

          6                 Dear Governor Pataki, Mayor Giuliani

          7  and Speaker Vallone:

          8                 I have been a long-time admirer of

          9  the High Line and its relationship to our City. I

         10  live and work in Greenwich Village and my office has

         11  looked at on the southern spur of the High Line for

         12  the past 15 years.

         13                 As both architect and citizen of the

         14  City and State of New York, I support the resolution

         15  of Council Members Miller and Quinn urging you to

         16  take all necessary steps to obtain a certificate of

         17  interim trail use from the United States Surface

         18  Transportation Board in connection with rail banking

         19  the High Line.

         20                 As a piece of industrial

         21  infrastructure, reuse of the High Line represents a

         22  unique opportunity for the invigoration of New

         23  York's urban landscape.

         24                 As tourism replaces manufacturing as

         25  the City's economic engine, the High Line stands as
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          2  a linchpin connecting the City's past and future.

          3                 The High Line is a living testament

          4  to the robust but fading history of manufacturing in

          5  New York and now presents the opportunity to enrich

          6  the public space of the City in one of its fastest

          7  emerging neighborhoods.

          8                 It is already happening.

          9  Architectural projects are already taking advantage

         10  of the High Line's latent possibilities. Look at the

         11  new gas station and car wash recently built under

         12  the High Line at 10th Avenue between 14th and 15th

         13  Streets. The station features a metal frame and

         14  glass screen attached to the structure of the High

         15  Line, which functions as both a sign for the station

         16  and a frame through which to view the elegant

         17  structure of the High Line itself.

         18                 By virtue of its relationship with

         19  the High Line, therefore, the project has elevated

         20  itself beyond the finality of its program.

         21                 This example only points to the

         22  enumerable ways in which architectural solutions may

         23  be found to reuse the High Line in unexpected and

         24  exciting ways.

         25                 As a footnote, I would like to point
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          2  out two more famous rail-based infrastructure

          3  projects in New York, the old Penn Station and Grand

          4  Central Station.

          5                 One was demolished, only to be

          6  resurrected 35 years later. Another was saved due to

          7  the intervention of visionary citizens and has been

          8  renovated to great success.

          9                 Both projects, however, persisted in

         10  the consciousness of the City until it was

         11  impossible for them not to be brought back to life.

         12  Let us not wait until it is too late to bring the

         13  High Line back to life in the public life of the

         14  City.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you.

         17                 MR. STERNFELD: I think it was

         18  Einstein who said "genius is ten percent intellect,

         19  ten percent hard work and 80 percent learning to

         20  keep your mouth shut." I'm going to try to be a

         21  genius.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay.

         23                 Identify yourself for the record.

         24  There are people somewhere in some room that are

         25  going to listen to this and not known.
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          2                 MR. STERNFELD: I'm Joel Sternfeld. I

          3  am a photographer, and these pictures --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: We are indebted

          5  to you for the pictures, the beautiful pictures that

          6  you took.

          7                 For the last year, with the very kind

          8  permission of CSX, I've been walking the High Line,

          9  and I'm here to tell you there are no rats and no

         10  derelicts, just migratory birds.

         11                 Just this past Saturday, I was up

         12  there, and I stayed up late because I was hoping to

         13  see something, and sure enough at dusk every five

         14  feet, little golden wobblers (phonetic), little

         15  jewels rose up before my feet. I have-- I am not a

         16  nothologist (phonetic) but I have the felt sense

         17  that the High Line is a natural bird migratory

         18  pathway, and I hope these wobblers turn out to be

         19  snail darters, if you know what I mean.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: We will send some

         21  scientist up to look for endangered species. Like

         22  the bass.

         23                 MR. STERNFELD: Exactly.

         24                 I am going to throw away all of my

         25  prepared comments and tell you, it's just beautiful
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          2  up there. It's great. Unless you've walked it

          3  throughout the seasons, you can't possibly know how

          4  terrific a place this can be.

          5                 In fact, I feel like --there was a

          6  photographer in the 1870s, Timothy O'Sullivan, and

          7  for years around the campfires of the west, there

          8  had been rumors of a magical kingdom, but until

          9  O'Sullivan went up and photographed this magical

         10  kingdom, nobody knew that it really existed, and

         11  that turned out to be Yellowstone National Park, and

         12  as soon as he brought back the pictures, the US

         13  Congress created Yellow Stone National Park.

         14                 This place up there, what's amazing

         15  about the High Line is, except for a few people in

         16  this room, and a few others, nobody really knows how

         17  truly, truly beautiful the High Line can be.

         18                 And I just want to use one more

         19  minute to point out one or two other aspects of

         20  this.

         21                 The remarks about Hudson River Park,

         22  I can't help but saying I'm a runner, and as anybody

         23  knows, you're in danger of being trampled in Hudson

         24  River Park right now. It's already overused.

         25                 I also want to point out that the
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          2  fact that all this controversial information is

          3  coming out, as you well know, ought not to deter us.

          4                 The opposition to the Vietnam

          5  Memorial was immense, I don't think there was any

          6  national monument which experienced greater

          7  opposition, and it has now become one of the most

          8  beloved and most visited monuments in Washington,

          9  D.C. This is not a time in New York City for

         10  short-term thinking, and this is certainly not a

         11  time in New York City for Small Town thinking. The

         12  world is becoming increasingly urban, as well you

         13  know perhaps 90 percent urban. What we do here in

         14  New York City has symbolic value for the entire

         15  world, and we're going to have to hang our heads in

         16  shame if we don't create this park.

         17                 And in the near future, all of us

         18  will have the chance to go up there and see some

         19  wobblers. Thanks.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you.

         21                 Our next panel, Tomislav Neuman. Mr.

         22  Nueman?

         23                 MR. NEUMAN: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay.

         25                 David Duccini. Is Mr. Duchini here?
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          2                 MR. DUCHINI: Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Joseph Marraro.

          4                 MR. MARRARO: Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: And Edward

          6  Kirkland. Mr. Kirkland, are you here?

          7                 MR. KIRKLAND: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Great. Thank you.

          9                 MR. KIRKLAND: Im not in opposition.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Are you not in

         11  opposition?

         12                 MR. KIRKLAND: No, I'm not.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Oh, we will call

         14  you for the next panel. I'm sorry.

         15                 Daniel Emerman. Mr. Emerman?  No.

         16                 And Cheryl Kupper, would you like to

         17  come up and be on this panel?

         18                 MS. KUPPER: Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay.

         20                 Please identify yourselves for the

         21  record and begin. And we appreciate your patience,

         22  and the patience of everyone here.

         23                 MR. NEUMAN: Tomislav Newman.  I'm the

         24  Executive Director for Forty Plus Club here in New

         25  York, who wish to extend their sincere gratitude for
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          2  allow our group the opportunity to alert the City

          3  Council of our serious interest in the High Line

          4  property and our extraordinary proposal at this

          5  time.

          6                 In the event that you are not

          7  familiar with our organization, the Forty Plus Club

          8  is a national and international legendary charitable

          9  organization, originally established here in New

         10  York City in 1939, that passionately supports

         11  employment-generating programs.

         12                 Forty Plus is a remarkably, very

         13  American organization, which has met serious

         14  challenges not through big government or as isolated

         15  individuals, but as members of the true community to

         16  combat and effectively eliminate the historic

         17  tolerance of age discrimination.

         18                 We have the enviable distinction of

         19  placing 100 percent of our members and over 100,000

         20  individuals who have become valued contributors to

         21  the new employers.

         22                 Forty Plus is intensely independent

         23  and has rightly earned the respect and the body and

         24  gratitude of all those we have served.

         25                 Our mission here in New York is to
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          2  assist unemployed New Yorkers regain gainful

          3  employment.

          4                 Over the past 62 years, we have been

          5  fortunate to establish an effective and caring

          6  network of alumni and friends, which are constantly

          7  assisting Forty Plus methods to secure resources in

          8  order to expand and update our services.

          9                 Our purpose here today is to alert

         10  the City Council of our ongoing efforts to obtain

         11  and reactivate the elevated rail line known as the

         12  High Line.

         13                 Our group has diligently worked for

         14  15 years at producing a credible development and

         15  management team to rehabilitate and reactivate the

         16  High Line Rail system intending to ingenerate added

         17  revenues for Forty Plus.

         18                 As a brief history, we had originally

         19  been in negotiations with Conrail and now presently

         20  the new custodians of the High Rail CSX, in addition

         21  to the Surface Transportation Board, the Mayor's

         22  Office, the US Postal Service, the Javits Convention

         23  Center, New York Jets Organization, MTA, and various

         24  private enterprises, among others, to acquire this

         25  property, in which all revenues would be reinvested
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          2  within our program designed to assist unemployed New

          3  Yorkers.

          4                 Our proposal will clearly demonstrate

          5  our innovative intermodal rail freight technology,

          6  will also be effectively employed to accommodate

          7  rail passenger service and be customized to

          8  effectively facilitate the rail transportation of

          9  commuters for along Tenth Avenue, between 34th and

         10  Gansevoort Street.

         11                 In addition, our ongoing discussions

         12  with the Mayor's Office consists of offering an

         13  extraordinary solution to the 365-day calamitous

         14  bus-parking dilemma, escalating every day in the

         15  theater district.

         16                 Simply by rehabilitating the dormant

         17  High Line, elevated rail line with our partners

         18  patented innovative technology designed to

         19  effectively reactivate rail service plus comfortably

         20  accommodate all of the currently illegally parked

         21  buses that have for decades continually plagued the

         22  residents of the West Side.

         23                 Any future development of either the

         24  Javits Convention Center or potential Sports Stadium

         25  can only exacerbate the lack of legal bus parking in
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          2  Manhattan.

          3                 Our facility can accommodate the 700

          4  plus Charter buses that come into the City each day

          5  or over 2,000 passenger cars. Our proposal can

          6  easily respond to the added demand that a sports

          7  complex would generate.

          8                 As you are aware, the High Line

          9  coincidently circumnavigates the very properties

         10  that have been proposed as sites for an Olympic

         11  stadium or a professional sports and expanded

         12  convention center complex.

         13                 Our development team has had the

         14  opportunity to review the recent public proposals

         15  and we wish to point out that with mutual

         16  cooperation, some very modest, if any, architectural

         17  modifications, to existing and/or future designs,

         18  both High Line and any project can not only

         19  comfortably coexist but our facility can offer a

         20  priceless VIP enhancement to all designs by

         21  immediately responding to the growing demand for

         22  buses and automobiles, not to mention passenger

         23  transport that could otherwise not be accommodated.

         24                 The results would be unprecedented

         25  convenience and security, improved quality of life,
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          2  not to mention greater resources for Forty Plus to

          3  reinvest into our mission to insist unemployed New

          4  Yorkers in obtaining gainful employment.

          5                 It would be obvious that in light of

          6  the current extraordinary development of over 5,000

          7  plus new apartments, 100 new art galleries, retail,

          8  new hotels, restaurants, within the Chelsea Clinton

          9  area, the vacant lots historically utilized for

         10  parking and freight delivery, have now been

         11  resurrected into gleaming new high-rise homes, in

         12  addition to factory conversions and to lost co-ops,

         13  condos, painfully eliminated 1,000 plus parking

         14  spaces.

         15                 Our proposal is amazingly flexible.

         16  We are designed to facilitate both passengers,

         17  freight and buses, plus provide the equivalent of

         18  over 2,000 spaces for automobiles with our

         19  environmental and user-friendly 24/7 on demand

         20  alacourt parking system.

         21                 Our rail/freight facility is

         22  brilliantly designed to complement and enhance

         23  current and future passenger transportation needs

         24  that are continually created as a result of

         25  Manhattan's phenomenal growth, thus effortlessly
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          2  addressing community concerns caused by the lack of

          3  public transportation and parking.

          4                 Since our proposal is custom built

          5  around the premise of generating employment for New

          6  Yorkers, in creating resources to expand our

          7  commission, any west side development would only

          8  translate into an indispensible demand for inspired

          9  mass transit, mail distribution, auto, bus parking

         10  facility services. The added beauty to our proposal

         11  is that we fully satisfy all local zoning, federal

         12  class III short line and railroad stipulations and

         13  exceed all environmental and safety standards, plus

         14  comply with the American Disabilities Act, while

         15  aesthetically the High Line literally hides in plain

         16  sight, is unobtrusive and can easily and effectively

         17  correct present and future quality of life problems

         18  in an environmentally friendly manner, at no cost to

         19  taxpayers.

         20                 A number of unique features that

         21  could be of interest to the neighborhood development

         22  would be the obvious on-demand VIP parking and bus

         23  parking, plus containerized freight shipped in or

         24  out of Manhattan via the rail line.

         25                 Another extraordinary feature would
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          2  be the actual passenger transportation to and from a

          3  stadium or convention center via the High Line to up

          4  to 26 intersections, onto private sidings of the

          5  convention center, expansion center or sports

          6  stadium, where passengers could exit directly into

          7  or in the complex 24/7 to any one of the

          8  intersections that the High Line passenger serve or

          9  traverses, from West 37th Street to Gansevoort

         10  Street for both local or express passenger pick-up

         11  or delivery.

         12                 It may be difficult to visualize such

         13  a remarkable amenity, since anyone without our

         14  organization's technology anticipated a resurrection

         15  of this impressive facility after 25 plus years of

         16  non-use.

         17                 However, one of the remarkable

         18  attributes of 40 Plus genius has been to

         19  successfully reactivate and rehabilitate truncated

         20  careers of remarkable members, once thought past

         21  their prime. We incorporate this skill into this

         22  project. Our organization will be very interested in

         23  reviewing the feasibility of designing a proposal

         24  that would more accurately address the usage of this

         25  remarkable facility to complement and bring added
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          2  efficiency into our neighborhood.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Mr. Neuman?

          4                 MR. NEUMAN: Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: We have your

          6  written testimony here, and there is an awful lot.

          7  If you could just sort of sum up, we will make sure

          8  that the written testimony is fully part of the

          9  entire record.

         10                 MR. NEUMAN: Well, basically, as you

         11  may be aware, we look at this as a win/win for all

         12  parties.

         13                 Congress has directed the STB to

         14  prioritize the reactivation of dormant rail lines

         15  over abandonment, alternative usage or demolition.

         16                 We would be a legitimate class III

         17  short line railroad, bring a great deal of quality

         18  of life and economic impact and support into the

         19  community, which know the proposal has been able to

         20  demonstrate, plus be economically viable by not

         21  relying strictly on one criteria. Since we would be

         22  impacting on a number of different types of economic

         23  opportunity.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay.

         25                 Thank you very much for your
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          2  testimony. I apologize, it's our fault, it's my

          3  fault for not being tougher.

          4                 MR. NEUMAN: We appreciate the

          5  opportunity.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: So, I thank you

          7  very much. We will certainly make it part of the

          8  record. We appreciate your patience.

          9                 Who would like to go next? Anyone who

         10  wants.

         11                 MR. MARRARO: Good afternoon. My name

         12  is Joseph Marraro, and with the Duchini Trust,

         13  represented as corporate trustee.

         14                 What we are here for is to represent

         15  as private property owner, that we own the

         16  properties at 505-511 West 24th Street, 245-247

         17  Tenth Avenue, and 510-512 West 25th Street.

         18                 Now, the High Line is about 200 feet

         19  in length across the property, and over a period of

         20  about 20 years there has been a considerable amount

         21  of damage cost to the property, chunks of concrete

         22  have fallen onto the property, piercing roofs of

         23  small improvements on the property, narrowly missing

         24  certain people working at this property.

         25                 The major tenant that's been
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          2  occupying this property since 1911 has been Adolph's

          3  Trucking Company, and I have here next to me David

          4  Duchini, the President of that company.

          5                 Over a period of time Mr. Duchini has

          6  witnessed chunks of concrete and steel and a

          7  significant water runoff from the High Line and has

          8  gone on record writing letters, many of which are

          9  certified and have been copied and submitted to the

         10  Council for their review, from the 1980s, all the

         11  way through the 1990s, with respect to putting

         12  Conrail on notice of the lack of maintenance that

         13  they were responsible to adhering to under the

         14  easement agreement that affects these properties,

         15  and, you know, resulting with back and forth

         16  communication over a period of years. Inspectors had

         17  gone out and actually dislodged further pieces,

         18  sections of concrete from the structure, and as a

         19  result, you know, has more or less found that due to

         20  the lack of maintenance over a period of time, and

         21  the non-use of the railroad structure, it has

         22  advanced the end of its useful life.

         23                 The drainage systems and the way it's

         24  designed to operate have been clogged. Many of the

         25  drains are rusted and their solid, and the water
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          2  runoff has caused the concrete and the underside of

          3  the structure to rapidly deteriorate and it's now at

          4  the point of, you know, a severe hazard to anyone

          5  underneath the High Line, and you can never tell,

          6  from what I could view from my involvement on this

          7  property, when any chunk will come down. And even

          8  when you give a glance or an inspector would come

          9  and take a look at it, you would never be able to

         10  tell what section during what storm is going to come

         11  down, and, therefore, it's dangerous, and that's the

         12  reason we're in opposition of keeping the High Line

         13  up because it's unfathomable to believe that whoever

         14  would then be in control of the High Line going

         15  forward would be able to properly maintain it,

         16  insure it against liability, and protect the

         17  property owners of the properties underlying the

         18  High Line.

         19                 Thank you very much.

         20                 MR. DUCHINI: The only thing I would

         21  add is that my dad and I have been there since 1923,

         22  so we would have more knowledge and experience than

         23  anybody else that's been here before, because I'm

         24  sure we're probably the oldest people there. We've

         25  seen many, many things happen, and we've done
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          2  everything in our power to protect our property. It

          3  looks like a war zone so-to-speak, with all the

          4  various things that we've done to try to protect it,

          5  which actually didn't work anyhow because we've had

          6  many people running or jumping off the High Line

          7  onto our buildings and so forth, and thefts and one

          8  thing or another.

          9                 But we had one close call that really

         10  scared me one day when one of our mechanics walked

         11  by and all of a sudden a chunk of concrete about two

         12  feet long and about a foot wide came down within two

         13  or three seconds of his passing. Had it hit him, he

         14  would have been buried right where he was hit.

         15                 I don't want to take any more time,

         16  but I think the railroad, which has not been

         17  maintained at any time, either New York Central,

         18  Conrail or CSX, in all the time that we've been

         19  there, they've never done anything to maintain it.

         20  And all of our drains are all plugged solid with

         21  rust. So the water has to go somewhere, and with the

         22  winter, it freezes, and, you know, it's going to

         23  crack more concrete, and there's a very bad exposure

         24  for something disastrous to happen.

         25                 With that, I think I would like to
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          2  conclude what I have to say.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you for

          4  your testimony.

          5                 MS. KUPPER: Good afternoon, Mr.

          6  Miller, Ms. Quinn.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Good afternoon.

          8                 MS. KUPPER: I will be as brief as I

          9  can.

         10                 My name is Cheryl Kupper. I'm a

         11  member of Community Board 4, a member of Manhattan

         12  Neighborhood Council, member of the Council of

         13  Chelsea Block Association and my own Block

         14  Association, but I'm here for myself.

         15                 I had intended to come before you to

         16  speak against the bill before you, for myself and my

         17  like-minded neighbors, from the far west side of

         18  Chelsea.

         19                 But this morning I have received at

         20  least six phone calls from various other neighbors

         21  who represent not only the Council of Chelsea Block

         22  Associations, which is an umbrella group of all the

         23  BAs in the district, but other block associations

         24  individually, notably the West 400 Block

         25  Association, two from West 20th Street, and my own
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          2  from 17th, 18th, and 19th Streets.

          3                 So, in short, I'm speaking sort of

          4  for the real people, the little people, as Mrs.

          5  Helmsley used to refer to, those of us who just

          6  lived there, and have no ulterior interests or

          7  motives, but who are most intimately affected by the

          8  High Line.

          9                 I think this is a classic case of if

         10  you see one mouse, you know there are 500 in the

         11  walls, and believe me, they are there.

         12                 I, and all the rest of us, wish to

         13  speak out in strong terms for the demolition of the

         14  High Line as soon as possible and against the bill

         15  you have before you.

         16                 For the past 10 years this has been

         17  the policy of the Council of Chelsea Block

         18  Associations.

         19                 The only stumbling block as far as we

         20  knew with who was going to pay for the demolition,

         21  since we were not, and the argument seemed to be

         22  between the Chelsea property owners and the railroad

         23  and its various incarnations.

         24                 A minor fly in our ointment was the

         25  policy adopted by Community Board 4 in 1992, to
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          2  retain the High Line for a number of reasons, a

          3  number of railroads, possibility of transportation

          4  down on the West Side and the indeterminate future,

          5  and the prevention of dreaded gentrification.

          6                 Nevertheless, to our knowledge, the

          7  main problem was simply who was going to pay to tear

          8  the damn thing down.

          9                 Now we are faced with a new proposal

         10  from a new generation, for a park on the High Line,

         11  and the picture in imagination is one of an eighth

         12  wonder of the world, a new hanging garden of

         13  Babylon, which may be appropriate for far west

         14  Chelsea, and a lovely prospect it is indeed.

         15                 The problem remains, however, it is

         16  simply a dream, a dream that will surely become a

         17  climera. Where will the millions its realization

         18  will take to come from? Is it to be from the public

         19  trough again? And how long will it take to do this?

         20  Where will the security come from and so on?

         21                 We don't despise history nor all that

         22  is old. The High Line is only a few years older than

         23  I, and I am not ready to sell or demolish. Yet, the

         24  High Line is not Penn Station, or Yellow Stone Park,

         25  and its loss would not be comparable.
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          2                 In the meantime, since its demise, it

          3  is crumbled to a ruin. One question all New Yorkers

          4  ask is where do pigeons come from? One never sees

          5  their nest. The answer, of course, is the nests are

          6  all under the High Line.

          7                 To summarize the demerits of the High

          8  Line, it is ugly, it is dirty, its condition is

          9  dangerous, and it is as obstructive as a prison wall

         10  blocking everyone who lives on the west side, from

         11  the breeze, the view of the sunset, the sight of the

         12  river, as surely as a prison wall does. It

         13  ghettoizes the areas to its east and to its west.

         14  Just listen to prospective nightclub owners coming

         15  to the SLA to testify about how that hideous old

         16  railroad makes the neighborhood suitable for their

         17  clubs, which will do nothing but bring civilization

         18  to the area.

         19                 The function of the abandoned High

         20  Line has been to create an armpit of a neighborhood

         21  and to divide those who live closest to the river

         22  and the new park from the river and the park. Give

         23  us our freedom, let the demolition proceed, and,

         24  please, do not send this bill forward.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you for

          3  your testimony.

          4                 Our next panel is Claire Weisz. Ms.

          5  Weisz is here.

          6                 Graham Haber.

          7                 Mr. Kirkland, okay.

          8                 Is Mr. Haber here? No, okay.

          9                 Toby Brandt? No. June Wick?

         10                 MS. WICK: Here.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Ms. Wick.

         12                 Warfield Price? My colleague thinks

         13  that's a great name. Mr. Price, please come forward.

         14  So, that puts us at four.

         15                 Okay, Mr. Weisz.

         16                 MR. WEISZ: Mr. Chairman --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: No, if the light

         18  is on, it's off.

         19                 MS. WEISZ: All right, okay, now we're

         20  on.

         21                 Mr. Chairman, Committee members, City

         22  Council members, and whoever is left standing here

         23  at this hearing, I am Claire Weisz, the Co-Director

         24  of the Design Trust for Public Space.

         25                 As you heard earlier on in the
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          2  session, we are currently undertaking a study of the

          3  High Line. Just for all of you who never heard of

          4  the Design Trust, we are a not-for-profit

          5  organization, dedicated to the improvement of the

          6  design of public space in New York.

          7                 To this aim, the Design Trust Fund's

          8  collaborations between private design professionals

          9  and the public sector to explore design and

         10  development issues confronting our open space,

         11  public architecture and infrastructure.

         12                 I want to point out here that we do

         13  not advocate for particular outcomes, even here in

         14  the case of the High Line, but we advocate for the

         15  process of creating excellence in our public spaces.

         16                 Some of our partners have included

         17  the New York City Department of Design and

         18  Construction, the Arts Commission, the Brooklyn

         19  Public Library, Manhattan Community Board 4, some of

         20  the members are here today, Bronx Community Board 3,

         21  the Trust for Public Land, the Parks Council, Hell's

         22  Kitchen Neighborhood Association and Community

         23  Gardens and parks in the Bronx, Brooklyn, Queens and

         24  Staten Island.

         25                 We are currently funding a study of
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          2  the High Line's potential as a public amenity for

          3  New York City.

          4                 The Design Trusts are providing the

          5  professional design and planning expertise necessary

          6  for the Friends of the High Line to conduct a very

          7  specific planning study. And I want to say that the

          8  Friends of the High Line is being brave enough to

          9  apply for funding for a study that is specifically

         10  non-partisan, and I want to commend them for that,

         11  since they, themselves do not, and we do not

         12  guarantee the outcomes of this study. This study

         13  will be offering strategies for the structure's

         14  reuse, a critical step in understanding the High

         15  Line's potential.

         16                 Friends of the High Line submitted a

         17  proposal to the Design Trust asking for help framing

         18  a design vision for rehabilitated High Line, an

         19  invited jury, a very eminent professionals, planners

         20  and architects selected a project out of 20

         21  competing submissions from other public agencies in

         22  the City of New York and from other community

         23  groups.

         24                 We, the jury recognized its potential

         25  to add new public space to an area severely lacking
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          2  in recreational space. Because of this, and because

          3  of all of the thoughts we heard today about its

          4  possibilities for its demolition, the jury selected

          5  this project, the Design Trust only supports one new

          6  project a year, and because we are convinced of the

          7  High Line's importance as a public amenity, we

          8  approve this project.

          9                 If this invaluable structure is

         10  demolished before its potential is properly

         11  assessed, the City will be squandering the

         12  opportunity to provide a unique public space of

         13  lasting value to all New Yorkers.

         14                 We need to consider the long-term

         15  consequences and allow the time to develop a viable

         16  vision for its reuse.

         17                 In the context of the ongoing broad

         18  scale redevelopment and talk of redevelopment of the

         19  west side, retaining the High Line will play a

         20  pivotal role in guaranteeing needed open space,

         21  using space that already exists.

         22                 The provision of this unique open

         23  space and its connections to the Village, Chelsea

         24  and Clinton, over its one and a half mile span can

         25  stitch these neighborhoods together and provide
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          2  essential breathing space, in a neighborhood that

          3  has little open space within its City blocks.

          4                 This unique and historic piece of

          5  infrastructure could frame a livable neighborhood, a

          6  local destination and a signature for all the West

          7  Side development.

          8                 We would also like to say as

          9  advocates for well designed public spaces, we are

         10  also proud to endorse the Friends of the High Line,

         11  the organization that received the Design Trust

         12  Project grant this year.

         13                 Friends of the High Line founded by

         14  residents of Chelsea and the West Village has

         15  galvanized the efforts for saving and reusing the

         16  High Line currently. They have demonstrated their

         17  commitment to a public and open process and skill as

         18  a proactive organization that has already garnered

         19  significant community support, as well as the

         20  support of elected officials.

         21                 And I also want to say, as they move

         22  forward, they will be -- we will be doing a study

         23  that looks forward to hearing from many of the

         24  people who have other opinions on the High Line,

         25  other than its reuse in the aforementioned spaces,
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          2  and many of you, I hope, who haven't been contacted

          3  already, will be interviewed by the design

          4  professionals working on this study.

          5                 I'd like to say that we would like

          6  then to ask this Committee to endorse using the

          7  Rails to Trails program as a way to allow the High

          8  Line to become a public urban amenity for all New

          9  Yorkers, if only to start a discussion among a

         10  broader group of the importance of public space in

         11  the City.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you.

         14                 MR. KIRKLAND: My name is Edward

         15  Kirkland, and I didn't sign up for or against

         16  because I have very mixed feelings about it, above

         17  all, because as a Chair of the Chelsea Preservation

         18  and Planning Committee of Community Board 4, which

         19  is actually studying the planning of West Chelsea,

         20  we are deeply concerned that decisions may be made,

         21  I'm not speaking on behalf of the Board, I'm

         22  speaking as an individual, that decisions will be

         23  made before, not in the context of all of West

         24  Chelsea, which we are studying, but that it will be

         25  made on the basis of a dream.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            176

          1  COMMITTEE ON STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2                 And the trouble, you have heard

          3  people on both sides of the issue, and I will just

          4  touch on some of these issues, we have to recognize

          5  that right now the last car load on the High Line

          6  was frozen turkies, and this is what the High Line

          7  is now, is a frozen turkey. It is a turkey, because

          8  it's absolutely useless, but it's not very well

          9  frozen because it's falling down. It's not well

         10  preserved.

         11                 The question, therefore, is what to

         12  do with it. And let me just say, for example, this

         13  is a wonderful dream. One of the problems, I'm sorry

         14  the pictures are down, shows the very best views

         15  from the High Line in these pictures. The trouble is

         16  at the 34th Street rail yards will almost certainly

         17  be decked over, and those are where the best views

         18  occur, and, therefore, the High Line will almost

         19  certainly not go through it and even it will not go

         20  around that way, make the connection with the park,

         21  and therefore, it will not provide what they are

         22  dreaming of.

         23                 And I think that we must remember

         24  that as development occurs, however it occurs, the

         25  High Line will eventually be in a trough, the only
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          2  places you can look out are across the street. You

          3  can look down a street in one direction or another,

          4  except by the way, in Gansevoort, and that's a

          5  special issue, because it does not, it goes in the

          6  middle of blocks, and they will be bridges across

          7  used streets. Every bridge across used streets in

          8  New York City requires some kind of guard of

          9  plexiglass or of close netting to prevent people

         10  from throwing things under the street below. That

         11  will completely -- that will limit those views and

         12  destroy the look of the High Line down these

         13  streets.

         14                 And this is one of the major problems

         15  I have with this, it does visually divide the

         16  community, it cuts off Western Chelsea from the

         17  Western Chelsea, from the rest of Chelsea, and it

         18  looks down the -- if you look down the streets, it

         19  does block the views. These things are arguments

         20  against it, but I do believe that by person, and

         21  above all, I believe, that some people are for the

         22  retention of the High Line thinking that it will

         23  stop or change development, except for the parcels

         24  directly under the High Line, it will have very

         25  little effect on development.
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          2                 But if it is gentrified as turning

          3  into a park of that type, it will gentrify the

          4  neighborhood more certainly than anything else and

          5  cause the change of its quality and the loss of

          6  manufacturing. Under the Promenada Plantee, the

          7  Chair of the Block Associations told me last night

          8  when he said he couldn't come, it was beautiful, he

          9  said, but we looked at the shops below. My wife

         10  priced a bolt of beautiful material, that material

         11  was roughly $1,000 per meter, per yard. One thousand

         12  dollars. It was deliberately undertaken as a program

         13  to gentrify a working class area.

         14                 But on the other hand, I do believe

         15  that the High Line, and there is one other

         16  contradiction. If you're saving it for Rails to

         17  Trails, a few people said we really want it to be a

         18  railroad. And Metro North, for example, might love

         19  to use it as a new access to the south, because it's

         20  going to run almost certainly commuter trains down

         21  to the west end of Penn Station, by those rail

         22  yards. On the other hand, where is that open space

         23  that everybody else wanted? So I am concerned.

         24                 But I do believe that the High Line

         25  should be preserved in Gansevoort and in some other
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          2  places where it actually fronts on the street and

          3  can be something like the Promenade Plantee and it

          4  does help define that sense of place which everybody

          5  wants to do. And the artists and the art galleries,

          6  they came here because of its grunge and because of

          7  its cheapness, they didn't want a SoHo. If you turn

          8  this into a beautiful Promenade Plantee, you are

          9  likely to get a SoHo, a residential SoHo. But I

         10  believe that parts of it, in Gansevoort especially,

         11  some parts of it should be preserved.

         12                 Now, I'm not sure, there are

         13  differences of opinion. So, I cannot say I am for or

         14  against, but if the action you are taking is only

         15  one that will stop a moratorium, bring a moratorium

         16  and force consideration of this in its whole

         17  context, the West Chelsea Planning, its expenses,

         18  I'm not talking about all the issues that other

         19  people brought up, expense and everything else, West

         20  Chelsea planning, and we can reach some perhaps

         21  compromise bargain out, we could get something

         22  wonderful. Like a strip park, where part of the High

         23  Line was right through the arts district and

         24  sculpture gardens along it, and without problems of

         25  access, without the problems of maintenance. So, I
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          2  would only urge this as a starting point for seeing

          3  what the alternatives are, what a dream this strip

          4  green park on the site of the High Line might be,

          5  although the process is uncertain, but the Chelsea

          6  Property owners might be willing to bargain.

          7                 There are ways, I think, in which

          8  this can be made a good thing, if it is only seen as

          9  a tentative step toward holding up the demolition of

         10  the High Line and finding a better solution to it.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you.

         12                 Who would like to go next?

         13                 MR. PRICE: Honorable members of the

         14  City Council, I am Warfield Price and I came here

         15  today to read a statement from my mother, Warrie

         16  Price, who is away from the City at this time.

         17                 She has spent her adult life working

         18  to foster the creation and improvement of public

         19  spaces for all New Yorkers. She is very excited

         20  about the possibility of gaining one and a half

         21  miles of new and innovative passive recreation space

         22  above the flow of traffic along the High Line, and

         23  as a resident of 22nd Street I'm pretty excited

         24  about it myself.

         25                 The following is my mother's
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          2  statement:

          3                 "I enthusiastically lend my voice in

          4  favor of'rail banking' the High Line.

          5                 What a great moment for our City's

          6  history when new, emerging neighborhoods work

          7  together with government to take a dilapidated,

          8  out-of-use structure and turn it into one and a half

          9  miles of passive recreational open space. Just think

         10  of what this will mean for the rebirth of Chelsea.

         11                 During my 12 years on Community Board

         12  8, every inch of open space was fought for and

         13  cherished. The East River Esplanade was criticized

         14  for being too narrow, since at times it scales down

         15  to a width of 48 inches. 'Who will walk this useless

         16  path?' The skeptics said. Well, it now happily hosts

         17  abundant pairs of morning joggers and walkers. New

         18  Yorkers are great accommodators to limited space

         19  because we so cherish the sense of the outdoors.

         20                 The chance to transform the High Line

         21  into an elevated linear "pasture" from which to gaze

         22  at the sky, sit and relax, read the paper, and

         23  stroll with friends, is an opportunity that just

         24  cannot be denied.

         25                 As the leader of the effort to

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            182

          1  COMMITTEE ON STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2  revitalize historic Battery Park, I know the value

          3  of enhanced open space. We have just been given

          4  three-quarters area of new parkland along Battery

          5  Place with the completion of the new Route 9A. Years

          6  ago we would never have thought the Department of

          7  Transportation would be the public entity that now

          8  leads in creating and adapting asphalt to green

          9  space.

         10                 It is with this in mind that I ask

         11  the Committee on State and Federal Legislation to

         12  pass Resolution 1747 so we can start the process

         13  that will lead to obtaining a Certificate of Interim

         14  Trail Use from the United States Surface

         15  Transportation Board to railbank the High Line.

         16                 Instilling the promises of a great

         17  future can only be accomplished with the

         18  understanding of the past. The High Line is such a

         19  symbol of our past and it certainly has a place in

         20  our City's future.

         21                 With appreciation for your attention,

         22  Warrie Price."

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you, Mr.

         24  Price, and thank your mother for the testimony.

         25                 MS. WICK: Okay, I'm speaking on
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          2  behalf of the Chelsea-Village Partnership. I'm the

          3  Secretary and chosen to speak.

          4                 I've given copies of the letter to

          5  you people, basically I was hoping that Mr. Stabile

          6  was still here, because my mother was raised in

          7  Ozone Park. Chelsea 8, Ozone Park, I was just out

          8  there last week, they got back yards and everything,

          9  okay? So, his rail line and our rail line are

         10  something different.

         11                 We're in favor of retaining the rail

         12  line. What we've seen in our neighborhood, I've

         13  lived there 19 years, I live on 15th Street between

         14  8th and 9th Avenue. We kicked out the prostitutes

         15  from my block about ten years ago, through doing

         16  walk-throughs and everything. Right now we're seeing

         17  a lot of tourists there. The tourists are coming

         18  because it's so unique in that neighborhood. The

         19  rail line is unique. Are they going up to

         20  Bloomingdale's? No. They are going there, they're

         21  shopping, and they're coming down to the Village to

         22  look, to walk, to spend, to enjoy.

         23                 I think we really should retain it

         24  because of the historical background of it. My Uncle

         25  John worked as a long shoreman there. I mean, he
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          2  used to come from Ozone Park, go in there, do his

          3  stuff, go back. He had a heart attack when I was

          4  moving there, but that's another story, too.

          5                 So, anyway, basically the

          6  Chelsea-Village Partnership is in favor of your

          7  resolution, and through the whole thing we said the

          8  retention of the High Line is a win/win situation,

          9  in our estimation, the estimation of many of our

         10  members, and we've got 425 people on our mailing

         11  list, they overwhelmingly vote, tell us that they

         12  want a retention of and this will fill right in.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you very

         14  much, and we'll make the letter as a whole a part of

         15  the record, as well. We very much appreciate your

         16  testimony.

         17                 Ona Nowina-Sapinski. Mark Kingsley.

         18  Mr. Kingsley? Gone. Steph? Is there a Steph in the

         19  audience? No. David Fishman? Robert Stern? Mr.

         20  Stern's testimony was made part of the record.

         21  Stephen Desimone? Karen Lowe? Okay, come on up.

         22                 George Haikalis, I believe. Daniel

         23  Bauer. Mr. Bauer? Great. John Rust? Okay, that's our

         24  next panel. Mr. Nowina-Sapinski.

         25                 MS. NOWINA-SAPINSKI: Mr. Chairman,
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          2  Committee and Council Members, my name is Ona

          3  Nowina-Sapinski, and I am here to represent the

          4  following art dealers and their galleries.

          5                 Paula Cooper, of Paula Cooper

          6  Gallery. Lans Kens of Feigen Contemporary. Deborah

          7  Bell, Deborah Bell Photographs. Barbara Gladstone,

          8  Barbara Gladstone Gallery. Peter McGill, Pace McGill

          9  Gallery. Luka Shoremans, Luka Shoremans Gallery.

         10  Christoff Mal, of Chambers Fine Art, and Barbara

         11  Moore of Bound and Unbound. They all submitted

         12  letters, and I'm certainly not going to read them

         13  all. I gave copies to that gentleman.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you. Great.

         15  And they will all be made part of the record.

         16                 MS. NOWINA-SAPINSKI: Thank you.

         17                 I would like to read a quote from a

         18  book. The Same Axe Twice. Restoration and Renewal in

         19  a Throwaway Age, by Howard Mansfield.

         20                 "Good restoration schools us in the

         21  graces of the old ways, bring us to build anew. When

         22  we bring our loving attention to that which is old,

         23  it is not the past we are restoring but the future.

         24  Good restoration saves the future."

         25                 And then I think I will just read a
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          2  few paragraphs from Paula Cooper's letter she sent

          3  to Governor Pataki and Mayor Giuliani and Speaker

          4  Vallone.

          5                 "I own two art galleries in the West

          6  Chelsea District of Manhattan, both on West 21st

          7  Street on a block crossed by the High Line.

          8                 I also own a house on which I live

          9  one half block away. Please know that I

         10  whole-heartedly support the resolution prevented by

         11  New York City Council Members Miller and Quinn,

         12  urging you to take all necessary steps to obtain a

         13  certificate of interim trail use from the United

         14  States Surface Transportation Board in connection

         15  with railbanking the structure.

         16                 If we can preserve and reuse the High

         17  Line, the City and State will be creating a world

         18  class urban amenity that will benefit all of our

         19  citizens and attract visitors as well, and will

         20  offer recreation and transportation uses that will

         21  complement the Hudson River Park, and as did a

         22  similar project in Paris, it will increase the value

         23  of properties under and next to it. It will maintain

         24  the neighborhood's unique character while spurring

         25  innovative new development.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            187

          1  COMMITTEE ON STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2                 I strongly feel that the

          3  transportation based and industrial architectural

          4  style of the High Line is inextricably linked with

          5  the former industrial spaces that I and many of my

          6  colleagues have transformed into exciting exhibition

          7  spaces.

          8                 The High Line potentially offers a

          9  wealth of possible art-related uses that can

         10  reinforce West Chelsea's growing reputation as an

         11  international destination to view and enjoy art.

         12                 The High Line is a monument to New

         13  York's great past as a transportation and industrial

         14  center. Please let us not lose the unique

         15  opportunity it presents us to create a spectacular

         16  public place for future generations.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you very

         18  much.

         19                 MS. LOEW: Good afternoon. My name is

         20  Karen Loew, and I'm a Chelsea resident and an

         21  interested citizen. I live a block and a half away

         22  from the High Line. I've also been working with

         23  Friends of the High Line, and I presented five

         24  letters from business owners who couldn't be here,

         25  and also one block association, the 15th Street
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          2  Block Association, and West 200 Block, and the

          3  businesses are the Red Cat Restaurant, Lucy Barnes

          4  Fashion Design, Lost Art, Art Studio, and Loco

          5  Beverages.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you.

          7                 MS. LOEW: And I'm going to second all

          8  the poetry and romanticism by reference. I don't

          9  need to restate that, but I will say that I agree

         10  with the principle that one person who speaks

         11  represents a lot more, just as one woman mentioned,

         12  and these letters that we have from businesses

         13  represent many more businesses who responded to my

         14  outreach with immediate and near unanimous

         15  enthusiasm. And another person who represents many

         16  more I think is my downstairs neighbor who is in her

         17  eighties and has lived in my building for more than

         18  50 years, and a block and a half away from the High

         19  Line for more than 50 years, and she was not able to

         20  come because of her health, but she told me that our

         21  High Line project sounds great.

         22                 So, these people also represent many

         23  more.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you.
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          2                 MR. RUST: Hello. My name is John

          3  Rust, I'm a member of Community Board 4, but I'm not

          4  speaking on the Community Board's behalf today.

          5                 I am an artist living in Chelsea for

          6  six years now. When I came here six years ago I

          7  would have never imagined Chelsea developing into

          8  what it is today. The High Line has such a huge

          9  potential to be a beautiful park of the future of

         10  Chelsea, I can't imagine why anyone would ever dream

         11  of taking it down.

         12                 The High Line was constructed with

         13  public funds partially in the 1930s. To tear it down

         14  today would be throwing that money away which was

         15  used for the public good at that time.

         16                 I strongly support this resolution

         17  and hope you pass it.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you.

         20                 MR. BAUER: My name is Daniel Bauer. I

         21  am the claimed successor to Harry Hudini, and I am

         22  here to talk about -- I know it sounds crazy, but

         23  it's very true, and if I could wave my hand I would

         24  make the restoration of the High Line as beautiful

         25  as possible, but unfortunately we have to go through
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          2  all of this legality stuff.

          3                 Two comments I want to say, I've

          4  heard in a lot of the opposition, it was very, very

          5  strong and demanding, it stinks and it's a dream,

          6  those were basically the thoughts and concerns that

          7  I've heard the most. Well, if it really stinks, my

          8  mother always told me, give it a bath, wash it up,

          9  clean it up and make it as good smelling as anything

         10  else.

         11                 And as far as the dream part, I am

         12  living proof that dreams live and that legends live,

         13  and I'll tell you, if this High Line is removed from

         14  the City, and not only as a successor of a legend,

         15  but also a resident of Chelsea myself, we're going

         16  to start sending some messages to a lot of people in

         17  this City that you take something, you build it,

         18  which the City, the State and private funding

         19  sources built from their money, from their hands,

         20  from their people, from their employees, and you're

         21  telling them that any time, any moment in this City

         22  we can take something, we can build it and then we

         23  can just rip it up, no matter how much history or

         24  how much memory it involves.

         25                 So, I think placing this High Line
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          2  and taking it, making a park out of it, making it a

          3  reality, it's not a dream, it's something that we

          4  can live forever here in the City with.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you very

          6  much.

          7                 Tom Lunke.

          8                 Holly Leicht. Ms. Leicht? No.

          9                 Sach Yanow? Sach Yanow? No.

         10                 Jerome O'Connor? Mr. O'Connor? No.

         11                 Daniel Emerman? Mr. Emerman? No.

         12                 Susan Sands? No.

         13                 Making you, sir, Mr. Lunke, our last.

         14  If anyone else wants to testify, you've got to speak

         15  quickly. Come on up, there's a chair. Mr. Lunke,

         16  please. And thank you. We wish that Seinfeld

         17  commercial, you know, confetti would come down,

         18  you're our one-millionth witness, you get $1,000 or

         19  something, but you don't. But you will have our

         20  respect and appreciation.

         21                 MR. LUNKE: Well, I thank you for all

         22  waiting for this, and I thank Christine for bringing

         23  this forward. I really appreciate it.

         24                 My name is Tom Lunke. I'm on the

         25  Boards of the Manhattan Community Board 4 and the
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          2  Chelsea Village Partnership. I am also an urban

          3  planner by profession. Today I speak as an urban

          4  planner and a resident of Chelsea.

          5                 I have seen Chelsea change

          6  dramatically in the nine years I have lived there.

          7  While enjoying the many conveniences of an improved

          8  retail environment, I am not happy with the loss of

          9  manufacturing and the industrial character.

         10                 I have found that mixed use

         11  neighborhoods are the most health and most desirable

         12  neighborhoods to live in. They attract the most

         13  broad-minded and creative people. That is why

         14  Chelsea has historically been a haven for artists.

         15                 One of the most important structures

         16  reminding me of our industrial and artistic heritage

         17  is the elevated High Line. It was constructed at a

         18  time when New York City was the wealthiest

         19  industrial capital in the world. Bringing this

         20  structure down would be a mistake.

         21                 Some have said this structure is a

         22  visual blight, a barrier to views of the waterfront.

         23  I say the High Line is a definer of space, and a

         24  frame for the waterfront. It is a structure that

         25  creates a sense of place and time. To destroy the
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          2  High Line is to erase the importance of individual

          3  expression in space.

          4                 I came to New York City seven years

          5  ago, because I wanted to live in a place of

          6  uniqueness. While my family has been in this country

          7  for many generations, and came through other ports

          8  of entry, I have always enjoyed the feeling, feeling

          9  a connection with those who entered through this

         10  port and helped to create this experience. Living

         11  with and reusing historic structure, such as the

         12  High Line, allows me to feel a connection with our

         13  collective past. Let us honor our ancestors' vision

         14  and reuse this structure.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you. And

         17  the meeting of the State and Federal Legislation

         18  Committee is adjourned.

         19                 (The following testimony was read

         20  into the record.)

         21

         22  Written Testimony Of:

         23  Robert A.M. Stern Architects

         24

         25                 Dear Governor Pataki, Mayor Giuliani,
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          2  and Speaker Vallone:

          3                 I am writing to lend a strong voice

          4  of support in favor of New York City Council members

          5  Christine Quinn and Gifford Miller's resolution to

          6  secure a Certificate of Interim Trail use for the

          7  High Line.

          8                 I believe this step is important to

          9  insure that this potential resource will not be

         10  needlessly squandered.

         11                 The High Line represents a unique

         12  opportunity to creatively ruse an amazing asset from

         13  our recent industrial past. It can be transformed

         14  into an incomparable recreational facility in a

         15  growing part of the city woefully underserved by

         16  such amenities.

         17                 Its importance and its potential,

         18  however, are not merely local to the neighborhood

         19  but extend to the city as a whole which will surely

         20  embrace it as an urban, twenty-first century version

         21  of a boardwalk or esplanade, leaping over the city's

         22  streets and fulfilling hitherto unrealized

         23  futuristic visions long held dear by planners and

         24  architects.

         25                 As an architect and chronicler of the
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          2  city's history whose professional offices on West

          3  Thirty-Fourth Street overlook the northern stretch

          4  of the High Line, I urge you to protect this latent

          5  treasure and thereby help insure that this

          6  extraordinary asset is incorporated into the

          7  innovative urban planning that will transform West

          8  Midtown in the near future.

          9                 My best, Robert A. M. Stern, FAIA,

         10  and Dean, Yale School of Architecture.

         11

         12  Written Testimony Of:

         13  Frank Lupo

         14  President

         15  Architectural League of New York.

         16

         17                 Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman,

         18  Committee Members, and Council members:

         19                 I am Frank Lupo, and I am here to

         20  testify as President of Architectural League of New

         21  York.

         22                 For well over one-hundred years, the

         23  Architectural League's lectures, exhibitions and

         24  design studies have helped the public enrich its

         25  understanding of the importance of architecture and
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          2  design.

          3                 The League supports the preservation

          4  and reuse of the High Line because it is a rare

          5  opportunity for the city to build a visionary public

          6  work for a new century, one that parallels past

          7  projects such as the Brooklyn Promenade or the

          8  esplanade at Battery Park City.

          9                 The High Line's extraordinary nature

         10  will create a distinctive sense of place and help

         11  knit together a large portion of the physical fabric

         12  of Manhattan's west side. It offers the

         13  possibilities of recreational and transportation

         14  uses that can complement Hudson River Park as well

         15  as art-related uses that will reinforce the area's

         16  international reputation as an art world hub.

         17                 The High Line is a monument to New

         18  York's great past as a transportation and

         19  manufacturing hub. Let's not lose this unique

         20  opportunity to create a spectacular public space for

         21  future generations to enjoy and admire.

         22                 On behalf of the Architectural

         23  League, I urge you to support the resolution of

         24  Council Members Miller and Quinn to take all the

         25  necessary steps to obtain a Certificate of Interim
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          2  Trail Use from the United States Surface

          3  Transportation Board in connection with

          4  "railbanking" the High Line.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 Frank Lupo.

          7

          8  Written Testimony Of:

          9  Richard A. Plunz

         10  Professor of Architecture

         11  Director, Urban Design Program

         12  Columbia University

         13  The Graduate School of Architecture Planning and

         14  Preservation

         15

         16                 Dear Members:

         17                 I am writing to urge passage of a

         18  City Council Resolution in support of obtaining a

         19  Certificate of Interim Trail Use from the United

         20  States Surface Transportation Board in connection

         21  with trailbanking the High Line.

         22                 The aesthetic and socio-historical

         23  merits of the case are compelling.

         24                 No world city, given the legal means

         25  and the economic resources which exist in New York
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          2  City, would wantonly destroy an equivalent landmark

          3  work of public infrastructure.

          4                 For more than a decade in Europe, for

          5  example - in Paris, Antwerp, Vienna, Berlin, Madrid,

          6  to name several cities - the importance of

          7  preserving such infrastructure has been given

          8  highest priority.

          9                 Clearly, the long-term economic

         10  benefit of keeping the High Line will far outweigh

         11  any immediate gain from its demolition.

         12                 There can be no doubt that the means

         13  for its preservation are at your disposal. It is

         14  only political will which is in question - a will

         15  which must represent a seasoned long-term view which

         16  nurtures a vibrant future for this City's remarkable

         17  past in all its aspects.

         18                 Please heed this plea. With best

         19  wishes, sincerely, Richard A. Pluntz.

         20

         21  Written Testimony Of:

         22  Hugh Hardy, FAIA

         23  Hardy Holzman Pfeiffer Associates, LLP

         24

         25                 Dear Governor Pataki, Mayor Giuliani,
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          2  and Speaker Vallone:

          3                 As a Founding Partner in the

          4  architectural firm of Hardy Holzman Pfeiffer

          5  Associates, I have practiced architecture in New

          6  York City for thirty-four years and have been

          7  continually involved in issues involving the use of

          8  public space. In addition to the glory of its street

          9  life, New York enjoys a rich inventory of public

         10  spaces in parks, plazas and recreation areas. None,

         11  however, hold the potential of the High Line.

         12                 I support the resolution of Council

         13  members Miller and Quinn and urge you to take all

         14  necessary steps to obtain a Certificate of Interim

         15  Trail Use from the United States Surface

         16  Transportation Board in connection with

         17  "railbanking" the elevated railroad viaduct running

         18  from 75-79 Gansevoort Street through 547-55 West

         19  34th Street (commonly referred to as the "High

         20  Line").

         21                 The High Line offers the opportunity

         22  to create an extraordinary public amenity. Once a

         23  utilitarian structure, it is still structurally

         24  sound and could become a landscaped walkway thirty

         25  feet in the air, one which offers an extraordinary
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          2  vantage point fro which to view and discover the

          3  City. It also represents a singular resource that

          4  complements the Hudson River Park ad is certain to

          5  generate distinctive recreational and commercial

          6  life along its route.

          7                 If it were demolished this unusual

          8  aerial passageway would no longer contribute to the

          9  neighborhood's unique character or contribute to the

         10  innovative development of this unofficial,

         11  international center for the arts. I therefore urge

         12  it receive a Certificate of Interim Trail Use.

         13                 Best wishes, Hugh Hardy, FAIA.

         14

         15  Written Testimony Of:

         16  Richard Meier & Partners

         17  Architects

         18

         19  Re: Resolution to obtain a Certificate of Interim

         20  Trail Use from the U.S. Surface Transportation Board

         21  in connection with "railbanking" the elevated

         22  railroad viaduct from 75-95 Gansevoort Street thru

         23  547-555 W. 34th Street, New York, NY

         24
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          2  and Speaker Vallone:

          3                 As an architect of many renown

          4  projects both in the United States and

          5  internationally, I have always been concerned with

          6  creating and maintaining public spaces. My designs

          7  for the Getty Center in Los Angeles, CA; the City

          8  Hall and Central Library in the Hague, the

          9  Netherlands; and the recently completed Federal

         10  Courthouses in Islip, New York and Phoenix, Arizona

         11  illustrate the importance of good design.

         12                 Therefore, as an architect, and

         13  equally important, as a long-time resident of New

         14  York City, I strongly support the resolution of

         15  Council Members Miller and Quinn, and urge you to

         16  take all necessary steps to obtain a Certificate of

         17  Interim Trail Use from the United States Surface

         18  Transportation Board in connection with

         19  "railbanking" the elevated railroad viaduct running

         20  from 75-95 Gansevoort Street through 547-55 West

         21  34th Street (commonly referred to as the "High

         22  Line").

         23                 Interim Trail Use of the High Line

         24  offers a rare opportunity for the City of New York

         25  to create a park that connects irreplaceable,
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          2  vibrant and growing neighborhoods.

          3                 The preservation and reuse of the

          4  High Line will greatly improve the area and adjacent

          5  property values; its recreation and transportation

          6  uses will complement the Hudson River Park,

          7  reinforce the area's burgeoning art community,

          8  augment the neighborhood's unique character, and

          9  hopefully inspire innovative new development.

         10                 I heartily recommend you support the

         11  resolution to provide Interim Trail Use of the High

         12  Line, to preserve this historic link to New York's

         13  great transportation and manufacturing past and to

         14  create a spectacular public space for future

         15  generations to enjoy.

         16                 Sincerely yours, Richard Meier,

         17  Architect.

         18

         19  Testimony of Joseph J. Marraro

         20  Vice President, Trust Properties

         21  The Bank of New York.

         22                 JOSEPH J. MARRARO:  The Bank of New

         23  York, John I. Lipkowitz, Esq., and David V. Duchini

         24  are Co-Trustees of the Concetta Duchini Trust and

         25  along with David V. Duchini individually own the
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          2  real property located at 505-511 West 24th Street,

          3  245-247 10th Avenue and 510-512 West 25th Street,

          4  New York City directly affected by the Conrail/CRX

          5  High Line.

          6                 In connection with the "rail banking"

          7  issue at hand, we wish to advise you of the severe

          8  state of disrepair of this elevated railroad

          9  structure.  The High Line has been a hazard to

         10  people and property over the past twenty years due

         11  to the deterioration of said structure.  There have

         12  been sections of the concrete that has fallen onto

         13  the Duchini property over the years causing a

         14  dangerous environment which still presently exists.

         15  Mr. David V. Duchnini, President of Adolph's

         16  Trucking Company, Inc., the business occupying these

         17  premises, has written to Conrail many times

         18  beginning in the 1980's and into the 1990's alerting

         19  Conrail of several dangerous incidents which had

         20  occurred as a result of falling concrete from the

         21  High Line and further advising Conrail of the

         22  on-going deterioration of the elevated structure

         23  above the property and citing Conrail's lack of

         24  proper maintenance of the High Line as they are

         25  required to perform pursuant to the Conrail easement
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          2  agreement.

          3                 Enclosed are photocopies of Mr. David

          4  V. Duchini's correspondence filed on this matter

          5  which include many letters to Conrail and from

          6  Conrail regarding the hazardous conditions which

          7  began in the 1980s and are still present to this

          8  day.

          9                 It is clear that the only prudent

         10  option would be to have the High Line demolished in

         11  accordance with the current plans and finally

         12  eliminate a most serious threat to the safety of the

         13  public and all underlying property involved.

         14                 Thank you for your attention to this

         15  issue.

         16                 Sincerely, Joseph J. Marraro.

         17

         18  July 12, 1993

         19  Mr. Charles N. Marshall

         20  Senior Vice President

         21  Conrail

         22  Six Penn Center Plaza

         23  Philadelphia, PA 19103-2959

         24

         25                 Dear Mr. Marshall:
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          2                 We own property from 24th Street to

          3  25th Street between 10th and 11th Avenues in

          4  Manhattan over which Conrail's elevated tracks run.

          5                 Since 1988, we have notified Conrail

          6  of hazardous conditions that have existed as a

          7  result of Conrail's failure to properly maintain

          8  this structure.  In the past, you have responded

          9  that Conrail does maintain the structure adequately

         10  and that any hazardous conditions are properly taken

         11  care of.  This is just not true.  This structure is

         12  not adequately maintained and it has only been by

         13  chance that no one has been seriously injured or

         14  killed from falling concrete.  We can no longer in

         15  good conscience standby and let this situation

         16  continue.

         17                 The reason concrete continues to fall

         18  from this structure is because the drainage system

         19  is totally in disrepair.  During a rain storm, water

         20  pours down from the overhead structure.  It is

         21  obvious that water is seeping into the concrete,

         22  expanding the joints and in turn causing the

         23  concrete to spall.  We are sending you a piece of

         24  the concrete that recently fell onto our property.

         25  We are also enclosing photos which show where the
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          2  concrete has fallen, as well as where steel has

          3  fallen.  In a separate incident, a piece of steel

          4  from the structure and went right through a tin roof

          5  which covers a storage shed.

          6                 We cannot emphasize enough how

          7  intolerable these conditions are.  You would not

          8  permit such conditions to exist on property which

          9  you own and it is your responsibility to make sure

         10  such conditions do not exist here.

         11                 A token field visit by your engineers

         12  to inspect the structure is not acceptable.  Actual

         13  repairs to the drainage system and the concrete must

         14  be done.  If not, it is only a matter of time before

         15  another incident takes place.

         16                 Please advise us as soon as possible

         17  as to what Conrail intends to do regarding this

         18  matter.  If necessary, we will pursue this matter

         19  with local legislative officials requesting any

         20  assistance they may be able to provide.

         21                 We regret having to take this

         22  position, but Conrail's inaction regarding hazardous

         23  conditions over the past five years leaves us no

         24  alternative.

         25                 Sincerely, Adolph's Trucking Co.,
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          2  Inc.

          3                 David V. Duchini, President

          4

          5  August 6, 1993

          6  David V. Duchini

          7  President

          8  Adolph's Trucking Company, Inc.

          9  507-511 West 24th Street

         10  New York, NY 10011

         11

         12  Re:  Conrail's West 30th Street Line.

         13

         14

         15                 Dear Mr. Duchini: Mr. Marshall has

         16  requested that I respond to your letter dated July

         17  12, 1993 concerning the above structure.  Your

         18  letter has been forwarded to Conrail's Engineering

         19  Department for review. If action is required,

         20  Conrail will take appropriate steps to remediate any

         21  problem discovered.  Conrail takes its

         22  responsibility to safeguard this structure

         23  seriously.  In the past, Conrail has expended

         24  significant sums where warranted to make repairs to

         25  the Line.  The structural integrity of the Line
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          2  remains undiminished.

          3                 I will report back to you upon review

          4  by the engineers.

          5                 Very truly yours,.

          6                 Jonathan M. Broder.

          7                 Associate General Counsel.

          8                 Conrail

          9

         10  September 20, 1991

         11  Mr. Charles N. Marshall

         12  Senior Vice-President

         13  CONRAIL

         14  Six Penn Center Plaza

         15  Philadelphia, PA 19103-2959

         16

         17  Re:  Conrail West 30th Street Secondary Track.

         18

         19

         20                 Dear Mr. Marshall:

         21                 We are in receipt of a letter dated

         22  8/29/91 from your attorney, Jonathan Broder, Esq.,

         23  responding to our letter addressed to you on

         24  8/12/91.

         25                 We understand fully his position in
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          2  trying to defend the responsibilities of your

          3  Company to properly maintain this structure in a

          4  safe operating condition.  His remarks are totally

          5  incorrect and welcome the opportunity to have him

          6  personally inspect the claim we have made during the

          7  past few years, regarding this structure, which has

          8  been deteriorating rapidly from many years of total

          9  neglect.  He also contends that an inspection was

         10  made this year in Aril and August and recognizes Con

         11  Rails responsibility to maintain and repair.  How

         12  come the drains are still clogged solid, with rust,

         13  and the overhead rail leaks like a sieve all over,

         14  during heavy rain storms?

         15                 His reference to our private railroad

         16  siding is also incorrect and we are sure that it was

         17  a poor attempt at trying to pacify us.

         18                 In conclusion, we must advise that

         19  his letter is totally erroneous and insist that this

         20  structure has been abandoned for over ten years

         21  without any maintenance whatsoever.  Again, we ask

         22  you to refer to all previous correspondence since

         23  3/15/88.

         24                 Thank you for your kind attention and

         25  personal response.
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          2                 Sincerely,.

          3                 Adolph's Trucking Co., Inc.

          4                 David V. Duchini, President

          5

          6  August 29, 1991

          7  D. V. Duchini,

          8  President

          9  Adolph's Trucking Company, Inc.

         10  507-511 West 24th Street

         11  New York, NY 10011

         12

         13  Re:  Conrail's West 30th Street Secondary Track

         14

         15                 Dear Mr. Duchini:

         16                 Mr. Marshall has asked that I respond

         17  to your letter dated August 12, 1991, concerning

         18  Conrail's West 30th Street Secondary Track.

         19                 As you may be aware, the condition

         20  and future use of this line is currently the subject

         21  of litigation before the Interstate Commerce

         22  Commission.  It is Conrail's policy not to comment

         23  on matters pending in litigation.

         24                 Nonetheless, because safety issues

         25  have been raised, I will comment on the substance of
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          2  your letter.   As you are no doubt aware, Conrail

          3  routinely inspects, and where warranted, makes

          4  repairs to the Line.

          5                 Indeed, in the last few months,

          6  repairs were made to the Line near your property.

          7  Conrail takes seriously its responsibility to be a

          8  good corporate neighbor, as our past efforts have

          9  demonstrated.

         10                 Thus, Conrail strongly disagrees with

         11  your letter claiming that there has not been

         12  adequate maintenance of the Line. While Conrail, in

         13  addition to regular maintenance of the Line,

         14  investigates all inspecific complaints, your letter

         15  does not specify a particular problem other than a

         16  general complaint about drainage.

         17                 You also make general allegations of

         18  falling concrete and steel.  Conrail has undertaken

         19  two detailed inspections of the entire Line - one in

         20  April, 1991 and another one month before the date of

         21  your letter.  There was no evidence of loose

         22  concrete or steel having fallen or about to fall,

         23  nor any drainage problems observed.

         24                 Conrail recognizes its responsibility

         25  to insure the safety of the Line.  We will continue
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          2  to maintain and repair the Line when required.

          3  Concurrent with the litigation now pending which

          4  seeks the demolition of the Line, Conrail has

          5  received a number of recent complaints about the

          6  Line with virtually identical verbiage as that

          7  contained in your letter which, upon investigation,

          8  turned out to be unfounded. I can only reiterate

          9  that your complaints and threats of further actions

         10  seem similarly unfounded, and urge you to reevaluate

         11  your position. As you know, Conrail intends to

         12  reactivate the Line in the near future.  As this

         13  plan is progressed, we will, of course, continue to

         14  consult with the local community and will hope to

         15  have your cooperation.  I note that your letterhead

         16  proudly proclaims that you have a private railroad

         17  siding, and I hope we can work together in the near

         18  future to develop mutually beneficial business

         19  opportunities.

         20                 Very truly yours,.

         21                 Jonathan M. Broder.

         22                 Senior General Attorney

         23                 1138 Six Penn Center Plaza.

         24                 Philadelphia, PA 19103.

         25                 (215) 977-5020
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          2

          3  Mr. Charles N. Marshall

          4  Senior Vice-President

          5  CONRAIL

          6  Six Penn Center Plaza

          7  Philadelphia, PA 19103-2959

          8

          9  Re:  Westside O/H Railway

         10

         11                 Dear Mr. Marshall: We own property

         12  from 24th Street to 25th Street between 10th and

         13  11th Avenues, New York City, over which your

         14  abandoned elevated tracks run.

         15                 We have corresponded with your

         16  predecessors, Mr. Richard Sanborn and Mr. Richard

         17  Hasselman several times during 1988 advising them of

         18  the deplorable condition of your overhead structure.

         19                 Your failure to maintain same has

         20  been and still is, a very dangerous hazard to people

         21  working under this structure, and surely will result

         22  in personal injury.  Large pieces of concrete have

         23  fallen in the past, narrowly missing one of our

         24  employees by inches.

         25                 The drainage system is all blocked up
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          2  by years of neglect and compacted rust with its

          3  pipes, so that water flows from everywhere but where

          4  originally designed, undermining asphalt pavements

          5  below.

          6                 It is our understanding that the

          7  language of our easement requires CONRAIL to

          8  maintain the structure, so that the safety of people

          9  working under it are safe from harm.

         10                 Will you please advise what CONRAIL

         11  intends to do regarding proper maintenance to insure

         12  the safety and protection of our people and

         13  property.

         14                 Thank you for your kind attention to

         15  this matter, and shall await your reply and

         16  comments.

         17                 Sincerely,.

         18                 Adolph's Trucking Co., Inc.

         19                 D. V. Duchini, President

         20

         21  March 13, 1990

         22  Douglas E. Sarini

         23  Edison Parking

         24  100 Washington Street

         25  Newark, New Jersey 07102
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          2

          3                 Dear Doug: Enclosed is a

          4  questionnaire form to be used by members of Chelsea

          5  Property Owners to provide information in response

          6  to Conrail's interrogatories.  I would like to

          7  emphasize to each Chelsea Property Owners member

          8  that they should provide the fullest information

          9  possible, particularly with respect to documenting

         10  the harms they have suffered from the Highline.

         11                 Also enclosed are Chelsea Property

         12  Owner's objections to Conrail's interrogatories,

         13  which I am sending to Conrail and the ICC today.

         14                 Sincerely,.

         15                 Scott N. Stone.

         16                 Patton, Boggs & Blow.

         17                 Questionnaire for Members of Chelsea

         18  Property Owners for Removal of the 30th Street

         19  Secondary Track.  Name and business address of

         20  Chelsea Property Owner member: Adolph's Trucking

         21  Company, Inc., 507-11 West 24th Street, New York,

         22  New York 10011.

         23                 For each piece of property owned,

         24  leased, or otherwise occupied by the Chelsea

         25  Property Owners member that is under, adjacent to or
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          2  near the Highline, answer the following questions:

          3  (use additional sheets if necessary).

          4                 Property #1 address):  507-11 West

          5  24th Street, New York City. Property is owned.

          6  State what business(es) are being conducted at the

          7  property:  Administration and repair shop equipment

          8  maintenance.

          9                 State in detail what harm(s) the

         10  Highline has done to the property or the business

         11  conducted there, giving dates and other information

         12  with as much specificity as possible:  (use

         13  additional sheets if necessary):

         14                 On April 18, 1988 we sent a

         15  registered letter to Mr. Richard Sanborn, President

         16  of Conrail advising him of the hazardous condition

         17  of the rail overhead structure and its

         18  deterioration.  One of our employees missed certain

         19  death, when a huge piece of concrete let go falling

         20  to the pavement within inches of him.  The drainage

         21  pipes are all corroded and are inoperative

         22  compounding the problem.   Enclosed are copies of

         23  our correspondence with Conrail.   Property #2

         24  address:  245-247 10th Avenue, New York, New York

         25  10001. Property is owned.   State what business(es)
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          2  are being conducted at the property:  Administration

          3  and repair shop equipment maintenance.   State in

          4  detail what harm(s) the Highline has done to the

          5  property or the business conducted there, giving

          6  dates and other information with as much specificity

          7  as possible: (use additional sheets if necessary):

          8                 On April 18, 1988 we sent a

          9  registered letter to Mr. Richard Sanborn, President

         10  of Conrail advising him of the hazardous condition

         11  of the rail overhead structure and it's

         12  deterioration.  One of our employees missed certain

         13  death, when a huge piece of concrete let go, falling

         14  to the pavement within inches of him.  The drainage

         15  pipes are all corroded and are inoperative

         16  compounding the problem.

         17                 Enclosed are copies of our

         18  correspondence with Conrail. Property #3 address:

         19  510 West 25th Street, New York, New York 10001.

         20  Property is owned.

         21                 State what business(es) are being

         22  conducted at the property:  Administration and

         23  repair shop equipment maintenance.

         24                 State in detail what harm(s) the

         25  Highline has done to the property or the business
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          2  conducted there, giving dates and other information

          3  with as much specificity as possible:  (use

          4  additional sheets if necessary):

          5

          6  March 14, 1990

          7  Mr. David Duchini

          8  Adolph's Trucking Co., Inc.

          9  507 West 24th Street

         10  New York, NY 10011

         11

         12                 Dear Mr. Duchini:

         13                 Enclosed please find a list of

         14  interrogatories which Conrail is requesting that we

         15  respond to.  Please review these questions and

         16  return them to me as soon as possible.  Your

         17  response to these questions is necessary so that we

         18  can proceed with our abandonment application at the

         19  ICC.

         20                 If you should have any questions,

         21  please don't hesitate to call me at (212) 463-6000.

         22                 Very truly yours,.

         23                 Douglas E. Sarini

         24

         25  August 8, 1988
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          2

          3  Mr. David V. Duchini

          4  Adolph's Trucking Company, Inc.

          5  507-511 West 24th Street

          6  New York, NY 10011

          7

          8                 Dear Mr. Duchini: Thank you for your

          9  letter dated June 16, 1988, regarding the condition

         10  of the elevated bridge structure located above your

         11  property in Manhattan, New York, specifically

         12  regarding the spalling of the concrete.

         13                 Our bridge maintenance forces

         14  performed a further inspection of the structure

         15  whereby they probed the underside of the bridge deck

         16  and discovered several areas of delaminated concrete

         17  which were removed on July 25, 1988.

         18                 We will continue to inspect this

         19  bridge to assure it is maintained to an acceptable

         20  condition.

         21                 Thank you for your interest in this

         22  matter.

         23                 Sincerely,.

         24                 Ron Hasselman

         25
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          2

          3  June 16, 1988

          4  Mr. Richard B. Hasselman

          5  Senior Vice President - Operations

          6  Consolidated Rail Corporation

          7  Six Penn Center

          8  Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103

          9

         10

         11                 Dear Mr. Hasselman: Thank you for

         12  your letter dated May 17, 1988.  Although I concur

         13  with you that the general steel structure is

         14  essentially sound, I am still concerned about large

         15  pieces of concrete falling from the underside of the

         16  structure.

         17                 When your Inspector was at our

         18  premises, he poked around the underside with a

         19  telescopic pole. In doing so, he dislodged another

         20  large piece in an area different from the one from

         21  which the first piece fell, about which I wrote

         22  originally.  This one nearly hit Mr. Killingbeck

         23  himself.  It should therefore have been obvious to

         24  him that there was a problem -- it is obvious to me

         25  and my employees.   Instead of talking about the
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          2  general integrity of the structure as a whole, I

          3  must insist that Conrail address itself to solving

          4  the problem of large pieces of concrete falling from

          5  the underside of the structure which you totally

          6  ignore in your May 17, 1988 letter and which pose a

          7  substantial risk to me, my employees and our

          8  property.

          9                 I look forward to a further response

         10  from you.

         11                 Very truly yours,.

         12                 Adolph's Trucking Co., Inc.

         13                 David V. Duchini DVD:gc.

         14                 CC: Mr. Richard B. Sanborn, Pres.

         15                 Consolidated Rail Corporation.

         16

         17                 N.B.  In addition, we must advise

         18  that only a small sampling of the entire

         19  understructure has been made and you should make

         20  arrangements to have the entire area examined.

         21

         22  May 17, 1988

         23  Mr. David V. Duchini

         24  Adolph's Trucking Company, Inc.

         25  507-511 West 24th Street
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          2  New York, New York 10011

          3

          4                 Dear Mr. Duchini:

          5                 President Sanborn has asked me to

          6  investigate and respond to your letter of April 18,

          7  1988, regarding the condition of the track and

          8  bridge located above your property in Manhattan, New

          9  York, N.Y.

         10                 I am advised General Bridge Inspector

         11  D. R. Killingbeck met with you on Friday, May 6, to

         12  discuss your concerns.

         13                 This bridge is located on our

         14  elevated West 30th Street Branch, which is an

         15  inactive line.  Our inspection reveals that the

         16  bridge and its supports are in good condition.  The

         17  spalling may occur when porous concrete allows

         18  moisture to enter and expand during winter months.

         19  However, I assure you that this does not jeopardize

         20  the safety or integrity of the structure.

         21                 Conrail shares your concern regarding

         22  the safety of this structure.  We will continue to

         23  inspect this bridge and take appropriate action

         24  whenever necessary to maintain the structure in an

         25  acceptable condition.
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          2                 Thank you for bringing this matter to

          3  our attention.

          4                 Sincerely,.

          5                 Richard B. Hasselman.

          6                 Senior Vice President - Operations  .

          7                 Conrail

          8

          9  Mr. Richard D. Sanborn

         10  President

         11  Consolidated Rail Corporation

         12  Six Penn Center

         13  Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103

         14

         15                 Gentlemen:

         16                 We occupy the premises from 24th to

         17  25th Streets between Tenth and Eleventh Avenues,

         18  Manhattan, over which your elevated tracks run, and

         19  the undersigned individually ate and as a Co-Trustee

         20  under the Will of Adolph Duchini, is the owner of

         21  these parcels.

         22                 Increasingly over the years we have

         23  been having drainage problems resulting from the

         24  deterioration of the railroad track supports on our

         25  property.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            224

          1  COMMITTEE ON STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2                 In late February, 1988, a large

          3  section of concrete fell from the underside of the

          4  elevated track onto our driveway.  This piece barely

          5  missed one of our employees and missed an automobile

          6  by no more than a foot.

          7                 Fortunately, no people or vehicles

          8  were directly underneath at the time but it is

          9  clear, however, that had someone been underneath,

         10  severe injury or death would have occurred.

         11                 Your failure to maintain the physical

         12  condition of the track and supports in accordance

         13  with your easement has now reached the point where

         14  our property, and perhaps our personnel, are in

         15  jeopardy.

         16                 You are hereby requested to inspect

         17  and repair the track and supports and thereafter to

         18  maintain them on a regular basis as you are

         19  obligated to do so as to prevent future personal

         20  injuries and/or property damage.

         21                 Very truly yours,.

         22                 David V. Duchini.

         23                 DVD:gc.

         24                 CC: John Lipkowitz.

         25                 Doug Sarini
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          2

          3

          4  April 13, 1988

          5  Mr. David V. Duchini

          6  Adolph's Trucking Co., Inc.

          7  507-511 West 24th Street

          8  New York, New York 10011

          9

         10  Re:  Conrail

         11

         12                 Dear David:

         13                 I just received the addresses from

         14  Doug Sarini and am enclosing the draft letter.  This

         15  should be typed on your letterhead and mailed to:

         16  Mr. Richard D. Sanborn, President, Conrail.  Six

         17  Penn Center Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103.

         18                 I think certified mail, return

         19  receipt requested, is sufficient.

         20                 Please send copies to me and to Doug.

         21                 Cordially,.

         22                 John I. Lipkowitz

         23

         24

         25  Chelsea Property Owners, Inc.
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          2  100 Washington Street

          3  Newark, New Jersey 07102

          4

          5  November 1986

          6

          7  To:  All Owners of Property Along the Southern

          8  Portion of the West 30th Street, Secondary Track

          9  Owned by Consolidated Rail Corporation

         10

         11  Re:  Commitment to Demolish Track

         12

         13                 Ladies and Gentlemen:

         14                 As you all know, Chelsea Property

         15  Owners, Inc.  ("Chelsea:) is negotiating to purchase

         16  the southern portion of the track (and the

         17  supporting structure) owned by Consolidated Rail

         18  Corporation ("Conrail") known as the West 30th

         19  Street Secondary Track, subject to the Interstate

         20  Commerce Commission taking certain action which will

         21  permit the purchase.

         22                 Conrail has indicated that, as a

         23  condition to entering into a Sale Agreement, it will

         24  require Chelsea to commit to the demolition of a

         25  substantial portion of the track (and the supporting
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          2  structure) within a short time following the closing

          3  under the Sale Agreement (the "Closing"), and to

          4  deliver proof that, at the Closing, Chelsea will

          5  have sufficient funds to demolish that track (and

          6  supporting structure).

          7                 The portion of the track (and the

          8  supporting structure) to be demolished will be

          9  specified in the Sale Agreement.

         10                 This letter, as explained below, will

         11  be delivered to Conrail as evidence of Chelsea's

         12  ability to undertake the demolition. To induce

         13  Conrail and Chelsea to continue negotiations and to

         14  enter into a Sale Agreement, Chelsea is requesting a

         15  commitment from each Owner (which will be relied

         16  upon by Chelsea) to: (a) furnish at the Closing (to

         17  an escrow account maintained by Chelsea) sufficient

         18  funds to: (I) demolish and remove the track (and

         19  supporting structure) over that Owner's property;

         20  (II) at the option of each Owner, demolish and

         21  remove the track (and the supporting structure) over

         22  the adjacent streets; and (III) pay that Owner's

         23  proportionate share of the costs (the "Costs")

         24  incurred by Chelsea in connection with the

         25  transaction (including the cost of a $5,000,000
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          2  public liability insurance policy which must be

          3  maintained by Chelsea for 36 months following the

          4  Closing); (b) demolish and remove, or permit Chelsea

          5  to cause the demolition and removal of, the track

          6  (and the supporting structure) as soon as

          7  practicable following the Closing; (c) if the Sale

          8  Agreement is signed, refrain from taking any further

          9  action (or encouraging any other party to take

         10  further action) against Conrail in connection with

         11  the existing litigation until the Closing occurs

         12  (unless such action is in response to the act of

         13  another party and the failure to take action, for

         14  reasons other than the prohibition set forth in (d)

         15  below, will prejudice and Owner); and (d) if the

         16  Closing occurs, refrain from taking any further

         17  action (or encouraging any other part to take

         18  further action) against Conrail in connection with

         19  the track (and the supporting structure) (other than

         20  in connection with environmental or toxic waste

         21  laws) which is inconsistent with the Sale Agreement.

         22                 To date, the aggregate Costs are $.

         23  Each Owner's share of the Costs will be that Owner's

         24  percentage of the track.   The Sale Agreement should

         25  be signed shortly.  The Closing is to take place 90
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          2  days after certain conditions are satisfied.  Of

          3  course, your financial commitment will be of no

          4  force or effect unless a Sale Agreement is signed by

          5  Conrail and Chelsea, and the Closing occurs.

          6                 Please acknowledge your commitment to

          7  Chelsea, as soon as possible, by completing the

          8  Commitment set forth below and signing and returning

          9  two copies.

         10                 Very truly yours,.

         11                 Chelsea Property Owners, Inc.

         12

         13  Conrail

         14

         15                 Dear Conrail Draymen: Quite recently,

         16  you have received correspondence from Mr. Albert

         17  Mascaro, Executive Director of the Intermodal

         18  Transportation Association reminding you that

         19  renewal is required on certain insurance policies if

         20  your company is to continue to be party to the

         21  Uniform Intermodal Interchange Agreement.

         22                 These letters should be handled

         23  immediately with your insurance agent to avoid any

         24  lapse in coverage.

         25                 As you know, proper insurance
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          2  coverage is an integral part of your Trailer

          3  Interchange Agreement with Conrail. If you fail to

          4  renew any portion of your insurance requirements,

          5  your participation in the Uniform Intermodal

          6  Interchange Agreement will be cancelled

          7  automatically terminating your interchange agreement

          8  with Conrail.

          9                 You can avoid this cancellation

         10  procedure from taking place by immediately

         11  forwarding the insurance forms sent you by the ITA

         12  to your insurance agent for completion in advance of

         13  the expiration date.

         14                 We wish to continue our relationship

         15  with your company.

         16                 Please act now.

         17                 Sincerely yours,.

         18                 D.L. Tretter.

         19                 Intermodal Contracts

         20

         21                 P.S. I have asked the I.T.A. to

         22  remind you of your insurance cancellation deadline.

         23  If you have any questions regarding the above,

         24  please contact me at (301) 864-2661. Thank you.

         25
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          2  Written Testimony of:

          3  James Stewart Polshek

          4  Polshek Partnership, LLP

          5  320 West 13th Street

          6  New York, New York 10014-1278

          7

          8                 STEWART POLSHEK: Dear Governor

          9  Pataki, Mayor Guiliani, and Speaker Vallone:   I

         10  have been a long-time admirer of the High Line and

         11  its relationship to our City.

         12                 I live and work in Greenwich Village,

         13  and my office has looked out on the southern spur of

         14  the High Line for the past fifteen years.  As both a

         15  architect and citizen of the City and State of New

         16  York, I support the resolution of Council Members

         17  Miller and Quinn urging you to take all necessary

         18  steps to obtain a Certificate of Interim Trail Use

         19  from the United States Surface Transportation Board

         20  in connection with "railbanking" the High Line.

         21                 As a piece of industrial

         22  infrastructure, the reuse of the High Line

         23  represents a unique opportunity for the invigoration

         24  of New York's urban landscape.

         25                 As tourism replaces manufacturing as
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          2  the City's economic engine, the High Line stands as

          3  a lynchpin connecting the City's past and future.

          4                 The High Line is a living testament

          5  to the robust but fading history of manufacturing in

          6  New York, and now presents the opportunity to enrich

          7  the Public Space of the City in one of its fastest

          8  emerging neighborhoods.

          9                 It is already happening.

         10  Architectural projects are already taking advantage

         11  of the High Line's latent possibilities.

         12                 Look at the new gas station and car

         13  wash recently built under the High Line on 10th

         14  Avenue between 14th and 15th Streets.  (The station

         15  features a metal frame and glass screen, attached to

         16  the structure of the High Line, which functions as

         17  both a sign for the station and a frame through

         18  which to view the elegant structure of the High

         19  Line.)  By virtue of its relationship with the High

         20  Line, the project has elevated itself beyond the

         21  banality of its program.

         22                 This example only points to the

         23  innumerable ways in which architectural solutions

         24  may be found to re-use the High Line in unexpected

         25  and exciting ways.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            233

          1  COMMITTEE ON STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2                 As a footnote, I would like to point

          3  to two more famous rail-based infrastructure

          4  projects in New York:  The Old Penn Station and

          5  Grand Central Station.  One was demolished, only to

          6  be resurrected thirty-five years later.  Another was

          7  saved, due to the intervention of citizens, and has

          8  been renovated.  Both projects, however, persisted

          9  in the consciousness of the City until it was

         10  impossible for them not to be brought back to life.

         11  Let us not wait until it is too late to bring the

         12  High Line back to life in the public life of the

         13  City.

         14                 Respectfully, Polshek Partnership,

         15  LLP.

         16                 James Stewart Polshek

         17

         18  Written Testimony of:

         19  Robert A.M. Stern

         20  Robert A.M. Stern Architects

         21  460 West 34th Street

         22  New York, NY 10001

         23

         24                 ROBERT A.M. STERN: I am here before

         25  the City council in order to lend a strong voice of
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          2  support in favor of Council members Gifford Miller

          3  and Christine Quinn's Resolution 1747 urging the

          4  Governor, Mayor, and officials of the Metropolitan

          5  Transportation Authority to take whatever action is

          6  necessary in order to secure a Certificate of

          7  Interim Trail Use for the High Line.

          8                 I believe this step is important to

          9  insure that this potential resource will not be

         10  needlessly squandered.

         11                 The High Line represents a unique

         12  opportunity to creatively reuse an amazing asset

         13  from our recent industrial past.  It can be

         14  transformed into an incomparable reaction facility

         15  in a growing part of the City woefully underserved

         16  by such amenities.

         17                 Its importance and its potential,

         18  however, are not merely local to the neighborhood

         19  but extend to the City as a whole which will surely

         20  embrace it as an urban, twenty-first-century version

         21  of a boardwalk or esplanade, leaping over the City's

         22  streets and fulfilling hitherto unrealized

         23  futuristic visions long held dear by planners and

         24  architects.

         25                 As an architect and chronicler of the
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          2  City's history whose professional offices on West

          3  Thirty-fourth Street overlook the northern stretch

          4  of the High Line, I commend you for introducing this

          5  resolution.

          6                 We need to continue to place pressure

          7  on those City and State Officials who will have the

          8  final say over the fate of the High Line.

          9                 For all the promise that the High

         10  Line represents, the threat of demolition is still

         11  too real.  We must do all we can to protect this

         12  latent treasure and thereby help insure that this

         13  extraordinary asset is incorporated into the

         14  innovative urban planning that will transform West

         15  Midtown in the near future.

         16

         17  Written Testimony of:

         18  Ross Graham

         19  Chair of the South Hell's Kitchen Planning Committee

         20  of Community board 4

         21

         22                 ROSS GRAHAM: Good afternoon.  I am

         23  Ross Graham, Chair of the South Hell's Kitchen

         24  Planning Committee of Community Board 4.  The Board

         25  has not taken a position on the High Line because it
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          2  has not seen a concrete proposal for its reuse.

          3                 Although almost all of the High Line

          4  is within Community Board 4, we have not been asked

          5  to take a position on this resolution, and learned

          6  of this hearing too late to hold the necessary

          7  meetings to develop a Board position.

          8                 Therefore, I speak unofficially for

          9  myself and several other members of the Board and

         10  the Community with whom I have discussed the issue.

         11                 Two Committees of the Board held a

         12  public forum earlier this winter proposing reuse as

         13  part of the High Line as a Rails to Trails program.

         14                 The description of the Parisian

         15  counterpart was interesting and we were all

         16  entranced by the gorgeous photograph of wildflowers

         17  blooming on the High Line.

         18                 However, we believe this resolution

         19  is premature and should not go forward until a

         20  number of questions are answered. These include, but

         21  are not limited to:

         22                 What entities will pay for this

         23  transformation?

         24                 Will any public funds (direct or

         25  indirect) be used?  When completed, who or what will
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          2  be charged with its maintenance?  Will public funds

          3  be used?   How will passage of this resolution

          4  affect the commitment by the City and State to

          5  complete Hudson River Park less than two blocks

          6  away?  It is no secret that the Park will need more

          7  capitol funding than is in current budgets, and we

          8  are looking for other sources, but clearly will need

          9  more from the City a and State.

         10                 Will the needs of the High Line be

         11  substituted for the Park?

         12                 How will retention of the High Line

         13  affect zoning proposals for West Chelsea and South

         14  Hell's Kitchen?

         15                 We note that EDC has just released an

         16  EAS in conjunction with an application to tear down

         17  the High Line, which would drastically affect

         18  development.   The Design Trust is currently

         19  preparing a report on the feasibility of such reuse,

         20  due in August.

         21                 What happens if designation occurs

         22  and the report is negative?

         23                 What happens if the MTA decides (as

         24  it has hinted) that it will expand the rail yards a

         25  both North and South?
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          2                 Answers to these questions and others

          3  are dependent to a large extent on actual plans

          4  which do not yet exist.  We might like them all but

          5  cannot know until we see some details and funding

          6  proposals.

          7                 We suggest that both parties back

          8  off, talk to one another, and more importantly, to

          9  those people most directly affected in West Chelsea

         10  and South Hell's Kitchen.

         11

         12  Written Testimony of:

         13  Neighborhood Open Space Coalition

         14  356 7th Avenue, 3rd floor

         15  New York, NY

         16

         17                 As everyone here today knows and has

         18  said and will keep saying, New York is a rich City.

         19  Rich in its people, in its cultural institutions and

         20  for us today most importantly, rich in history.

         21                 It's a history flecked with

         22  industrial know how.  It was industrial need that

         23  caused the High Line to be designed, built and for a

         24  long t9ime, profitably used.

         25                 Today, we have the opportunity to
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          2  extend the High Line's history into the future. As

          3  an urban amenity, it will offer to New Yorkers and

          4  visitors alike a recreational opportunity not often

          5  accessible.

          6                 This unique one and a half miles of

          7  New York should not be lost, but rather honored in

          8  its restoration.

          9                 Please support the resolution of the

         10  Council Members Miller and Quinn urging you to take

         11  all necessary steps to obtain a Certificate of

         12  Interim Trail Use from the United States Surface

         13  Transportation Board in connection with

         14   "railbanking" the elevated railroad viaduct running

         15  from 75-95 Gansevoort Street through 547-55 West

         16  34th Street (commonly referred to as the "High

         17  Line")

         18

         19  Written Testimony of:

         20  Place Matters

         21  457 Madison Avenue,

         22  New York, NY 10022

         23

         24                 Place Matters is a project of two

         25  non-profit organizations: City Lore, Inc. and the
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          2  Municipal Art Society. We are committed to bringing

          3  recognition to places throughout New York City that

          4  help us make connections to the past, that

          5  contribute to vital communities, and that sustain

          6  what is distinctive about New York.

          7                 Our work is based on a simple idea:

          8  Ask New Yorkers from all walks of life what places

          9  they value, and why. Because business as usual is

         10  about professionals or people in positions of power

         11  telling New Yorkers what they should value, our work

         12  is revealing a number of important, but often

         13  unheard, perspectives on the City.

         14                 One of our findings is that people

         15  appreciate change and continuity.  People recognize

         16  that the City must evolve, that we cannot take

         17  everything with us into the future, and that often

         18  change contributes to our quality of life.

         19                 At the same time, we all respond to

         20  and connect with some aspects of the past.  The

         21  preservation of some parts of the City is a critical

         22  stabilizing action.   Preserving the High Line would

         23  be just such an act of stabilization in an area

         24  where interchange is fast and furious, and is in

         25  danger of contributing to Manhattan's increasingly
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          2  monolithic character.

          3                 The High Line is a unique historical

          4  artifact, irreplaceable and worthy of a new future

          5  as a public space.   Much of the public conversation

          6  around the High Line has been about visioning its

          7  future - seeing beyond its current state of neglect,

          8  to its potential as a unique open space.  You'll

          9  hear a lot of testimony today about that future,

         10  which is important.  But I urge you to also see the

         11  High Line's potential as a window onto the past, and

         12  particularly a past that has little left to

         13  represent it. A literally, a physical presence of

         14  time, the High Line illustrates of oft-forgotten

         15  story of New York as a working, industrial city.

         16                 New York's history of work and

         17  industry is woefully under-represented by the

         18  buildings and structures we preserve in this City.

         19  The industry, jobs, transportation infrastructure

         20  like the High Line, and the workers who peopled the

         21  west side of Manhattan for 200 years were central to

         22  New York's development as a world City.

         23                 They deserve to be remembered.

         24  Saving the High Line is an appropriate way to do so.

         25                 Like an office building next door to
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          2  ancient ruins in Athens, a preserved High Line next

          3  to new development in Chelsea or the West Village

          4  will give the City the healthiest mix of past,

          5  present and future in its built environment.

          6

          7  Written Testimony of:

          8  Board of Education of the City of New York

          9  Community School Board district 2

         10  333 Seventh Avenue, 7th Floor

         11  New York, New York 10001

         12

         13                 Whereas, in the 1930's the City of

         14  New York, the State of New York, and the New York

         15  Central Railroad agreed to move dangerous railroad

         16  activity from street level to elevated structures

         17  along 10th Avenue in Manhattan as part of the West

         18  Side Improvement Project; and

         19                 Whereas, this 1.45 mile-long elevated

         20  structure, known as the "High Line," was paid for in

         21  part with public funds and operated as a commercial

         22  freight railroad until 1980; and

         23                 Whereas, the High Line is located

         24  entirely within the boundaries of Community School

         25  District 2 in Manhattan; and
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          2                 Whereas, The High Line is principally

          3  located in Manhattan Community District 4, which

          4  encompasses the neighborhoods of Chelsea and

          5  Clinton; and

          6                 Whereas, according to 1999

          7  statistics, only 2% of the land in District 4 is

          8  devoted to open space or outdoor recreation; and

          9                 Whereas, there are only four parks in

         10  Chelsea to serve the outdoor needs of Chelsea's

         11  youth; and

         12                 Whereas, there are six Community

         13  School District 2 public schools located in Chelsea

         14  and Clinton: Public School 11; the Clinton School

         15  for Writers and Artists; Public School 33; MS33 (the

         16  Chelsea Middle School); the Upper Lab School; and

         17  the New York City Museum School; and

         18                 Whereas, there is insufficient open

         19  public space for recreational use for the students

         20  in our schools and in schools throughout the City;

         21  and

         22                 Whereas, the Friends of the High Line

         23  ("FHL"), a 501 (c)(3) not-for-profit organization,

         24  which has extensive public support and the support

         25  of numerous elected officials at all levels of
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          2  government, has done extensive preliminary work to

          3  create a "Rails-To-Trails" program for the High

          4  Line; and

          5                 Whereas, the creation of an open

          6  public space and park on the High Line will help

          7  alleviate the lack of open space for the children in

          8  our district; and

          9                 Whereas, the preservation of the High

         10  Line will play a valuable teaching and historic role

         11  for children in our public schools; and

         12                 Whereas, the preservation of the High

         13  Line and its eventual transformation to an open

         14  public space will afford countless opportunities for

         15  public school involvement;

         16                 Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved, that

         17  Community School District 2 in Manhattan hereby

         18  calls upon Governor George Pataki, Mayor Rudolph

         19  Giuliani and Speaker Peter Vallone to support the

         20  resolution of New York City Council Members Miller

         21  and Quinn to preserve the High Line and urge those

         22  elected officials to take all necessary steps to

         23  obtain a Certificate of Interim Trail Use for the

         24  United States Surface Transportation Board to

         25  preserve the High Line for use as an open public

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            245

          1  COMMITTEE ON STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2  space for our City's youth.

          3

          4  Written Testimony of:

          5  State Senator Eric T. Schneiderman

          6

          7                 ERIC T. SCHNEIDERMAN: As a State

          8  Senator representing much of Manhattan's West Side,

          9  including parts of Chelsea, Clinton, the Upper West

         10  Side, Morningside Heights and Washington Heights, I

         11  wish to offer my support of the resolution put forth

         12  by Council Members Miller and Quinn urging City and

         13  State officials to pursue a certificate of Interim

         14  Trail Use for the High Line.

         15                 New York City-Chelsea in

         16  particular-desperately needs more open space.  If

         17  converted to a public promenade, the High Line would

         18  provide a tremendous amount of open space, as well

         19  as a pedestrian path along the lower West Side.

         20                 Because of its elevation, it would be

         21  unlike any other park or path in the City. We should

         22  do all we can to preserve one of Manhattan's most

         23  interesting structures.

         24

         25  Written Testimony of:
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          2  Susan S. Sands

          3  325 Bleecker Street

          4  New York, NY 10014

          5                 MS. SANDS: One of the major things

          6  that made Chelsea and the West Village great

          7  communities is their daily connection of home life

          8  and industry.

          9                 My daughter growing up, never had to

         10  wonder "what is that place called work?"  It was

         11  right among us. A railroad line that in history was

         12  the part of our heartbeat as a people, that in

         13  fiction was a place Little Orphan Annie and Dick

         14  Tracy might have had their adventures, cries to

         15  become a reminder of the past and a public place of

         16  recreation for everyone.  Like the Jefferson Library

         17  on Sixth Avenue, it would add to whatever is best

         18  and most vital in our neighborhoods, and our City.

         19

         20  Written Testimony of:

         21  Paula Cooper

         22  Paula Cooper Gallery

         23  534 West Street

         24  New York, New York 10011.

         25                 PAULA COOPER: I own two art galleries
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          2  in the West Chelsea district of Manhattan, both on

          3  West 21st Street on a block crossed by the High

          4  Line.  I also own a house in which I live one-half

          5  block away.

          6                 Please know that I wholeheartedly

          7  support the resolution presented by New York City

          8  Council Members Miller and Quinn urging you to take

          9  all necessary steps to obtain a Certificate of

         10  Interim Trail Use from the United States Surface

         11  Transportation board in connection with

         12   "railbanking" the structure.

         13                 Interim Trail Use of the High Line

         14  offers a great and unique opportunity for the City

         15  and State of New York.

         16                 If the High Line is demolished, 1.45

         17  miles of elevated open space, connection three and

         18  growing neighborhoods, will vanish forever.  It can

         19  never be replaced.

         20                 If we can preserve and reuse the High

         21  Line, the City and State will be creating a

         22  world-class urban amenity that will benefit all of

         23  our citizens and attract visitors as well.

         24                 It will offer recreation and

         25  transportation that will compliment the Hudson River
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          2  Park. And, as did a similar project in Paris, it

          3  will increase the value of properties under it and

          4  next to it.  It will maintain the waterfront's

          5  unique character while spurring innovative new

          6  development.

          7                 I strongly feel that the

          8  transportation-based and industrial architectural

          9  style of the High Line is inextricably linked with

         10  the former industrial spaces that I and many of my

         11  colleagues have transformed into exciting exhibition

         12  spaces.

         13                 The High Line potentially offers a

         14  wealth of possible art-related uses that can

         15  reinforce West Chelsea's growing reputation as an

         16  international destination to view and enjoy art.

         17                 The High Line is a monument to New

         18  York's great past as a transportation and industrial

         19  center.

         20                 Please let us not lose the unique

         21  opportunity it presents us to create a spectacular

         22  public space for future generations.

         23

         24  Written testimony of:

         25  Lance Kinz
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          2  President Feigen Contemporary

          3  535 West Street

          4  New York, NY 10011

          5

          6                 LANCE KINZ:  A high-five for the High

          7  Line! Keep it up. If you want to be remembered even

          8  more for your personal efforts in helping make New

          9  York an attractive, instinctive and appealing world

         10  class City, know for being able to really enjoy its

         11  unique urban environment, then it is hands down to

         12  give the High Line a new life for public use.  This

         13  is something for which your administration will be

         14  recognized over many generations to come.  For

         15  Christ's sake, this is something even power broker

         16  Robert Moses would have supported.

         17                 This is not necessarily about

         18  demolition and development or preservation and pipe

         19  dream.

         20                 This is about taking an existing

         21  asset and capitalizing of it for the good of all

         22  citizens and visitors.  It will elevate our City to

         23  new heights.  It is a very viaductable plan.  The

         24  opportunity to do this is now - please don't pass it

         25  over.  (Get it-"pass it over"-overpass-Christ,
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          2  Moses, Passover?).  We are all on the same track in

          3  wanting the State of New York and New York City to

          4  be the very best, so be a trailblazer and support

          5  the High Line.

          6                 I am part Native American, and my

          7  ancestors were from the Lenape tribe who are said to

          8  have a summer village by the Hudson where Gansevoort

          9  now is and the High Line begins ("Gotham: A History

         10  of New York City to 1898" by Edwin G. Burrows).

         11                 They know and appreciated what this

         12  wonderful island has to offer, and I hope you do as

         13  well.  (Of course, they sold Manhattan to the Dutch

         14  for 64 guilders, and now we have co-op boards to

         15  contend with.)   As both a home and business owner

         16  in West Chelsea near the High Line, I strongly

         17  support the resolution of Council Members Miller and

         18  Quinn urging you to take all necessary steps to

         19  obtain a Certificate of Interim Trail Use for the

         20  United States Surface Transportation Board in

         21  connection with "railbanking" the elevated railroad

         22  viaduct running from 75-95 Gansevoort Street through

         23  547-55 West 34th Street (commonly referred to as the

         24   "High Line").   It's a serious matter, and your

         25  help is most genuinely appreciated.
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          2                 Keep up your good work, keep up State

          3  Senator the High Line.

          4

          5  Written Testimony of:

          6  Deborah Bell

          7  465 West 23rd Street

          8  New York, NY 10011

          9                 DEBORAH BELL: As a concerned citizen

         10  of the City and State of New York, and a five-year

         11  resident of London Terrace in West Chelsea, one-half

         12  block for the High Line, and where I also operate a

         13  business, I support the resolution of Council

         14  Members Miller and Quinn urging you to take all

         15  necessary steps to obtain a Certificate of Interim

         16  Trail Use from the United States Surface

         17  Transportation Board in connection with

         18   "railbanking" the elevated railroad viaduct running

         19  from 75-95 Gansevoort Street through 547-55 West

         20  34th Street (commonly referred to as the "High

         21  Line").

         22                 Interim Trail Use of the High Line

         23  offers a great and unique opportunity for the City

         24  and State of New York.  If the High Line is

         25  demolished, 1.45 miles of elevated open space,
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          2  connecting three vibrant and growing neighborhoods,

          3  will vanish forever.  It can never be replaced.

          4                 If we preserve and reuse the High

          5  Line, however, the City and State of New York will

          6  be creating a world-renowned urban amenity that will

          7  serve its community and attract visitors - visitors

          8  who are arriving in ever-increasing numbers, as I

          9  observe daily from my windows overlooking the

         10  intersection of 23rd Streets and Tenth Avenue.  It

         11  will over recreation and transportation uses that

         12  will complement the Hudson River Park and offer

         13  art-related uses that can reinforce the area's

         14  international reputation as a major hub of the art

         15  world.  As did a similar project in Paris, it will

         16  increase the vale of properties under it and next to

         17  it.  It will complement whatever new use is selected

         18  for the 30th Street rail yards.  It will maintain

         19  the neighborhood's unique character while spurring

         20  innovative new development of the highest caliber.

         21  The High Line is a monument to New York's great past

         22  as a center of transportation and manufacturing.

         23  Let's not lose the unique opportunity we are now

         24  presented with to create a spectacular public space

         25  for future generations to enjoy and admire.
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          2

          3  Written Testimony Of:

          4  Peter MacGill

          5  Pace/Macgill Gallery

          6  32 East 57 Street

          7  New York, NY 10022

          8

          9                 PETER MACGILL: As a concerned citizen

         10  of the City and State of New York, I support the

         11  resolution of Council Members Miller and Quinn

         12  urging you to take all necessary steps to obtain a

         13  Certificate of Interim Trail Use from the United

         14  States Surface Transportation Board in connection

         15  with "railbanking" the elevated railroad viaduct

         16  running from 75-95 Gansevoort Street through 547-55

         17  West 34th Street (commonly referred to as the "High

         18  Line").

         19                 I am a father of two and grew up in

         20  the 1960's.  Consequently, I live with my failure of

         21  not heeding the warnings of environmentally

         22  enlightened people who voiced their concerns in the

         23  time of my childhood.  Had we listened to their

         24  rhetoric and set aside even a small part of what was

         25  being considered for conservation, the world would
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          2  be a different place today. Land is one of our great

          3  resources and we are systematically loosing it to

          4  development.

          5                 As a parent, I want to do what I can

          6  to make the world a good place for my children to

          7  inherit.  To me, it is obvious that we should

          8  preserve the High Line and allow people to enjoy a

          9  place of quietude in an otherwise radically evolving

         10  neighborhood.  It is easy to build buildings, hard

         11  to preserve space.  Let's stand up and do the later,

         12  the former is not reversible.

         13

         14  Written Testimony Of:

         15  Lucas Schoormans

         16  508 West 26th Street

         17  New York, NY 10001

         18

         19                 LUCAS SCHOORMAS: As a concerned

         20  citizen of the City and State of New York, I support

         21  the resolution of Council Members Miller and Quinn

         22  urging you to take all necessary steps to obtain a

         23  Certificate of Interim Trail Use from the United

         24  States Surface Transportation Board in connection

         25  with "railbanking" the elevated railroad viaduct
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          2  running from 75-95 Gansevoort Street through 547-55

          3  West 34th Street (commonly referred to as the "High

          4  Line").

          5                 The art community has previously

          6  helped to transform an entire neighborhood, SoHo,

          7  and is very actively involved in doing so again in

          8  Chelsea by drawing a whole new socioeconomic group

          9  of people, either as residents, as professionals, or

         10  as clients and visitors.  The area's industrial past

         11  and its architectural manifestation were a key

         12  element and trigger for this most recent move, and

         13  the High Line as a connecting vector is integral to

         14  it.

         15                 Interim Trail Use of the High Line

         16  offers a great and unique opportunity for the City

         17  and State of New York.  If the High Line is

         18  demolished, 1.45 miles of elevated open space,

         19  connecting three vibrant and growing neighborhoods,

         20  will vanish forever.  It can never be replaced.

         21  But if we preserve and reuse the High Line, the City

         22  and State of New York will be creating a

         23  world-renowned urban amenity that will serve its

         24  community and attract visitors.

         25                 It will offer recreation and
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          2  transportation use that will complement the Hudson

          3  River Park and offer art-related uses that can

          4  reinforce the area's international reputation as an

          5  art-world hub.  As did a similar project in Paris,

          6  it will increase the value of properties under it

          7  and next to it.

          8                 It will complement whatever new use

          9  is selected for the 30th Street rail yards.  It will

         10  maintain the neighborhood's unique character while

         11  spurring innovative new development of the highest

         12  caliber.

         13                 The High Line is a monument to New

         14  York's great past as a transportation and

         15  manufacturing hub.  Let's not lose the unique

         16  opportunity it presents it presents us now to create

         17  a spectacular public space for future generations to

         18  enjoy and admire.

         19

         20  Written Testimony Of:

         21  Christophe W. Mao

         22  Chambers Fine Art LLC

         23  210 Eleventh Avenue, 2nd Floor

         24  New York, NY 10001

         25
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          2                 CHRISTOPHE MAO: As the owner of

          3  Chambers Fine Art LLC at 210 Eleventh Avenue, New

          4  York, I support the resolution of Council Members

          5  Miller and Quinn urging you to take all necessary

          6  steps to obtain a Certificate of Interim Trail Use

          7  from the United States Surface Transportation Board

          8  in connection with "railbanking" the elevated

          9  railroad viaduct running from 75-95 Gansevoort

         10  Street through 547-55 West 34th Street (commonly

         11  referred to as the "High Line").

         12                 Interim Trail Use of the High Line

         13  offers a great and unique opportunity for the City

         14  and State of New York.  If the High Line is

         15  demolished, 1.45 miles of elevated open space,

         16  connecting three vibrant and growing neigh

         17  neighborhoods, will vanish forever.  It can never be

         18  replaced.   But if we preserve and reuse the High

         19  Line, the City and State of New York will be

         20  creating a world-renowned urban amenity that will

         21  serve its community and attract visitors.  It will

         22  offer recreation and transportation uses that will

         23  complement the Hudson River Park and offer

         24  art-related uses that can reinforce the area's

         25  international reputation as an art-world hub.
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          2                 As did a similar project in Paris, it

          3  will increase the value of properties under it and

          4  next to it.  It will complement whatever new use is

          5  selected for the 3oth Street rail yards.  It will

          6  maintain the neighborhood's unique character while

          7  spurring innovative new development of the highest

          8  caliber.

          9                 The High Line is a monument to New

         10  York's great past as a transportation and

         11  manufacturing hub.  Let's not lose the unique

         12  opportunity it presents us now to create a

         13  spectacular public space for future generations to

         14  enjoy and admire.

         15

         16  Written Testimony Of:

         17  Barbara Moore

         18  Bound & Unbound

         19  601 West 26th Street - 12th Floor

         20  New York, NY 10001

         21

         22                 BARBARA MOORE: I'm writing this

         23  letter in support of the resolution by Council

         24  Members Miller and Quinn for a Certificate of

         25  Interim Trail Use concerning the "High Line".
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          2                 I've lived and worked in Chelsea for

          3  34 years and currently has my bookshop/gallery,

          4  Bound & Unbound, in the thriving West Chelsea art

          5  district.

          6                 I'm also the editor of and wrote the

          7  introduction for a new book, The Destruction of Penn

          8  Station:  Photographs by Peter Moore (Distributed

          9  Art Publishers), that show in graphic detail the

         10  demolition of a magnificent building, an act of

         11  vandalism 35 years ago that has been regretted ever

         12  since.

         13                 As we now see with the restoration of

         14  railroad stations up and down the east coast in

         15  particular Grand Central Station, these buildings

         16  once considered white elephants can be brought to

         17  vibrant life, not only as transportation hubs, but

         18  as gathering places and vivid reminders of a great

         19  industrial past.

         20                 The High Line, though more modest,

         21  also speaks of the role of industry and

         22  transportation in the formation of this great City.

         23  Once torn down, this unique structure can never be

         24  replaced.

         25                 It deserves to be maintained, but not
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          2  as a relic.  As has been demonstrated by the

          3  critical and popular success of the Promenade

          4  Plantee in Paris, also a formerly unused elevated

          5  line, reuse is viable and could have extraordinary

          6  benefits for our City.

          7                 North-to-south the High Line could be

          8  a traffic-free link between the Greenwich Village

          9  and Chelsea communities.  East to west it could form

         10  a gateway to an exciting new art district and our

         11  newly revived waterfront.  The potential uses are

         12  numerous; they inspire the imagination while

         13  offering practical benefits to those in adjoining

         14  neighborhoods and throughout New York City.

         15                 I urge the adoption of this

         16  resolution.

         17

         18  Written Testimony Of:

         19  Anne Pasternak

         20  Executive Director

         21  Creative Time

         22  307 Seventh Avenue #1904

         23  New York, NY 10001

         24

         25                 ANNE PASTERNAK: It is as both a
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          2  concerned resident of New York and as a professional

          3  working to enrich our public spaces through the arts

          4  that I am writing to you now.  Specifically, I urge

          5  you to support Council Members Quinn and Miller in

          6  supporting a Certificate of Interim Trail Use from

          7  the United States Surface Transportation Board

          8  regarding the elevated railroad running from

          9  Gansevort Street through 34th Street in Manhattan.

         10                 As you may know, for nearly thirty

         11  years Creative Time has worked hand-in-hand with

         12  State and City agencies to invigorate neglected

         13  urban spaces.  From programs such as Art on the

         14  Beach (1973-1982) on a landfill now know as Battery

         15  Park City and the 42nd Street Art Project

         16  (1993-1995), we have delighted millions of New

         17  Yorkers with exciting art in some unlikely places.

         18  Over this time the landscape of our City has changed

         19  dramatically- and for the better in so many ways.

         20  But now with real estate demand at an all time high,

         21  the High Line may be our last major unutilized space

         22  which can be designed for public recreational and

         23  cultural use.  As such, we are presented with a

         24  terrific opportunity!   We should preserve the High

         25  Line for "Interim Trail Use" and create an urban
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          2  environment of worldwide interest that serves the

          3  community, attracts visitors, and bolsters real

          4  estate interests.  Not only would such an act

          5  preserve an important part of our industrial past,

          6  it also would tell our citizens that we value them.

          7  Long gone are the days when the Roman Republic built

          8  public plazas that inspired the citizenry and told

          9  them they were valued.  Long gone is available real

         10  estate for would class parks like Central Park.  But

         11  here is our chance to make something remarkable

         12  happen in Manhattan's last great, untapped public

         13  space.

         14                 By supporting the preservation and

         15  redesign of the High Line, we will tell our

         16  residents and visitors that they are valued.  Let's

         17  take advantage of this once-in-a-lifetime

         18  opportunity.

         19

         20  Written Testimony Of:

         21  Elise Bernhardt

         22  Executive Director

         23  Creative Time

         24  307 Seventh Avenue #1904

         25  New York, NY 10001
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          2

          3                 ELISE BERNHARDT: As a concerned

          4  citizen of the City and State of New York and the

          5  Executive Director of The Kitchen, a performance

          6  space for contemporary arts located on 19th Street

          7  between Tenth and Eleventh Avenues, just West of the

          8  High Line, I support the resolution of Council

          9  Members Miller and Quinn urging you to take all

         10  necessary steps to obtain a Certificate of Interim

         11  Trail Use from the United States Surface

         12  Transportation Board in connection with

         13   "railbanking" the elevated railroad viaduct running

         14  from 75095 Gansevoort Street through 547-55 West

         15  34th Street (commonly referred to as the "High

         16  Line").

         17                 The High Line is an extraordinary

         18  relic of old New York which long ago should have

         19  received Landmark status.  The Interim Trail Use of

         20  the High Line offers a great and unique opportunity

         21  for the City and State of New York.

         22                 If the High Line is demolished 1.45

         23  miles of elevated open space, connecting three

         24  vibrant and growing neighborhoods, will vanish

         25  forever.  It can never be replaced, but if we
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          2  preserve and reuse the High Line, the city and the

          3  State of New York will be creating a would-renowned

          4  v urban amenity that will serve its community and

          5  attract visitors.  It will offer recreation and

          6  transportation uses that will complement the Hudson

          7  River Park and offer art-related uses that can

          8  reinforce the area's international reputation as an

          9  art-world hub.

         10                 As did a similar project in Paris, it

         11  will increase the vale of properties under it and

         12  next to it.  It will complement whatever new use is

         13  selected for the 30th Street rail yards.  It will

         14  maintain the neighborhood's unique character while

         15  spurring innovative new development of the highest

         16  caliber.

         17                 The High Line is a monument to New

         18  York's great past as a transportation and

         19  manufacturing hub. Let's not lose the unique

         20  opportunity it presents us now to create a

         21  spectacular public space for future generations to

         22  enjoy and admire.

         23

         24  Written Testimony Of:

         25  Stanley Bulbach
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          2  Fifteenth Street Block Association

          3  Representing West 200 Block

          4

          5                 STANLEY BULBACH: Our Block

          6  Association has been following the issue of the

          7   "High Line" elevated railroad in West Chelsea and

          8  we strongly support all efforts to pursue a

          9  Certificate of Interim Trail Use for the High Line.

         10                 This area is one of the most densely

         11  populated residential communities in Chelsea and is

         12  experiencing a major building boom bringing in even

         13  more population.

         14                 Unfortunately, this area is also

         15  distinguished by having less park space for its

         16  growing residents than almost any other residential

         17  community in New York City.

         18                 Therefore, we are of course anxious

         19  to have the opportunity to study the possibility of

         20  any potential public park space to address this very

         21  important need for rational city planning.

         22                 In addition to our interests in

         23  seeking the obvious benefits of public park space,

         24  we are interested in preserving the historic

         25  heritage of our neighborhood.
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          2                 Not only does that preservation

          3  enhance the quality-of-life for local residents, it

          4  also benefits the local business and property owners

          5  enormously.

          6                 We appreciate that demolition of the

          7  old structure might be profitable to property values

          8  immediately adjacent to the High Line, but the hasty

          9  demolition would certainly be a terrible permanent

         10  loss to property values and residents and businesses

         11  throughout Western Chelsea and the North Village.

         12                 We urge you support a Certificate of

         13  Interim Trail Use to provide the community and its

         14  growing businesses the opportunity to work together

         15  to explore retaining the High Line and benefiting

         16  from it.

         17

         18  Written Testimony Of:

         19  Jordan Betten

         20  Lost Art/Space 515

         21  515 West 29th Street - 6th floor

         22  New York, NY 10001

         23

         24                 JORDAN BETTEN: As a concerned citizen

         25  of the City and State of New York, I support the
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          2  resolution of Council Members Miller and Quinn

          3  urging you take all necessary steps to obtain a

          4  Certificate of Interim Trail Use from the United

          5  States Surface Transportation Board in connection

          6  with "railbanking" the elevated railroad viaduct

          7  running from 75-95 Gansevoort Street through 547-55

          8  West 34th Street (commonly referred to as the "High

          9  Line").

         10                 As a business owner with views of the

         11  High Line, I consider the possible uses of these

         12  tracks almost everyday.  Without hesitation, action

         13  calls for the preservation and reuse of the High

         14  Line.

         15                 Certainly, with some work and

         16  restoration, the High Line could be transformed into

         17  a world-renowned structure.

         18                 Similar to the elevated park in

         19  Paris, the High Line will spawn economic growth,

         20  compliment and future land uses, and, most

         21  importantly, increase the quality of life of all New

         22  York city residents and tourists.

         23                 Furthermore, by connecting three of

         24  the fastest growing neighborhoods in Manhattan, the

         25  High Line offers a totally unique and "space-saving"
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          2  amenity.

          3                 The High Line is a New York City

          4  landmark.  Let us not lose this opportunity to

          5  create a spectacular public space for future

          6  generations to enjoy and admire.

          7

          8  Written Testimony Of:

          9  Kari McKahan

         10  Loco

         11  501 West 29th Street, #3R

         12  New York, NY 10001

         13

         14                 KARI MCKAHAN: As a longtime Chelsea

         15  resident and artist who has been a resident in a

         16  building that flanks the High Line for over four

         17  years, and as a concerned taxpayer and citizen of

         18  the City and State of New York, I support the

         19  resolution of Council Members Miller and Quinn

         20  urging you to take all necessary steps to obtain a

         21  Certificate of Interim Trail Use from the United

         22  States Surface Transportation Board in connection

         23  with "railbanking" the elevated railroad viaduct

         24  running from 75-95 Gansevoort Street through 547-55

         25  West 34th Street (commonly referred to as the "High
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          2  Line").

          3                 For many years, I have relied upon

          4  the expansive and unique view of the West Side

          5  skyline as a source of creative inspiration and

          6  spiritual sustenance.  The High Line is an indelible

          7  aspect of that skyline.

          8                 In a City where daylight is limited

          9  to a few hours a day (if that) due to the hindering

         10  shadows of countless high rises, the area

         11  surrounding the High Line has been a beacon to

         12  artists and creative professionals for its quality

         13  of light and low-lying, expansive spaces.

         14                 The introduction of high-rise

         15  developments and the destruction of the High Line

         16  would be a disastrous blow to the history and

         17  quality of the neighborhood, as well as to the value

         18  of existing properties, galleries and studios that

         19  rely on light and space for their business.

         20                 Interim Trail Use of the High Line

         21  offers a great and unique opportunity for the City

         22  and State of New York.  If the High Line is

         23  demolished, 1.45 miles of elevated open space,

         24  connecting three vibrant and growing neighborhoods,

         25  will vanish forever.  It can never be replaced.
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          2  But if we preserve and reuse the High Line, the City

          3  and the State of New York will be creating a

          4  world-renowned urban amenity that will serve its

          5  community and attract visitors.  It will offer

          6  recreation and transportation that will complement

          7  the Hudson River Park and offer art-related uses

          8  that can reinforce the area's international

          9  reputation as an art-world hub.  It will maintain

         10  the neighborhood's unique character while spurring

         11  innovative new development of the highest caliber.

         12                 The High Line is a monument to New

         13  York's great past as a transportation and

         14  manufacturing hub.  Let's not lose the unique

         15  opportunity it presents us now to create a

         16  spectacular public space for future generations to

         17  enjoy and admire.

         18

         19  Written Testimony Of:

         20  Lucy Barnes and Cathy Maguire

         21  I. Barnes Corp.

         22  408 West 15th Street, 5th floor

         23  New York, NY 10001

         24

         25                 Lucy Barnes: As a concerned citizen
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          2  and owner of a local fashion design business, I

          3  support the resolution of Council Members Miller and

          4  Quinn urging you to take all necessary steps to

          5  obtain a Certificate of Interim Trail Use from the

          6  United States Surface Transportation Board in

          7  connection with "railbanking" the elevated railroad

          8  viaduct running from 75-95 Gansevoort Street through

          9  547-55 West 34th Street. Interim Trail Use of the

         10  High Line offers a great and unique opportunity for

         11  the City and State of New York.

         12                 If the High Line is demolished, 1.45

         13  miles of elevated open space connecting three

         14  vibrant and growing neighborhoods, will vanish

         15  forever.  It can never be replaced.

         16                 But if we preserve and reuse the High

         17  Line, the City and the State of New York will be

         18  creating a world-renowned urban amenity that will

         19  serve its community and attract visitors.   It will

         20  offer recreation and transportation uses that will

         21  complement the Hudson River Park and offer

         22  art-related uses that can reinforce the area's

         23  international reputation as an art world hub.   It

         24  will increase the value of properties under it and

         25  next to it.  It will complement whatever new use is
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          2  selected for 30th Street rail yards.  It will

          3  maintain the neighborhood's unique character while

          4  spurring innovations and new development of the

          5  highest caliber.

          6                 The High Line is a monument to New

          7  York's great past as a transportation and

          8  manufacturing hub.   Let's not lose the unique

          9  opportunity it presents us now to create a

         10  spectacular public space for future generations to

         11  enjoy and admire.

         12

         13  Written Testimony Of:

         14  Jerry Romanoff

         15  President

         16  New Roads Realty Corporation

         17  124 Malvern Street

         18  Newark, New Jersey 07105

         19

         20                 JERRY ROMANOFF: I am writing this

         21  letter to you to explain the difficulties and

         22  concerns over the High Line that runs through our

         23  property in the Meat District. Since I am unable to

         24  be present at today's hearing, I have asked my

         25  associate, Mr. Stephen Touhey, to present the
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          2  Highlights of this letter to the Committee.

          3                 Our building is almost a square block

          4  surrounded by West 13th Street, Washington Street,

          5  Little West 12th Street and 10th Avenue.

          6                 We have lost a number of tenants in

          7  the building because of the leaking railroad tracts.

          8                 One meat company was M. Friend who

          9  rented at 856 Washington Street.  He moved out about

         10  6 years ago and the premises was never re-rented for

         11  a meat cooler.  We had to rent to a chicken company

         12  whose product was iced and wet.

         13                 The premises is not suitable for a

         14  tenant who has a dry product, whether refrigerated

         15  or not.  The premises has been vacant for over a

         16  year and cannot be rented even though refrigerated

         17  space is scarce.

         18                 The second floor of 440 West 13th

         19  Street under the railroad tracks has been vacant for

         20  25 years.  We tried on numerous occasions to repair

         21  the leaks by attempting to waterproof the roof under

         22  the railroad tracks.

         23                 As suggested by the railroad in

         24  numerous correspondence which is being presented

         25  today.  The crawl space between the railroad track
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          2  and the roof is so small, it is impossible to repair

          3  the roof.  All of our attempts have failed.

          4                 The attached photographs show some of

          5  the concrete and rust damage caused by the years of

          6  leaking due to lack of maintenance.

          7                 We have attempted to repair the leaks

          8  from on top of the track.  This was to no avail due

          9  to the massive damage and poor condition of the

         10  concrete caused by lack of maintenance of the

         11  drainage.   The meat packing district still has a

         12  number of food companies as occupants.

         13                 The decaying concrete, rusting steel

         14  and standing water are excellent breeding areas for

         15  bugs and bacteria, this is certainly a public

         16  hazard.   There have been many instances of concrete

         17  falling from the railroad track.  We have sent many

         18  notices to the railroad warning about this

         19  condition, some of this correspondence is presented

         20  to you today.

         21                 Derelicts and burglars are constantly

         22  inhabiting the railroad tracks. We have spent large

         23  sums of money to secure the railroad tracks from

         24  arson, burglary, vagrancy and squatting, all to no

         25  avail.  We have constant fires, break-ins and
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          2  squatting by the homeless.

          3                 Another issue that should be

          4  addressed is access to the proposed walk.  We do not

          5  intend to provide access to the proposed walk

          6  because of the security problems we have previously

          7  encountered.   Lack of maintenance and the ensuing

          8  water in the building has created another problem.

          9                 The continuing flooding in the

         10  basement due to the leaking tracks has caused major

         11  rodent and vermin conditions in the basement.  We

         12  have spent huge amount of money on various programs

         13  to control this ongoing problem.

         14                 The situation is terrible because of

         15  the many food companies in the area.  The constant

         16  flooding has made a major portion of the basement

         17  unrentable and unusable.

         18                 In the interest of public safety and

         19  health, I urge you to proceed with the removal of

         20  the unnecessary and dangerous High Line.

         21

         22  March 1, 1990

         23  Mr. John F. Yaeger

         24  Assistant Vice President, Real Estate

         25  Consolidated Rail Corporation
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          2  1500-6 Penn Center

          3  Philadelphia, PA 19103

          4

          5                 Dear Mr. Yaeger:

          6                 We are the attorneys representing the

          7  owner of property located at 437-451 W. 13th Street

          8  and 440-450 W. 13th Street, also known as 856

          9  Washington Street and 49 Little West 12th Street,

         10  New York, New York.

         11                 Portions of these buildings are

         12  located under the overhead railroad viaduct know as

         13  the Manhattan West Side Rail Line.

         14                 Enclosed are copies of plot maps

         15  indicating the portions of my client's properties,

         16  which have been outlined and marked in yellow.  In

         17  The overhead viaduct and railroad beds are in a

         18  state of severe disrepair.

         19                 There are many large cracks and heavy

         20  concrete pieces have fallen from the structure.

         21  This has created a dangerous and hazardous condition

         22  to both persons and property.

         23                 We know that you or a representative

         24  of your company have recently inspected the viaduct

         25  structure in the meat market area.
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          2                 In addition, you are in receipt of

          3  various engineer's reports, which depict the

          4  condition of the rail line.

          5                 There have been constant leaks coming

          6  from the railroad bed and tracks into my client's

          7  buildings that have caused extensive damages to the

          8  floors and ceilings.

          9                 All of these buildings are used and

         10  occupied by various wholesale meat and poultry

         11  dealers.  As a result of the leaks, products have

         12  become contaminated and spoiled.

         13                 Areas within each building have

         14  become so damaged, rendering them unuseable and

         15  unrentable.

         16                 My client is aware that Con Rail is

         17  awaiting a determination from the I.C.C. Concerning

         18  the future use of the West Side Rail Line and/or the

         19  possible demolition of the entire viaduct.

         20                 However, because of the present

         21  dangerous condition and the leaks into my client's

         22  buildings, you are requested to immediately correct

         23  the defects to the tracks and repair the railroad

         24  bed so as to stop all leaks.

         25                 My client cannot wait for the
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          2  decision to be rendered buy the I.C.C.  Your prompt

          3  and immediate attention is urgently needed.  My

          4  client will be available to meet with you or your

          5  representative at any time to discuss this matter

          6  and to inspect the site.

          7                 Upon your failure to commence repairs

          8  within the next two (2) weeks, we have been

          9  instructed to commence legal proceeding to protect

         10  my client's rights and property.

         11                 Your prompt response would be

         12  appreciated.

         13                 Thank you for your consideration.

         14                 Very truly yours,.

         15                 Michael Romanoff MR:mf Enc.

         16                 CC: Francis L. Salvia,

         17                 Director of Trans.

         18                 City of New York

         19

         20

         21  March 29, 1990

         22  Mr. Michael Romanoff

         23  Attorneys At Law

         24  7-11 South Broadway

         25  White Plains, New York 10601
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          2

          3                 Dear Sir:

          4                 This is in response to your March 1,

          5  1990, letter to Mr. John F. Jaeger. While Conrail

          6  appreciates the difficulties posed by the conditions

          7  described in your letter, it cannot accept

          8  responsibility for water descending upon the

          9  properties under the Hi Line.

         10                 I suggest that the major problem may

         11  lie in the condition of the roofs themselves, a

         12  situation which a competent roofer or plumber could

         13  surely remedy.

         14                 As you are aware, Conrail has been

         15  unable to use the line for several years, and the

         16  local property organization is attempting to evict

         17  us in one way or another.

         18                 Conrail would like to be a good

         19  neighbor, but, in these circumstances, I am sure you

         20  will understand our reluctance to commit significant

         21  resources over and above those necessary to maintain

         22  the structural integrity of the line.

         23                 Very truly yours,.

         24                 John F. Betak.

         25                 Assistant Vice President.
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          2                 Asset Development.

          3

          4  June 24, 1991

          5

          6  Mr. John F. Betak

          7  Assistant Vice President - Asset Development

          8  Consolidated Rail Corporation

          9  One Liberty Place

         10  1650 Market Street

         11  Philadelphia, PA 19103-7399

         12

         13                 Dear Mr. Betak:

         14                 We are the attorneys representing the

         15  owner of property located at 437-451 W. 13th Street

         16  and 440-450 West 13th Street, also known as 856

         17  Washington Street and 49 Little West 12th Street,

         18  New York, New York.

         19                 By letter dated March 1, 1990, a copy

         20  of which is enclosed, we notified Conrail that the

         21  overhead viaduct and railroad beds are in a state of

         22  severe disrepair and that heavy pieces of concrete

         23  have fallen from the structure.

         24                 By letter dated March 29, 1990, a

         25  copy of which is also enclosed, your company refused

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            281

          1  COMMITTEE ON STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2  to make the necessary repairs to maintain the

          3  structure.

          4                 Last week, several large pieces of

          5  concrete fell from the overhead viaduct onto the

          6  street, nearly killing pedestrians walking on the

          7  sidewalk. I am enclosing three pictures depicting

          8  the missing pieces of concrete from the viaduct and

          9  the concrete that has fallen on to the sidewalk.

         10                 Once again, we request that you

         11  immediately make the necessary repairs to put the

         12  overhead viaduct in a safe condition.

         13                 Under its present condition, it is

         14  dangerous and hazardous to not only the owner of the

         15  property but to all pedestrians and the general

         16  public.

         17                 In addition, water continues to leak

         18  into the buildings, causing sever damages. Your

         19  cooperation is expediting prompt repairs is urgently

         20  requested.

         21                 Very truly yours,.

         22                 Micahel Romanoff.

         23                 MR:mf Enc.

         24                 Sent by Certified Mail - Return

         25                 Receipt Requested.
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          3

          4  July 10, 1991

          5

          6  Mr. Michael Romanoff, Esquire

          7  7-11 South Broadway

          8  White Plains, New York 10601

          9

         10  Re:  Conrail's West 30th Street Secondary Track

         11

         12                 Dear Mr. Romanoff:

         13                 Mr. Betak has requested that I

         14  respond to your letter dated June 24, 1991,

         15  concerning Conrail's West 30th Street Secondary

         16  Track in New York.

         17                 As you know, the future of this rail

         18  line, as well as the condition of the line, is the

         19  subject of pending litigation before the Interstate

         20  Commerce Commission.

         21                 Conrail's long standing policy is not

         22  to comment on matters involved in pending

         23  litigation.

         24                 Nonetheless, let me just reiterate

         25  what Mr. Betak told you in his letter of March 29,
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          2  1990.

          3                 First, Conrail does not believe

          4  itself responsible for improper roof conditions on

          5  buildings located under the line.

          6                 We would again suggest that a

          7  competent roofer or plumber would remedy your water

          8  problems.

          9                 As to the concrete that allegedly

         10  fell from the line, Conrail takes seriously its

         11  responsibility to be a good corporate neighbor and

         12  would certainly not permit the line to become a

         13  hazard to the neighborhood.

         14                 We conduct regular inspections of the

         15  line and our engineers have found that the condition

         16  of the line is sound.

         17                 Given the pending litigation, I am

         18  sure you will understand our reluctance to commit

         19  significant resources over and above those necessary

         20  to maintain the structural integrity of the line.

         21                 Conrail continues to perform regular

         22  inspections of the line and whenever hazardous

         23  conditions are discovered by that process or are

         24  brought to our attention by others, we will continue

         25  to perform work necessary to assure that the line is
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          2  safe.

          3                 Very truly yours,.

          4                 Jonathan M. Broder.

          5                 Senior General Attorney

          6

          7  June 29, 1994

          8

          9  Certified Mail

         10  Return Receipt Requested

         11

         12  Mr. Robert J. Tracy

         13  Property Manager

         14  Con Rail

         15  Thornall Building 240

         16  510 Thornall Street

         17  Edison, New Jersey 08837

         18

         19                 Dear Mr. Tracy:

         20                 We are the owners of two parcels of

         21  property, one located at 437-445 West 13th Street,

         22  New York, New York 10014 and one at 856 Washington

         23  Street to corner of Little W. 12th Street, New York,

         24  New York 10014.  Both properties abut and are under

         25  the overhead viaduct of the abandoned railroad track
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          2  that runs through the Gansevoort Meat Market on the

          3  west side of Manhattan, New York.

          4                 Last week, at the property located at

          5  445 West 13th Street, New York, New York, a large

          6  piece of concrete fell off the overhead railroad

          7  structure, crashing into the sidewalk.  Luckily, no

          8  one was killed or injured.  The concrete and steel

          9  is in a dilapidated condition and pieces of concrete

         10  appear to be loose and may fall on pedestrians or

         11  property, causing injury and damage.

         12                 As a result of the non-use and your

         13  failure to maintain and repair the viaduct, a

         14  dangerous and hazardous condition presently exists.

         15  You are requested to immediately repair the damaged

         16  viaduct.  Time is of the essence.

         17                 For further information, please call

         18  me at the above phone number or at our New York City

         19  office at (212) 924-2973. Please respond.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 Very truly yours,.

         22                 Gansevoort Holding Corporation.

         23                 Michael Romanoff, President

         24

         25  July 20, 1984
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          2

          3  Michael Romanoff, Esquire

          4  50 Hamilton Avenue

          5  White Plains, New York 10601

          6

          7  Re:  Water Damage 856 Washing Street, New York, New

          8  York, Date Unknown

          9

         10                 Your letter of June 29, 1984

         11  regarding the captioned has reached me for reply.

         12  Please be advised that Penn Central has no interest

         13  in the subject overhead railroad viaduct (30th

         14  Street Branch), nor has it since 1976.

         15                 Accordingly, Mr. Romanoff, we see no

         16  basis for any liability on the part of Penn Central

         17  for the water damage to your client's property.

         18                 Yours very truly,.

         19                 J.J. Eberle, Jr.

         20                 Director, Insurance

         21

         22  July 26, 1984

         23

         24  Con Rail

         25  6 Penn Center
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          2  Philadelphia, Pa. 19103

          3

          4                 Gentlemen: I am the attorney

          5  representing the owner of property located at 856

          6  Washington Street, New York, New York.

          7                 As a result of the defective

          8  condition of the overhead railroad viaduct, which

          9  runs through my client's property, extensive water

         10  damage has been caused to my client's property.

         11                 The overhead railroad viaduct runs

         12  from the West side of Manhattan from 33rd Street to

         13  the Downtown Gansevoort Meat Market. Kindly have

         14  your representatives call me at their earliest

         15  convenience to discuss this problem.

         16                 Very truly yours,.

         17                 Michael Romanoff

         18

         19

         20  August 3, 1984

         21

         22  Mr. Michael Romanoff, Esquire

         23  50 Hamiltion Avenue

         24  White Plains, New York 10601

         25
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          2                 Dear Mr. Romanoff: This will

          3  acknowledge your communication of July 26, 1984,

          4  addressed to Conrail, Six Penn Center, Philadelphia,

          5  Pennsylvania, concerning your representation of the

          6  owner of property at 856 Washington Street, New

          7  York, New York, who alleges that he sustained

          8  extensive water damage to his property due to a

          9  defective condition of the overhead railroad

         10  viaduct.

         11                 Please be advised that this matter

         12  has been assigned to Mr. D. Delloff, Claim Agent, of

         13  this office who will communicate with you upon

         14  completion of our investigation into this matter.

         15                 If you have any questions concerning

         16  this claim, please feel free to contact Mr. Delloff

         17  at (201) 465-7116.

         18                 Very truly yours,.

         19                 M. A. Patane.

         20                 District Claim Agent, Room 410.

         21                 744 Broad Street.

         22                 Newark, New Jersey 07102.

         23                 (201) 465-7118

         24

         25  June 29, 1984
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          2

          3  Penn Central Corp

          4  245 Park Avenue

          5  New York, New York 10018

          6

          7                 Gentlemen:

          8                 I am the attorney representing the

          9  owner of property located at 856 Washington Street,

         10  New York, New York.

         11                 As a result of the defective

         12  condition of the overhead railroad viaduct, which

         13  runs through my client's property, extensive water

         14  damage has been caused to my client's property.

         15                 The overhead railroad viaduct runs

         16  from the West side of Manhattan from 33rd Street to

         17  the Downtown Gansevoort Meat Market. Kindly have

         18  your representatives call me at their earliest

         19  convenience to discuss this problem.

         20                 Very truly yours,.

         21                 Michael Romanoff.

         22                 Memo to file from: Michael Romanoff

         23    .

         24                 Date: September 29, 1995.

         25                 Michael Romanoff today, on this date,
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          2  spoke to Bob Tracy, Property Manager of Conrail.  I

          3  called him at (908) 906-3012 at 10:10 a.m.  I

          4  advised Mr. Tracy that there was loose concrete on

          5  the overhead viaduct in the area of Little West 12th

          6  Street and also on West 13th Street.  Bits and

          7  pieces have fallen down and have landed on a truck.

          8  The situation was dangerous and hazardous and we are

          9  afraid that somebody is going to get hurt or

         10  possible killed.

         11                 He indicated that he would report it

         12  to his maintenance people and that they would get

         13  over and do what they have to do to repair it.  I

         14  also gave him my phone number.  He said he needed

         15  that in case anybody had to get any more information

         16  or wanted to meet them there for inspection.

         17

         18  March 3, 1999

         19

         20  Edison Properties, LLC

         21  100 Washington Street

         22  Newark, New Jersey 07102

         23  Attn: Doug Sarini

         24

         25                 Dear Doug:
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          2                 Enclosed are copies of correspondence

          3  with Conrail and photos in connection with overhead

          4  viaduct. If you have any questions, please give me a

          5  call.

          6                 Sincerely,.

          7                 Michael Romanoff.

          8                 (Hearing concluded at 5:04 p.m.)

          9

         10

         11

         12

         13

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25
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          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 18th day of April 2001.

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

                                   ---------------------

         25                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.
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          1

          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N

          3

          4

          5

          6

          7

          8

          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.
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         23

         24                 -----------------------

                              CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.
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